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Financial Highlights

MBEBE

Results E45 For the year ended 31 March
B Z3A3MALEE
2022 2021 Change
b=
Revenue (HK$'000) EERE(FET) 350,784 323,382 8.5%
Gross profit (HK$'000) ERM(FET) 174,988 100,000 75.0%
Gross profit margin SRR 49.9% 30.9% 19.0%
Net profit (HK$'000) F o N (FET) 1,009,500 21,929 4,503.5%
Profit for the year attributable AKRARIRRELAFE
to owners of the Company & M (FHET)
(HK$'000) 979,437 22,308 4,290.5%
Basic/Diluted earnings per share & & A #5852 5
(HK$) (&) 12.46 0.25 4,884.0%
Assets and Liabilities EERAEE As at 31 March
M3A31H
2022 2021 Change
e )
Total assets (HK$'000) BEE(FET) 8,919,158 4,903,606 81.9%
Total liability (HK$'000) waE(FET) 3,981,641 1,673,161 138.0%
Net asset value (HK$'000) BEFE(FET) 4,937517 3,230,445 52.8%
Net asset value per share (HK$) SR EEFECET) 66.7 39.3 69.7%
Financial ratio B 3 tb = As at 31 March
A3A831H
2022 2021
Gearing Ratio Note 7 AER G RmE 0.72 0.46
Current Ratio B 3.80 3.80
Notes: B & -
1 The gearing ratio is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to 1 BEBBLERANBTEELAREERS
total equity 2B
2 Segment results represent the profit earned or loss incurred by each 2 DEHEERERS D BEHE 2 %k EE

segment without allocation of share of results of an associate and a
joint venture, gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of a subsidiary,
loss on remeasurement of interest in an associate, gain on bargains
purchase of additional interest in an associate, finance costs and

unallocated corporate income and expenses.

ZER ETREOE-—HBEARL—
MeEERRAzEE KB -—RHHBARZ
AERERE ENFE-—HBEZEQRE
HmZEE BB -HBEEARBEMEEZ
HERBLRE BERARENREZAF
WA KRR -
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President’s Statement

ERRE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

In 2021, the vaccination program and fiscal support by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administration Region (the
"Government”) against COVID-19 pandemic improved market
conditions and employment, however, the outbreak of fifth wave
of COVID-19 in early 2022 posed new challenges and disrupted
the bottoming-out trend in economic recovery.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) continued to pursue
new long-term growth opportunities to strengthen its income
base. During the year, the Group had further acquired the shares
of Eminence Enterprise Limited (“"Eminence”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Eminence Group”) (stock code:
616) immediately following the completion of the Share Offer (as
defined hereinafter) in respect of the acquisition of the shares
of Eminence which has been accounted for and consolidated in
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2022 (the "“Year"”) as subsidiary of
the Company, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Listed Subsidiary” in this annual report. The acquisition and the
Share Offer were a good investment opportunity for the Group to
continue its strategies to diversify investments and to strengthen
its properties portfolio which is beneficial for the continuous and
stable growth of the Group's core businesses.

HERER:

7202145 - FHE SN ITHRE BT (HRED
HE2019B MBS REBHELREERET
EMBMHIEN mHREMAEBREBMA
WE - AT 0 20224 4 )& & K9201978 ik 75
SHREAREBERTIE HFERAL
RAREHRLEE -

KEFEBEEEERAT(RAT] #ERHE
WEARSBIAEEDIFES KN KEH
HERBUZEERKRAER RAFE B
BEEAWRESLCEERAR(RL] &
AENBARAB I EILERDRD R
616) Mz RMELX (F&E R T FTHKIE -
AEBE-—FTKRESLRERG  EEEEAR
A B AR BEHZEEARZEARQFEE2022
FIANBUETBRFE(RFEEDNEE Y
BHRE FBHERAFERIETHB QAR
—Hi o MAKRBERBRNHEHAIRERE
FAEESUNEEEEZ LLLERE
M EWMERE  BFRAEEZLER

SEREHEE -



Eminence Group possesses a balanced property portfolio,
comprising residential, commercial and industrial property under
development and investment properties. It provides stable and
diversified income for the Group.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group’s revenue amounted to approximately
HK$350,784,000 (2021: approximately HK$323,382,000),
representing an increase of approximately HK$27,402,000 or
approximately 8.5% as compared to the corresponding year
in 2021. The profit for the Year attributable to the owners of
the Company was approximately HK$979,437,000 (2021:
approximately HK$22,308,000). Gross profit margin for the Year
was approximately 49.9%, compared to last year of approximately
30.9%. The basic and diluted earnings per share amounted
approximately to HK$12.46 for the Year, as compared with
earnings per share of HK$0.25 for last corresponding year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Property Sales

Given the tightening of social distancing measures, the surge in
infections had slowed down the property sales and launch of new
projects by property developers. Despite the market maintains
a prudential attitude toward housing demands, but driven by the
low interest rate and currency stability, property market in Hong
Kong remained healthy. During the Year under review, one of our
residential development project “Ayton” was progressing well and
recognised its revenue of approximately HK$248,576,000. The
Group will closely monitor changes in the macro economy and
seize the market opportunities.
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ERRE

Property Rental

The global property leasing market has stagnated by the impact of
the on-going pandemic, social distancing measures and lockdown
and consequently some corporations were downsizing while
others were retreating from the market, rising vacancy continues to
put pressure on rents. Government of different country had carried
out fiscal or protection measures to support tenants in response
to the COVID-19 pandemic. As at 31 March 2022, the occupancy
rate of residential units, commercial units and industrial units of the
Group's investment properties was higher than 97% respectively
which reflected the effectiveness of the measures implemented
by governments in response to the pandemic. Nonetheless, a full
recovery is yet to be achieved. The overall rental income of the
Group during the Year increased by 98.9% as compared to the last
corresponding year, attributable mainly to the property investment
business with controlling stake. The Group will constantly review
and monitor the tenant status and refine the tenant mix of its
investment properties to enhance steady recurring rental income.

Land Bank

During the Year under review, the ownership consolidation from
the acquisition of the properties at Chatham Road North by the
Group has been completed through the public auction under
the Land (Compulsory Sale for Redevelopment) Ordinance (the
“LCSRO") (Chapter 545 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The site will
be redeveloped into a composite building with residential and
commercial use. In addition, the existing land banks of the Group
also consists of the development sites we have equity interest in
our listed subsidiary, Eminence, including the residential property
redevelopment project at Davis Street and Catchick Street in
Kennedy Town, commercial property redevelopment project
at Matheson Street in Causeway Bay, and industrial property
redevelopment projects at Castle Peak Road and King Lam Street
in Cheung Sha Wan. The Group will continue to replenish of its
land bank when suitable opportunities arise.

8
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OUTLOOK

Looking beyond the prevailing difficulties and uncertainties of
the COVID-19, global property market has been chilled by the
pandemic over the years. Universal vaccination is expected to be
the energy for global economic recovery in 2022 and the years
after. Business momentum and housing demand will recover
quickly especially in Hong Kong once the pandemic is over, as
the city has numerous advantages that global corporations and
investors will continue to leverage.

Property market in Hong Kong is unlikely to be affected although
The Hong Kong Monetary Authority raised its benchmark interest
rate following the US Federal Reserve’s move to raise rate, Hong
Kong's banks maintained their best lending rates even as the
monetary authority raised its benchmark interest rate, probably
providing the economy some relief as it tries to recover from
the pandemic. In addition, the infrastructure development by
the Government such as railway development would help boost
property activities and is expected to contribute to 5.1% GDP
growth between 2021 and 2025.

The Group will successively solicit sales for its remaining units in
“Ayton” and the pre-sale of Project Wing Cheong, an industrial
building redevelopment project of Wing Cheong Factory Building,
located at No. 121 King Lam Street, West Kowloon. Several
property development projects are also scheduled for launch in
phases, including (i) residential redevelopment projects at Waterloo
Road, Kowloon, Chatham Road North, Kowloon and Davis Street
and Catchick Street, Kennedy Town; (ii) commercial redevelopment
project at Matheson Street, Causeway Bay; and (iii) industrial
redevelopment project at Castle Road, West Kowloon.

The Group will continue to focus on its strength to diversify
its properties portfolio, investing in high quality assets and
strengthening the income base of the Group.
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EFRRE

APPRECIATION £ &

Facing a competitive and challenging environment, on behalf HE¥H ZMmBEFLRKBHRE  AAZERE
of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the ZARAEZL((EBRIN[EE])  HEit#
“Directors”), | would like to take this opportunity to express my E@XR LML EETINAFEEHERE K
sincere gratitude to all staff members for their dedication, hard B K E RO EFE - BAOARMH - HHRE
work and efforts in tackling the many tough challenges this year, ARNEBHEETZER - AANMKEEZHN
which help to maintain the Group's effective operations. | would HEULRMEREREEHNEE LI HRR
also like to express my gratitude to our Directors for their guidance R & ©

and all our shareholders and customers for their continued support.

Koon Ho Yan Candy B A fiX
President FE
Hong Kong, 29 June 2022 B 0 2022 6H29H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

The Group was principally engaged in property development,
property investment, investment in securities and others and loan
financing businesses which property development and property
investment are the core businesses of the Group.

During the Year, the Group had further acquired the shares of
Eminence, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Listed Subsidiary” in this annual report. As at 31 March 2022,
the Group held an aggregate of 696,370,840 shares in Eminence,
representing approximately 74.76% of the total issued share capital
of Eminence. Eminence has been accounted for and consolidated
in the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
Year as a subsidiary of the Company.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group’s revenue amounted to approximately
HK$350,784,000 (2021: approximately HK$323,382,000),
representing an increase of approximately HK$27,402,000 or
approximately 8.5% as compared to the year ended 31 March
2021 (the "Previous Year").

Profit for the Year was approximately HK$1,009,500,000 (2021:
approximately HK$21,929,000), representing a significant increase
of 4,503.5% over the Previous Year.

The profit for the Year attributable to the Company's owners
was approximately HK$979,437,000 (2021: approximately
HK$22,308,000). The gross profit margin for the Year was
approximately 49.9%, compared to the Previous Year of
approximately 30.9%, there was an increase of approximately
19.0%.

The basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to HK$12.46
for the Year, as compared with HK$0.25 for the Previous Year.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2021: nil).

1
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of each business segment of the Group is set out
below.

Property Development

Revenue recognised in this business segment during the
Year amounted to approximately HK$248,576,000 (2021:
HK$275,319,000). Review on existing major projects of the Group
is set out below:

Project Waterloo Road

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, owns the site
located at Nos. 93, 93A, 95 and 95A Waterloo Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong which has a site area of approximately 9,800 square
feet (the "Waterloo Site").

The Waterloo Site is being redeveloped into a luxurious residential
accommodation with club house facilities and car parks, and the
estimated gross floor area is approximately 48,965 square feet.
The construction of the superstructure works are undergoing and
this project is expected to be completed and to launch sales in late
2022.

Project Chatham Road North

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired
properties located at Nos. 470, 472, 474, 476 and 478 Chatham
Road North, Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Chatham Road North
Building”) in May 2018 which constituted over 80% of the
undivided shares in the Chatham Road North Building. The total
site area of this project is approximately 4,653 square feet. On
29 November 2018, the Company filed an application to the
Lands Tribunal pursuant to the LCSRO for an order for sale all
the undivided shares of Chatham Road North Building (including
those owned by the Group, as required by the LCSRO) for the
purposes of redevelopment, with the intention to bid in the public
auction and acquiring the remaining units held by the registered
owner (units not owned by the Group), representing approximately
11.31% of the undivided shares of the Chatham Road North
Building.
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The Company has successfully won the bid in respect of the
Chatham Road North Building at the public auction held on 1 June
2021. Details were set out in the announcement issued by the
Company dated 1 June 2021. Upon completion of the acquisition,
the Chatham Road North Building was then 100% owned by the
Group and will be redeveloped into a composite building with
residential and commercial use. The estimated gross floor area
after redevelopment is expected to be approximately 41,827
square feet. The foundation works are currently undergoing at the
site. This project is expected to be completed in 2025.

More details of the project of the Chatham Road North Building
were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 16
May 2018, 8 June 2018, 30 November 2018 and 11 September
2020 and the circulars of the Company dated 25 June 2018 and 23
October 2020.

Inverness Road Property — “Ayton”

“Ayton"” is a residential project located at Nos. 14-20 Inverness
Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong developed and wholly-
owned by the Group. It consists of two 8-storey residential blocks
comprising 60 residential units, 29 car parking spaces and 3 motor
parking spaces. The total saleable area of approximately 40,742
square feet. The Group has launched its first phase of the sale of
“Ayton” in May 2020. As at the date of this annual report, 33 units
and 2 carparks released were sold and the aggregate contracted
sales amounted to approximately HK$532,285,000. During the
Year, 9 units and 2 carparks among the transactions have been
completed (2021: 23 units) and a revenue of approximately
HK$248,576,000 (2021: HK$275,319,000) has been recorded for
sale of properties.

Property Investment

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's portfolio of investment
properties comprised of residential, commercial and industrial
units located in Hong Kong, Singapore and the People’'s Republic
of China (the “"PRC").

During the Year, the gross rental income of the Group
was approximately HK$65,283,000 (2021: approximately
HK$32,815,000), representing an approximately 98.9% increase
over the Previous Year. The increase in rental income was primarily
attributable to the property investment business with controlling
stake.

13

BEEENWR D

ARQRR2021F6A1H BT Z R E L X
EXAFABEFRKIIFE - FBHREAQA
Fr ) % B B B2021F6 818 Z A - R %
REBEEE AEEHBEEZRREILRNE
100% %% TEBEEEA —FEE=E
MEAERENEAEEBE EREOMG
HIEEEBELN AM,827FF R o i 4217
E#ETHE TR - %18 B 18 B 1§ 57020254
BT o

BBEERHEBELIREEBZESZHESAIH
R A A B H A2018F5H16H + 201846
HA8H - 2018411 A30H N2020F9A11H 2
N A KA AT A E A2018F6H25H &
2020F10H23B 2B KA °

EXELTEYE - [E&F]

(ER|IHAEBEBEEREZERF BUR
EANENEELEXELEI4E2090F
EHEHB -ZVELMESESNEERS
GOMEEEEM 20BN RIEAEEEH &
il HBEEMBELN B40,742F F R o K
EEEN202055 MM E—BERLEIE
Bl RAFERBEH - 331 K & % i K2fE
MEBUEHE  RFBIHAOHEERY
£532,285,0008 7T - RAFEE » EAdofd e
il M2EBE AR5 E 7K (20214 : 231
BRI MIEHE 8IS & ¥ 7 49248,576,000
7 7T (20214F : 275,319,000/ 7T) ©

YIRRE

R2022%3A31H  AEBMNKEYWEMLS
BEMRES FNEEPEARLMNEH
([FEDWMEE WBERITESAM-

RAFE ZAEEHGHSKRARELY
65,283,000/ 7T (20214 : #932,815,000/%
JC) B A E I IN4)98.9% o fl & U A1
MEEZFAREBIERENYEREER
FIT B ©



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

As at 31 March 2022, the occupancy rate of residential units,
commercial units and industrial units of the Group’s investment
properties were 100.0%, 99.2% and 97.6% (2021: nil, 99.1% and
77.2%) respectively. A gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties of approximately HK$37,064,000 (2021: loss of
approximately HK$85,640,000) was recognised during the Year.
The segment reported a gain of approximately HK$85,582,000
for the Year (2021: loss of approximately HK$71,954,000),
representing an increase of approximately HK$157,536,000
compared to the Previous Year.

Investment in securities and others

The Group invested in a diversified portfolio of investments
including listed and unlisted equity securities, equity-linked notes,
bonds and other investment products based on (i) potential return
on investment in terms of capital appreciation and dividend
payment for the targeted holding period; (ii) risks exposure in
comparison with the Group's risk tolerance level at the prevailing
time; and (iii) diversification of the existing investment portfolio.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$405,674,000
(2021: approximately HK$360,322,000). There were no
investments held by the Group of which value was more than 5%
of the total assets of the Group. The Group recorded a loss in the
investment in securities and others segment of approximately
HK$73,863,000 during the Year (2021: gain of approximately
HK$153,865,000).
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As at 31 March 2022, details of the Group's financial assets are set /20224 3A31H - AEFEN L E EFI1S
out as follows: N
As at 31 March 2022 For the Year
#202253A31R rEE
Approximate
percentage Dividend/
Numberof  Investment to Group's Interest Fair value Realised
Nature of investments Notes shares held Cost Fairvalue total assets income  gain/(loss)  gain/(loss)
Hr%EE
BEEMN AYE &Y 3]
Jiig=: Ba RE/ K&/ ki,
RENHE g BRHHEE  RERE NYE Bt FMEKA (B#B) (F#8)
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FAET FET FET FET
Equity Investments
KEHE
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
(stock code: 1398) ) 14,809,684 69,806 71,235 0.8% 2,232 (2.327) =

FEIERTROFRAT

(RBAR % 1398)
Best Food Holding Company Limited

(stock code: 1488 82,526,000 718 67672 0.8% — 12,374 -
BRERARAR (KRR 1488)
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.

(stock code: 2318 (i) 858,460 66,143 4am 0.5% 812 (18370) =
PETZRR(EE)RHARAA

(RIAHR: 2318)
China Construction Bank Corporation

(stock codle: 939) 6,853,370 38997 40,366 0.4% 2,062 (3.344) =
PERRRITROBRAA

(R17 5% : 939)

QOthers N/A 64,356 59,987 0.7% 3480 (21,678) (1,881)
it TEHA
Equity-Linked Notes N/A 28,000 27510 0.3% - 1,700 (1,156)
KEHBZE TEHA
Promissory Notes fii] N/A 23,340 23,340 0.3% - - -
RARE TEHA
Bonds N/A 34,928 4,883 0.1% o (2,537) (197)
&5 TEHA
Others N/A 87297 62,848 0.6% 919 291 -
Aot TEHA
Total: 487585 405,674 45% 9,49 (34671) (3,234)
@it
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Notes:

(i) 7,030,784 shares were taken according to the terms of related
equity-linked notes acquired during the Year. Details of which were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 January
2022.

(ii) 383,460 shares were taken according to the terms of related equity-
linked notes acquired during the Year. Details of which were set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 25 November 2021.

(i) On 25 May 2021, Gainever Corporation Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Eminence, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) subscribed and acquired a 8.0% Tranche B promissory
notes (non-redeemable and non-transferable) due on 25 September
2025 issued by Lion Best Global Limited in the aggregate
principal amount of US$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,162,500,000) for a total consideration of US$3,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,300,000). The proceeds of
which shall be used exclusively for the subscription to preferred
shares in a target company, which will in turn invest the proceeds in
real estate project relating to the Xinyi A7 area/Taipei Sky Tower in
Taiwan. Details of which were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 25 May 2021 and 2 June 2021.

Loan Financing

The loan financing business of the Group is operated by Planetic
International Limited (“Planetic”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) and City China International Limited (“City China”,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eminence, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company), which are both a licensed money
lender carrying on business under the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). For the Year, the Group
recorded an interest income from the loan financing business
amounted to approximately HK$17,262,000 (2021: approximately
HK$13,726,000), representing approximately 4.9% of the total
revenue of the Group. The increase in interest income was
primarily due to the controlling stake in City China which resulted
in the increase in loan financing business. Profit derived from loan
financing business was approximately HK$10,058,000 for the Year
(2021: loss of approximately HK$38,352,000).

The target customer groups of the business are individuals and
corporate entities that have short-term funding needs and could
provide sufficient collaterals for their borrowings. The Group’s
clientele is primarily acquired through business referrals and
introductions from the Company’s directors, senior management,
business partners or clients.
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As at 31 March 2022, the gross carrying amount of loans receivable
amounting to HK$345,332,000 (2021: HK$223,793,000) of which
45% (2021: 25%) were secured by marketable securities with fair
values of HK$36,900,000 (2021: HK$31,980,000) or properties
with fair values of HK$251,707,000 (2021: HK$24,451,000) or
guaranteed money of HK$10,000,000 (2021: nil). The Group is not
permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals, if any, in the absence
of default by the borrowers. In addition, the gross carrying amount
of unsecured loan receivable amounting to HK$60,158,000
(2021: HK$59,600,000) are with personal guarantee. The largest
borrower of the Group by itself and together with the other four
largest borrowers of the Group accounted for approximately 20%
(2021: 25%) and 56% (2021: 68%) respectively of the Group's
loans receivable at 31 March 2022.

During the Year, the range of interest rate on the Group's fixed-
rate loans receivable was 2.3% to 16% (2021: 2.3% to 16%) per
annum and the range of interest rate on the Group's variable-rate
loans receivable was prime rate less 1% to prime rate (2021: prime
rate less 1% to prime rate) per annum.

The Group has credit policies, guidelines and procedures in place
which cover key internal controls of a loan transaction including due
diligence, credit appraisal, proper execution of documentations,
continuous monitoring and collection and recovery. The due
diligence procedures included conducting research on the
borrowers’ background, evaluating its current business operations
and financial conditions, market reputation and creditability,
and conducting financial analysis and recoverability analysis. To
minimise credit or investment risks, the Group will typically require
guarantees, including collaterals with expected realised value
exceeding the loan or investment amount, post-dated cheques,
and/or personal guarantees and corporate guarantees.

The Group generally provides short-term loans. For the new and
renewal loans during the Year, 69% was with a term within 1 year,
and 31% was more than 1 year but not more than 2 years. The
repayment terms and conditions are determined from the factors
including the liquidity needs of the borrowers, the Group's funding
and cash flows management strategies, and the terms and rates of
the prevailing market.
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After drawdown of loan, the loan agreement will be filed with the
loan documents properly. The Group maintains regular contact
with the borrowers and carries out periodical review to assess the
recovery of the loan based on the business development, financial
status, repayment ability including such as recent settlement
record and any litigations and bankruptcy orders against borrowers.
The Group will take all necessary legal actions against the relevant
clients to follow up the settlement of the outstanding loans.

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on loans receivable which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In particular, the following information
is being considered when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the loans
receivable’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the borrower;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the borrower;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environments of
the borrower that results in a significant decrease in the
borrower's ability to meet its debt obligations.

At 31 March 2022, the net impairment allowance recognised in

profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$27,224,000 (2021:
approximately HK$47,791,000) in its loan financing business.
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Included in the gross amount of loans receivable are
HK$86,702,000 (2021: HK$72,700,000), net of accumulated
impairment allowances of HK$70,702,000 (2021: HK$50,144,000)
due from a group of borrowers including a borrower (the
“"Borrower”) with gross amount of HK$32,397,000 (2021:
HK$13,1700,000) and other individuals (with personal guarantee
from that Borrower) with gross amount of HK$54,305,000 (2021:
HK$59,600,000). During the Previous Year, the management
assessed, taking into account the relevant information from
public domain, such balances became credit-impaired and has
taken various actions to recover the balances. Upon acquisition
of Eminence, the gross amount of loans receivable of the Group
increased by HK$47,476,000. The management has requested the
borrowers to make settlement of the loans and total settlements
of HK$49,474,000 were received from the borrowers by way of
cash or properties during the Year. No allowance of impairment
was made for a new loan receivable due from the Borrower of
HK$16,000,000 since the value of pledged asset is higher than
the value of amount borrowed. For the remaining balances, an
additional impairment loss of HK$20,558,000 was recognised in
current year for the purpose to fully impair the remaining balances.

Below were the discloseable transactions of the Group on loan
financing business during the Year:

Provision of financial assistance to Supreme Sino

On 13 September 2021, Planetic as lender entered into a loan
agreement with Supreme Sino Holdings Limited (“Supreme
Sino”) as borrower (a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability), pursuant to which Planetic had agreed to provide
a loan in a principal amount of HK$8,500,000 to Supreme Sino for
a term of 3 months at an interest rate of 3% per annum (the “SS
Loan ")
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On 12 November 2021, Planetic entered into another loan
agreement with Supreme Sino, pursuant to which Planetic
had agreed to provide a loan in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$50,000,000 to Supreme Sino (comprising the principal
and accrued interest of SS Loan I) for a term of 6 months at
an interest rate of 9% per annum (the “SS Loan IlI”). The SS
Loan Il is secured by a share charge over the then entire issued
share capital of Supreme Sino, a first legal charge over all the
title, rights and interest in commercial properties located in
Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong (with the then market value of
approximately HK$91,000,000) owned by Supreme Sino and a
personal guarantee by the sole director and the sole shareholder
of the wholly-owned beneficial owner of Supreme Sino. The
provision of SS Loan Il constitutes a discloseable transaction
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) for the Company, details of which were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 November 2021.

Deed of settlement in relation to debt owed to
subsidiary of Eminence

City China and Shui Kam Enterprises Limited (“Shui Kam”)
entered into two loan agreements dated 13 November 2017
and 16 October 2018 respectively (as varied or supplemented
by supplemental agreements dated 8 November 2019 and 2
November 2020 respectively) (the “SK Loan Agreements”)
under which Shui Kam is indebted to City China for HK$9,120,000
(including principal and outstanding interest) as at 4 March
2022. Shui Kam is in default of its obligations under the SK Loan
Agreements.

On 4 March 2022, City China and Shui Kam entered into a deed
of settlement, pursuant to which, City China would release Shui
Kam from its obligations under the SK Loan Agreements and in
return Shui Kam shall transfer a property situated in Yuen Long,
Hong Kong (with the then valuation of HK$40,000,000) to a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Eminence, and City China will assign
to Shui Kam three outstanding debts owing by three borrowers
in total amount of HK$30,714,292.14. The transaction under the
deed of settlement constitutes discloseable transaction for the
Company and a major transaction for Eminence under the Listing
Rules, details of which were set out in the announcement jointly
published by the Company and Eminence dated 4 March 2022 and
the circular of Eminence dated 25 March 2022.
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LISTED SUBSIDIARY

Eminence, the major listed subsidiary of the Company, and its
subsidiaries was engaged in property development, property
investment, comprising the ownership and rental of investment
properties, investment in securities and others and loan financing
businesses.

Investment in Eminence Shares

As at 1 April 2021, the Group, through Ace Winner Investment
Limited ("Ace Winner”), Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco
Development Limited (“Goodco") (all of which were wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company), held an aggregate of 275,687,665
shares of Eminence, representing approximately 29.60% of the
then total issued share capital of Eminence.

(a) Share Offer

On 3 February 2021 (after trading hours), Ace Winner as
the offeror informed the board of directors of Eminence
that it intended to make, subject to the satisfaction of the
pre-condition, a voluntary conditional cash general offer to
acquire all of the issued Eminence shares (other than those
already owned or agreed to be acquired by the offeror and
parties acting in concert with it) at HK$0.50 per Eminence
share (the “Share Offer”) on the terms and conditions set
out in the composite document published by Eminence on
26 March 2021 and in compliance with the Hong Kong Code
on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code"”). The
Share Offer constituted a very substantial acquisition for the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. An ordinary
resolution of the Share Offer was duly approved by the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the
Company'’s special general meeting held on 19 March 2021.
On 7 April 2021, the Share Offer was declared unconditional
in all respects.

The Share Offer closed on 21 April 2021 (the “Closing
Date”) and Ace Winner received valid acceptances of the
Share Offer in respect of a total 393,683,175 Eminence
shares, representing approximately 42.26% of the issued
share capital of Eminence and together with the Eminence
shares already held by Ace Winner and parties acting in
concert with it amount to an aggregate of 669,370,840
Eminence shares, representing approximately 71.86% of the
total issued share capital of Eminence as of the Closing Date.
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(b) Acquisition of Eminence shares in April 2021

On 22 April 2021, following the completion of the Share
Offer, the Company further acquired on-market a total of
27,000,000 Eminence shares at each of price of HK$0.50
(the Company is complied with Rule 31.3 of the Takeovers
Code) for an aggregate purchase price of approximately
HK$13,500,000 (exclusive of transaction costs). As a result,
the Group's interest in Eminence increased to 696,370,840
Eminence shares, representing approximately 74.76% of the
total issued share capital of Eminence as at the date of the
acquisition and up to the date on 31 March 2022.

(b)

R2021F45 A = LUK 5

M2021F4H22B BB IR 0 B 49 58 AL
% ARREAHAMBE—FTBEBAS
27,000,000/ = 1L B% 0 - = AR BB A
B B050B L (AAAFE BT WE
Bl #8 B1I31.3) + #8 #& A {& 4913,500,000
BIL(RFAERSGER) - Bt - K&
R =Lz & 2£696,370,8400%
SLUEM HtELULRBAEBBRRERERE
£2022F3A3MBE BEITRABLE L
74.76% o

Performance of Eminence Group during the Year

The financial results of Eminence Group during the Year are

highlighted as below:

BURER A FENERE

BUEERAFENMHEEERELT

For the year ended 31 March

BZ3A31ALFE
2022 2021 Change
(Audited) (Audited) b
(RER) (&2 %)
Revenue BER
Property development (HK$'000) MR R(FET) — — N/A
Property investment (HK$'000) MERE (FETT) 56,745 61,309 (7.4)%
Investment in securities and others BFHEREMEE
(HK$°000) (F#7T) - — N/A
Loan financing (HK$'000) BERBE (FET) 7,730 18,944 (569.2)%
Total revenue (HK$'000) mEEwE(FET) 64,475 80,253 (19.7)%
Gross profit (HK$'000) ERN(F#ET) 61,565 76,515 (19.5)%
Net profit (loss) (HK$'000) Fom N (B 18)(FET) 116,447 (180,793) N/A
Basic earnings (loss) per share BREARNEF (EB)
(HK cents) GBI 12.50 (19.41) N/A
Diluted earnings (loss) per share R#EaF (BFE)
(HK cents) GEN) 9.77 (19.41) N/A
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As at 31 March 2022 and the date of this annual report, the

BEEENWR D

R2022F3A3MB R AFRAH  SLEH

development land portfolio held by Eminence Group as below: BEEMZERE L MBEWOT:
Anticipated
Intended Approximate year of
Location usage site area  completion
A=y REMRZ BIABEEE FAARIFH
(square feet)
(FHR)
Fung Wah Factorial Building, Nos. 646, 6483, 648A Industrial 9,206 2025
Castle Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong I%
EXBNEBILIEGI6 - 648 ~ GABATREET XX E
Wing Cheong Factory Building, No. 121 King Lam Street, Industrial 5,483 2023
Kowloon, Hong Kong T
EANEBMREIINKELEKXRE
Nos. 11, 13 and 15 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Commercial 2,857 2023
=8 IR ) 10 B BT 115% - 1358 1657 [EES
Nos. 1B-1E Davis Street, Kennedy Town, Hong Kong and Residential 7122 2025
Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Kennedy Town, Hong Kong =

EEREHMMEZLEHIBEIER AR
BB e Ik F 45935k K959

As at 31 March 2022, Eminence Group's portfolio of investment
properties comprised of residential, commercial and industrial
units located in Hong Kong, the PRC and Singapore. During the
Year, Eminence Group recorded rental and management fee
income of approximately HK$56,745,000 (2021: approximately
HK$61,309,000) and fair value gain of approximately
HK$63,054,000 arising from change in fair value of investment
properties.

The Directors believe that the consolidation of Eminence’s
business was an effective channel for the Company to expand
into the non-residential property development sector and could
create synergy values by achieving greater business coherence
and enhancing resources allocation. For more detailed business
and financial performance of Eminence Group, please refer to its
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2022.
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Eminence Convertible Notes

As at 31 March 2022, the total outstanding principal amount of
convertible notes held by Goodco is HK$97,280,000 which entitles
Goodco to convert into a total of 389,120,000 Eminence shares,

BT RERS

MR2022F3A31H ' ExHAEZAIBBRERE
2R AR S % 597,280,000 JT ¢
B FES AT K # 4 K 5389,120,0000% & 1L

details are as follows: R FBEOAT:
Outstanding Number of Conversion Annual
Issue date principal amount Shares price Interest Maturity Date
HARREZ
BITHHE PN KA EAE RBE FFE RN =
HK$ HK$
T BT
2017.05.11 16,000,000 64,000,000 0.25 4% 2024.08.28
2017.09.26 11,280,000 45,120,000 0.25 4% 2024.08.28
2019.08.28 (“2019 CN")
([2019F AR REHE ) 70,000,000 280,000,000 0.25 4% 2024.08.28
Total 97,280,000 389,120,000
et

During the Year, no exercise of the conversion rights under the
aforesaid convertible notes held by Goodco was made.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group financed its operations through internally generated
cash flow and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2022, the Group's
bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$3,562,704,000
(2021: approximately HK$1,472,467,000). The gearing ratio of the
Group, calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to total equity,
for the year was approximately 0.72 (2021: approximately 0.46).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has net current assets of
approximately HK$4,491,434,000 (2021: approximately
HK$1,871,702,000). Current ratio was approximately 3.8 (2021:
approximately 3.8). The bank balances and cash as at 31 March
2022 was approximately HK$184,425,000 (2021: approximately
HK$308,222,000), representing a decrease of approximately
40.2% or approximately HK$123,797,000 compared to the
Previous Year.
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1,871,702,000/8 7T) ° R BNLL K 49/53.8 (2021
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The maturity profile of the Group’s secured bank borrowings is set
out below:

BEEENWR D

AEEBRERRITEE Z BB RHTI
T

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Carrying amount repayable as follows (based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements):
EEEZEEAENTRBEHINERGRZIETEERD)
— within a period not exceeding one year 1,206,455 468,010
ETBBE—-—FHRER
— within a period of more than one year but not exceeding two years 888,846 45,896
EEB-—FETEBEAEMENKENRN
— within a period of more than two years but not exceeding five years 1,237,338 756,611
THEBMFETBEAEAFNREARA
— within a period of more than five years 230,065 201,950
ERFEERNRREA
3,562,704 1,472,467
Less: Amount due within one year shown under current liabilities (1,206,455) (468,010)
BCBRARRBAEs —FANISHeE
Amount due after one year shown under non-current liabilities 2,356,249 1,004,457

The Group's secured bank borrowings carry interest at HIBOR plus
1.0% to HIBOR plus 1.825%, LIBOR plus 0.8% to LIBOR plus 1.0%
(2021: HIBOR plus 1.0% to HIBOR plus 1.825%) per annum, with
effective interest ranging from 1.24% to 2.11% (2021: 1.13% to
4.05%) per annum.
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CHARGES OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2022, bank loans of the Group in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$3,562,704,000 (2021: approximately
HK$1,472,467,000) which were secured by leasehold properties,
investment properties, properties held for development for sale,
properties held for sale, life insurance policies, listed equity
securities in Hong Kong, perpetual bonds and debt instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income of the Group
having a net book value of approximately HK$7,464,811,000 (2021:
approximately HK$3,142,046,000). In addition, a credit facility
granted by a bank for a property development project in Hong Kong
was secured by pledge of 300,000,000 Eminence shares with fair
value of HK$37,200,000 (2021: 19,800,000 Eminence shares with
fair value of HK$9,702,000) held by a subsidiary of the Group.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group diversifies its source of funds including internal
generated cash flow and interest-bearing bank borrowings during
the Year to generate source of funds for its business operations.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure
that it has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations.

EXPOSURE ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE
FLUCTUATIONS

Most of the Group's revenues, payments and bank borrowings
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars,
Singapore dollars and Renminbi. During the Year, the Group did
not have significant exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and
thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes was employed.
The Directors considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2022 (2021: nil).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the Year, the Group invested approximately HK$1,924,000
(2021: approximately HK$196,000) on the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, and approximately HK$41,433,000 on
additions of investment properties (2021: nil).
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of capital expenditure contracted for but not provided of
approximately HK$20,339,000 (2021: nil).

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(1) Discloseable Transaction — Purchase of
equity-linked notes linked to shares in BOC HK

On 13 April 2022, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired the equity-linked notes which was
linked to shares in BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
("BOC HK") (stock code: 2388) in the principal amounts
of HK$10,000,000. On 19 April 2022, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Eminence acquired the equity-linked notes of
BOC HK in the principal amounts of HK$20,000,000, which
on a standalone basis or aggregated with the previous
acquisition in the past 12 months constitutes a discloseable
transaction for the Company and on a standalone basis
constitutes a discloseable transaction for Eminence under
the Listing Rules. Details of the acquisition were set out in
the announcement jointly published by the Company and
Eminence dated 20 April 2022.

(2) Change in percentage level of shareholding in
Eminence

On 20 April 2022, Eminence completed a total of
186,280,000 placing Eminence shares at the placing price of
HK$0.10 per placing share to not less than six allottees who
and whose beneficial owners are independent third parties
(the “"Eminence Placing”). For more details, please refer to
the announcements of Eminence dated 30 March 2022 and
20 April 2022 respectively.

Immediately upon the completion of the Eminence Placing,
the shareholding percentage of the Group in Eminence was
decreased from 74.76% to 62.30%. Eminence remains as a
subsidiary of the Company.
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(3)

(4)

(5)

Adjustment of conversion price to Eminence
convertible notes

Following the completion of Eminence Placing on 20 April
2022, Eminence has issued shares for cash at a price which
is less than 95% of its current market price. Pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the 2019 CN, the conversion price
of 2019 CN has been adjusted from HK$0.25 to HK$0.24 per
Eminence share and the total number of Eminence shares
would be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the
2019 CN increased from 280,000,000 Eminence shares to
291,666,666 Eminence shares.

Discloseable Transaction — Purchase of
equity-linked notes linked to shares in HSB

On 29 March 2022, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired the equity-linked notes which was linked
to shares in Hang Seng Bank Limited ("HSB") (stock code:
11) in the principal amounts of HK$10,000,000. On 25 April
2022, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired
the equity-linked notes of HSB in the principal amounts of
HK$6,000,000, which when aggregated with the previous
acquisition in the past 12 month constitutes a discloseable
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of the acquisition were set out in the announcement
published by the Company dated 26 April 2022.

Extension of financial assistance to Supreme
Sino

On 11 May 2022, Planetic and Supreme Sino entered into a
supplemental loan agreement to extend the repayment date
of the SS Loan Il to 29 December 2022 at an interest rate of
9% per annum. The extension of the SS Loan Il constitutes
a discloseable transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules, details of which were set out in the section "“Provision
of financial assistance to Supreme Sino” under the headed
“Loan Financing” in this annual report and the announcement
of the Company dated 11 May 2022 respectively.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's businesses, financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group's businesses,
including the following highlighted risks of (i) Hong Kong economic
conditions which may directly affect the property market; (ii)
availability of suitable land bank for future development; (iii) the
continuous escalation of construction cost in Hong Kong in recent
years; (iv) our results of operations maybe adversely affected by
labour shortages and/or the increase in the costs of labour; (v)
business cycle for property under development may be influenced
by a number of factors and the Group's revenue will be directly
affected by the mix of properties available for sale and delivery;
(vi) all construction works were outsourced to independent third
parties and they may fail to provide satisfactory services adhering
to our quality and safety standards or within the timeline required
by the Group; (vii) fluctuations of fair value gain or loss incurred
on financial assets and investment properties; (viii) credit risk and
recoverability of provision of loans which may incur bad debts
during the downturn of economy; and (ix) credit risk on resulting
from loan borrowers’ failure to repay or default contractual
obligations which may result in an interruption of cash flows and
increased costs for collection.

In response to the abovementioned possible risks, the Group has
a series of internal control and risk management system to cope
with the possible risks and has serious scrutiny over the selection
of quality customers and suppliers. The Company keeps develop
and review strategies, policies and guidelines on risk control; which
enable the Group to monitor and response to risk effectively and
promptly. The Company also actively proposes solutions to lower
the impact of the possible risks on the businesses of the Group.
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PROSPECTS

Some jitters and uncertainty in 2021, despite another fraught year
and lingering virus concern, the prospect continued uncertainties
around the evolution of the virus, the pace of vaccine deployment
and enduring geo-political risks. The global outlook has worsened
amid rampant inflation in some major economies and monetary
policy tightening by respective central banks in response, tensions
in Ukraine, and the lingering threat of the pandemic. Nevertheless,
domestic economic conditions are expected to improve following
the dropped rate of daily coronavirus cases from the fifth wave of
the pandemic in the second quarter of 2022, progressive relaxation
of social distancing measures, improvement of labour market with
the new round of Consumption Voucher Scheme which rendered
support to business and the gradual re-opening of economies.
It can be expected to see more growth as market sentiments
and confidence improve to drive more foreign investments in the
construction and property sector.

Local banks did not follow The US Federal Reserve to raise interest
rates (adjustment taken place in March and June 2022) for now
due to the abundance of liquidity in the banking sector which does
not put pressure on the banks to follow the US rate increase in
the short term, and the inflation pressure in Hong Kong should
remain moderate in overall terms. It is estimated that the local
economy will likely only show signs of recovery during the second
half of 2022 and looking ahead, the outlook of Hong Kong remains
optimistic in the long term, the Group is confident in its business
development. The Group will continue to (i) strength its risk
management measures in order to maintain financial stability of the
Group; (ii) to monitor the market changes closely and (iii) focusing
its efforts in the development of its existing principal businesses
while exploring other opportunities with a view to providing steady
and favourable returns for its shareholders and strengthen every
segment of its business.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 89 employees (2021: 27).
Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
approximately HK$57,970,000 for the Year (2021: approximately
HK$29,317,000). The Group remunerates its employees based on
individual performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
The Group provides a defined contribution to Mandatory Provident
Fund as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for all eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong. Share option scheme is in
place to provide appropriate incentive to motivate employees of
the Group.
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Ms. KOON Ho Yan Candy
President, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Ms. Koon Ho Yan, Candy, aged 37, has been re-designated to
the president and chief executive officer, and the chairman of
the Executive Committee of the Company on 13 August 2020.
She was appointed as an executive Director and authorised
representative and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company in 2010. She is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. Ms. Koon obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics and Politics from the University of Durham, England in
2007. She also received her Bachelor of Laws degree and Legal
Practice Course qualification in 2009 from the University of Law,
England. Ms. Koon is the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the vice
president of the Company.

Ms. LUI Yuk Chu
Vice President and Executive Director

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, aged 64, is a co-founder of the Group, an
executive Director and vice president and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. She is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Besides, Ms. Lui is an
executive director and deputy chairman, and a member of the
executive committee of Eminence and serves as director of various
subsidiaries of Eminence. Ms. Lui has been involved in the textiles
industry for over 30 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. Ms. Lui was
appointed to the Board as an executive Director in 1994. In 2006,
Ms. Lui was appointed as vice president of the Company. Ms. Lui
is the wife of Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the co-founder of the Group.
She is also the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an executive
Director.
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Mr. TSE Wing Chiu Ricky
Vice President and Executive Director

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky, aged 64, has been re-designated to
the vice president and an executive Director, and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company on 13 August 2020.
He is also an authorised representative and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Tse is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration from Adam Smith University of America in the
United States in 1996. He has more than 30 years of experience in
garment manufacturing and merchandising. Mr. Tse was appointed
to the Board as an executive Director and vice president of the
Company in 2005, and was subsequently re-designated from
vice president to president of the Company and appointed as
chief executive officer of the Company in 2006. In 2007, Mr. Tse
was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director and resigned as president and chief executive officer
of the Company. In 2017, Mr. Tse was re-designated from a
non-executive Director to an executive Director, and appointed as
the president and chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. TSUI Chun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, aged 71, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 2004. He is also a member and the
chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from
the Oklahoma City University in the United States in 1991 and
is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Tsui has over 40 years of experience in the public
accounting profession and the commercial sector, especially the
travel industry. He has experience in the preparation for the listing
of shares on the Stock Exchange and worked for a few listed
companies. Mr. Tsui is now practising as a public accountant under
his own name.
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Mr. JONG Koon Sang
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Jong Koon Sang, aged 73, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 2005. He is also a member and
chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Jong is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of International Accountants, England; a fellow member of the
Chartered Management Institute, England; a fellow member of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong; the accountant ambassador
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and
Honorary Vice President of Accounting Student Society of Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Since 2014, he has
been elected as director and council member of the Association of
International Accountants, England. In the years of 2011 and 2012,
Mr. Jong was the President of The Association of International
Accountants, Hong Kong Branch. From 2010 to 2020, he was
a member of the Regional Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Hospital Authority. In 2019, Mr. Jong was appointed as the
alternative structured manager of Shek Lei Catholic Primary School
and Nam Wah Catholic Secondary School. Mr. Jong was appointed
by the foregoing schools in May and June 2020 respectively
as School Sponsoring Body Manager of the Incorporated
Management Committee commenced from 1 September 2020
to 31 August 2023. He has also been appointed as a Sponsoring
Body Manager of Shung Tak Catholic English College for his tenure
of office from 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2024. Mr. Jong has
over 40 years of management experience in the financial, industrial
and property business.

Mr. LAU Chak Hang Charles
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles, aged 35, has been an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman and a member of the
Nomination Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company since 6 August
2020. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is currently a consulting
director at Frost & Sullivan Limited, a multinational management
consulting firm principally engaged in market research and growth
consulting service, corporate strategic and operational advisory
service, etc. Client coverage of such company spans across
different continents and wide spectrum of industries. Mr. Lau has
over 7 years of extensive experience in the financial industry.
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The Company believes that good corporate governance provides a
framework that is essential for an effective Board, accountability,
sound internal control, appropriate risk-assessment, monitoring
procedures and transparency to all Shareholders and stakeholders.
The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices through the establishment of a
comprehensive and efficient framework of policies, procedures
and systems throughout the Group.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND CORPORATE
CULTURE

The Board defines and leads the purpose, values and strategy
of the Group. The Group is committed to strategically investing
in and developing quality properties, and to delivering attractive
and sustainable returns to the Shareholders. Despite the dynamic
operating environment, the Group places strong emphasis on
employee relations, workplace safety, and the efficient use of
materials, energy, and other environmental metrics, promoting a
culture of ethical conduct and integrity. A healthy corporate culture
is important to good corporate governance which is crucial for
achieving sustainable long-term success of the Group. The Board
considers that the corporate culture and the purpose, value and
strategy of the Group are aligned.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. During the Year, the Company has fully complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code, except for the deviations
disclosed herein.

Code Provision C.2.1

The roles of president and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy serves as president as well as chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board considers this
arrangement to be appropriate for the Company as it preserves
the consistent leadership which is conducive to making effective
planning and better execution of long-term strategies consistently.
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The Board is of the view that a balance of power and authority
is adequately ensured by the operations and governance of the
Board which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals,
with half of them being independent non-executive Directors. The
Company will continue to review the existing structure when and
as it becomes appropriate.

Code Provision D.2.5
The issuer should have an internal audit function

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the
Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and considered that the current risk
management and internal control processes are adequate to meet
the needs of the Group in its current business environment and
nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to believe
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
inadequate. The Board was of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the Group,
however, shall review the need for one on annual basis.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently has six (6) Directors comprising three (3)
executive Directors and three (3) independent non-executive
Directors. The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (Vice President)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles

The biographical details of all Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
Save as disclosed in that section, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other
material relationships among the Directors.
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Role and Delegation

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group. Directors meet on a regular basis and
on other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular
matter is required. The Board is responsible for formulating of
corporate strategies, reviewing and guiding the business and
affairs, monitoring financial and operating performance and is
individual. The Board reserves the authority to make final decisions
for all major matters of the Company covering internal control and
risk management, dividend payout, major transactions, release
of financial information, appointment/removal of Directors and
auditors, and other significant operational and financial matters.

There is no separation of the role of the president and the chief
executive officer in the Company. Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy as
the president provides leadership to the Board and as the chief
executive officer has taken up the management of the Group’s
business and overall operation. However, the day-to-day running
of the Company has been delegated to the divisional heads
responsible for the different aspects of the business.

The Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management
of the business of the Group given that there are a strong
and independent element on the Board and a clear division of
responsibility in running the business of the Group. The Board
believes that the structure outlined above is beneficial to the
Company and its business.
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Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings

Details of the attendance of individual Directors at various
meetings held during the Year are as follows:

CRERRE

BEERNESHERR

RAFE BUESHESES S0
mT

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Board meetings meetings meetings meetings  Attendance at
attended/held  attended/held  attended/held  attended/held 2021 AGM
Y% i HE/ B g/ 2 HE/ 84 HE20215
EZ8e3 FNZEEEE FMZEEEE REZEEEE RARBAFAE
Executive Directors BTEE
Koon Ho Yan Candy ZAM 44 — — _ 1N
Lui Yuk Chu X% 44 — — - on
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky Hok 444 = 111 i 10
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Tsui Chun Kong RER 444 313 111 /1 101
Jong Koon Sang FEaE 4/4 33 7 7 "n
Lau Chak Hang Charles 22E 444 313 111 /1 17
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZERERES

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee and the Board and
by the Shareholders in a general meeting.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”),
Directors who are appointed by the Board to fill casual vacancies or
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office until the next
following general meeting or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election at the
meeting after their appointments. All Directors, including those
appointed for a specific term, are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting no later than the third annual general meeting
since the last election or re-election.

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development of Directors

An induction package would be provided to each newly appointed
Director to ensure that each Director is familiar with the role of the
Board, the responsibilities and obligations of Director under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
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According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Training materials or briefings in respect of the updates on, among
other things, the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements are regularly circulated to all Directors. The Company
also provides and circulates to the Directors with monthly and
regular updates relating to the Group'’s business, financial position
and business environment, in which the Group operates.

All existing Directors have provided a record of training they
received during the Year to the Company, which includes
attending seminars, reading various materials regarding directors’
responsibilities, updates on the Listing Rules and corporate
governance policy, etc, and such records have been maintained
by the company secretary of the Company for accurate and
comprehensive record keeping.

BOARD COMMITTEES

During the Year, the Board maintained four (4) Board Committees,
namely audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and executive
committee (the “"Executive Committee”) to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities and to oversee particular
aspect of the Group's affairs. Each Board Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and may access
to independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy, if necessary. Each Board Committee holds meetings
in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of
reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of the Board
meeting. The written terms of reference of the Board Committees
are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they are aligned
with prevailing governance practices. Each committee is required
to report to the Board on its decision and recommendations,
where appropriate. The authority and duties of each of the Board
Committees are set out in its respective terms of reference which
are available on the Company’s and/or the Stock Exchange’s
websites.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three (3) independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tsui Chun Kong (the
chairman), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles.
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Jong Koon Sang both possess the
appropriate professional accounting and financial management
expertise and in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee are:
° to oversee the relationship with the external auditors;

° to review the interim and annual financial statements before
publication;

° to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; and

o to perform the corporate governance functions.

During the Year, the Audit Committee members held three (3)
meetings with the Group senior management and met twice (2)
with the independent auditor of the Company to review (i) the
draft consolidated financial statements of the Group (including
the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
interim results for the six-month period ended 30 September 2021
before recommending them to the Board for approval); (ii) the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control system of
the Company; and recommend (iv) a whistleblowing policy and
(v) an anti-corruption policy to the Board for adoption. It keeps
under review the independence and objectivity of the Company’s
independent auditor and the non-audit services provided by the
Company's independent auditor to the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jong Koon
Sang (the chairman), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Lau Chak Hang
Charles, and one (1) executive Director, namely Mr. Tse Wing Chiu
Ricky.
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The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management;

° to review and determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management with reference to the Board's corporate
goals and objectives; and

° to review and approve the compensation arrangements in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to
executive Directors and senior management which shall be
fair and not excessive.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one (1)
meeting to review and approve the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Company by reference
to factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere within the group and in the market. It has also made
recommendation to the Board on the directors’ fee for independent
non-executive Directors. No Director was involved in determining
his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has discharged or will continue
to discharge its major roles to, among other things, approve the
terms of the service agreements of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company, make recommendations with
respect to the remuneration and policies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company and to review the remuneration
package and recommend salaries, bonuses, including the incentive
awards for Directors and senior management of the Company.

Remuneration Mechanism

The remuneration mechanism of employees of the Group is set up
and approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Board on
the basis of employee’s performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.
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The remuneration of the Directors is determined by the Board
after review and on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to factors such as time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market practice.

The Group has adopted share option schemes as an incentive
to Directors and eligible participants. Details of the share option
schemes are set out in the “Directors’ Report” from pages 60 to
62 of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Chak Hang
Charles (the chairman), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Tsui Chun
Kong, and one (1) executive Director, namely Mr. Tse Wing Chiu
Ricky.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee are:

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

° to identify and nominate suitable candidates of Directors for
the Board'’s consideration;

° to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and

° to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the succession planning for the chairman and the
chief executive of the Company.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting
to (i) review the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board and the qualifications for all Directors and senior
management of the Group; (ii) review the board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) of the Company; (iii) review the
nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) of the Company;
(iv) assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and (v) nominate the re-appointment of retiring directors
to the Shareholders for approval.
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Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which incorporated
the selection criteria and nomination procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee takes into account of, inter alia, the
diversity of the Board as a whole, the candidate’s reputation for
integrity, commitment in respect of time, interest and attention to
the businesses of the Group as well as such other factors as the
Nomination Committee may consider appropriate.

In respect of the nomination procedure, all candidates are
required to submit his/her personal particulars and information
to the Nomination Committee. The secretary of the Nomination
Committee shall convene a meeting, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members (if any), for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. For filling a casual vacancy, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board's consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. A circular will be sent to the Shareholders
providing information as required pursuant to the applicable laws,
rules and regulations of the candidates nominated by the Board to
stand for election at a general meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. The Company has
adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity. In designing the Board’'s composition, board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, industry experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on the
considerations aforesaid, and candidates will be considered, having
due regard to diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving those
measurable objectives and will review the Board Diversity Policy
on a regular basis to ensure its continuing effectiveness.
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The Board composition and diversity as at 31 March 2022 are as
follows:

SREAEE

20226 3A31MH  EFeMAK K Z
BRI

Composition ED INED
#H R HITES BYEMITES
Gender Female Male
% Bl pegid =B
Age Group

1-4 1-7 7
848 7 31-40 61-70 >70
Board tenure (No. of years)

2 10-1 16-2

EEREH(ER) < 0-1 620 -
Professional Experience Accounting Finance General Management
BEERKR g5 2Rt —REE
Number of Directors 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |

Ex=HA

ED — Executive Directors #]77 Z %
INED — Independent Non-executive Directors ¥ 7 FE #1 77 & F

The Group is committed to maintain diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. \We ensure fair employment
practices and offer equal employment opportunities to recruit,
promote and deploy employees based on their skillset, abilities
and how they fit the job requirements and future development of
our businesses. Currently, our Board has two (2) female Directors
(approximately 33%) out of six (6) Directors. As at 31 March
2022, approximately 40% of our total workforces (including senior
management) were female and approximately 60% were male.
The total gender diversity of the Group is balanced.

Board Independence

The Nomination Committee is responsible to assess the
independence of all the independent non-executive Directors
taking into account of the factors including (i) the compliance with
the criteria of independence as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules; (ii) must not have any involvement in the daily
management of the Company, or any financial or other interests
or relationships in the business of the Company; (iii) can provide
balanced, professional and independent advices and opinion to the
Board and play a leading role in the Board Committees.

43

AEEBRNEASEMEBEEAFEZ L (R
FBHERZTE)  BRMBEERATFHRE#KS
TRIEBEEEMER & TIEERKRHE
BERAANESERE BSARSEIE-
B EE26RESETA2RAREE
£ (#933%) » A20224%3A31H * 1 B # #
(BHESREERE)NL0% 5T K 460%
BEM AEEMNEEMRZT{LE BE
3 1 o

Exemun
REZECAETNHERBIUFNATES
MBI AEENEZBREOFTE LD
#R A B 31316 T &1 BB B M A6 A ¢ i) S
EARBIMBEEERE  AAXARAEHNE
My HIEMBFRLEER: (ITREFE
REFEH BEXRBYNESZLRER X
REEEZEE® -

8



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

Throughout the Year, half of the Board were independent
non-executive Directors (three out of six Directors). All
independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term of three (3) years. At all times during the Year, the Company
has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10 and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
(3) independent non-executive directors, representing at least
one third of the Board and with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional accounting and financial management
expertise required under the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite the fact that
each of Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Jong Koon Sang, has served
as an independent non-executive Director for more than nine (9)
years, the Board is of the view that their duration of service will
not interfere with their exercise of independent judgement in
carrying out their duties and responsibilities as the independent
non-executive Directors and believes that their valuable knowledge
and experience in the Group’s business will continually benefit
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. All independent
non-executive Directors do not have any executive or management
role in the Company nor have been under the employment of
any member of the Group. Each of them receives a fixed fee, not
commensurate with the profit and performance of the Group. They
can bring an independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct. Their presence helps to enhance the
Board’s balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives.
The Board considers that all independent non-executive Directors
have met the independence guidelines of Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the three
(3) executive Directors, namely Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (the
chairman), Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky. It meets
as and when required between regular Board meetings of the
Company, and operates as a general management committee
under the direct authority of the Board. Within the parameters
of authority delegated by the Board, the Executive Committee
is committed to the implementation of the Group's strategy
set by the Board, monitors the Group’s investment and trading
performance, funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having
made specific enquiry with the existing Directors, all of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company also adopted a code on no less exacting terms
than the Model Code to regulate dealings in the securities of the
Company by certain employees of the Group who are considered
to be likely in possession of inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been re-appointed as the
independent auditor of the Company at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 20 August 2021 (2021 AGM") until
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “2022 AGM").

During the Year, the audit and non-audit fees paid or payable to

the Company's independent auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, were as follows:

Services rendered for the Group

SREAEE

ESREREEETRESXGZ

g5 E on
S2<rA|

ARBEHERMETHRAME Bz £H
BOANEFETEAFRZINBFEETA(R
EFRADESARANEFETERRSZ
TRTR - REXARABEBFESFELEETE
EHE RE2HER BRERAFED
ETIRETRIEIR ERE

ARBTEHRMEGEATLBEETRRER
MRl URERGESAEERABERAR
AHEEFNARERNAEBETEER
ETNARRRABFRS °

BB AT &

EHeHMERASHMTEREARAR
202198208 £ 77 7 I A F K 2 (/2021
EFRREEXRE) L EEBAARKRAF L
HEE THEARAEERRBAFRE
([2022FEBRBERGNBERAE L -

RAFE Bk BN KRR B % HE
EHeAER A SAMITNTRRIEEX
Z2HNT:

Fees paid/payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

B ENES-EERA
AXEEREMENRE eIMTHNER
HK$000
FET
Audit services: EZR

—annual financial statements — FEMEHRE 4,251

Non-audit services: EFZRTE -
—interim review — HH R 1,350
—taxation and professional services — HIEREERE 50
Total: Bt 5,651
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation
and publication of the timely financial statements of the Company
which gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and ensure that they are prepared in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
Management of the Company had provided monthly updates
for giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and projects to enable the
Directors to discharge their duties. In preparing the accounts for
the Year, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies
which are pertinent to the Group’s operations and relevant to
the financial statements and have presented an understandable
assessment of the Group's position and prospects.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, the
accounts are prepared on a going concern basis and they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to the events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

A statement by the independent auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 90
to 95 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

With the requirement set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code in respect of the responsibilities for performing the
corporate governance duties, the Board has delegated its following
responsibilities to the Audit Committee:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the

Board;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

° review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability. WWe encourage
reporting of concerns and actual or suspected misconduct or
malpractice or unethical acts (e.g. corruption) by any of our staff
and/or external parties in any matter related to the Group.

We have enhanced our group-level whistleblowing mechanism by
the adoption of a comprehensive Whistleblowing Policy in March
2022. The policy aims to enable the Company’s employees and
those who deal with the Company to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in matters related to the Company, in order to help
detect and deter misconduct or malpractice or unethical acts in the
Company.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Company takes a zero-tolerance approach towards all forms
of bribery and corruption and is committed to observing and
upholding high standards of business integrity, honesty, fairness,
impartiality and transparency in all its business dealings at all
times. The Company strictly prohibits any form of fraud or bribery,
and is committed to prevention, deterrence, detection, reporting
and investigation of all forms of fraud and bribery.
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An Anti-corruption Policy has been adopted by the Board in
March 2022 which sets out the basic standard of conduct which
applies to all directors, officers and employees at all levels of the
Group. They must conduct their activities in full compliance with
this Policy, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), and all other applicable laws relating to
bribery or corruption in each jurisdiction in which the employees do
business. It also provides guidance to all employees on acceptance
of advantage and handling of conflict of interest when dealing
with the Company's business. The Company also encourages and
expects its business partners including suppliers, contractors and
clients to abide by the principles of this policy.

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company endeavors to maintain good long-term relationship
with the Shareholders and potential investors of the Company. The
Board adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy in 2019 and is
regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness. The policy governs
our framework for providing Shareholders with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and easily comprehensible information
about the Company (including its financial performance, strategic
goals and plans, material developments, governance and risk
profile), to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders and the
investment community to engage actively with the Company.

The Whistleblowing Policy, the Anti-corruption Policy and the
Shareholders Communication Policy are made available on the
Company’'s website. The Audit Committee, on behalf of the
Board, is responsible to conduct regular review to ensure their
implementation and effectiveness.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Currently, the Board has undertaken the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives and
ensuring that the Group established and maintained appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Audit Committee provides independent review on effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and gives their recommendation to the Board. Each department is
responsible for identifying, assessing and managing risks within
its business, ensuring that appropriate internal control for effective
risk management are implemented. On behalf of the Board, the
Audit Committee also regularly reviews the corporate governance
structure and practices within the Group and monitors compliance
fulfilment on an ongoing basis.
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All departments of the Company are required to undergo a
self-risk assessment annually. It covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls. The Audit
Committee shall then review the effectiveness of the Group'’s risk
management and internal control systems based on the self-risk
assessment submitted by departments and also considering the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and
procedures are in place to identify, assess, manage, control
and report risks. Such risks include strategic, credit, operational
(administrative, system, human resources, reputation),
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") issues, market,
liquidity, legal and regulatory. Exposure to these risks is continuously
monitored by the Board through the Audit Committee.

After reviewing the annual review on effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group as reported
by the Audit Committee, the Board considers the risk management
and internal control systems in respect of financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and adequate of resources were
effective and adequate in respect of the Year. The management of
the Company confirmed that there is no significant deficiency and
weakness in the internal control system has been identified.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are designed to
mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function. The Board
considered that the current risk management and internal
control processes are adequate to meet the needs of the Group
in its current business environment and nothing has come to
its attention to cause the Board to believe the Group's risk
management and internal control systems are inadequate. The
Board was of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group, however, shall review
the need for one on annual basis.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles and guidelines of the Company in relation to the
distribution of dividend to its Shareholders. Subject to compliance

with applicable rules and regulations, the Board may, at its
discretion, determine the declaration of payment of dividend(s)
to its Shareholders in any amount, frequency in any financial
year depending on, among other things, the Group’s operation
and financial performance, economic conditions, the Group’s
business strategies and operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements as well as the interests of the Shareholders.

The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages Mr. Lee Po Wing as its Company
Secretary who is not an employee of the Company. Mr. Lee is
a solicitor qualified in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee has confirmed that
for the Year under review, he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules. Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company is the person whom Mr. Lee Po
Wing could contact for the purpose of code provision C.6.1 of the
CG Code.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
the Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of
formal channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements, circulars and other corporate communications.
Such published documents together with the latest corporate
information and news are also made available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at
www.easyknit.com. Annual general meeting and other general
meetings of the Company provides one of the primary forums for
communication with the Shareholders. Such meetings provide
the Shareholders with the opportunity to share their views and to
meet the Board and certain members of senior management.

The Shareholders Communication Policy, which is available on
the Group’s website, sets out the framework in place to promote
two-way communication with Shareholders, stakeholders and
potential investors of the Company. The Audit Committee is
responsible for regular review of the effectiveness and compliance
with prevailing regulatory and other requirements of the policy.
In June 2022, the Audit Committee reviewed the policy and
considered that the policy have been effectively implemented.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general
meeting

Pursuant to the Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Bermuda Companies Act”), Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition (state the purpose of the meeting, be signed)
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting (the “SGM") to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If
the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a meeting in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of
the Bermuda Companies Act, but any SGM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the said date of
deposit of the requisition.
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The written requisition must state the purposes of the SGM,
and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A,
7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle
Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Principal
Place of Business”) for the attention of Company Secretarial
Department.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at the
general meetings

Shareholders may submit a requisition to move a resolution at a
general meeting pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act. The
number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall be:
(a) any number of Shareholders representing not less than one
twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting; or (b) not
less than 100 Shareholders holding the issued ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Shares”). The requisition specifying the
proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders concerned, together
with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposal or the business to be dealt with
at the general meeting must be deposited at the Principal Place of
Business. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act. Moreover, the
notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposals submitted by the Shareholders concerned varies
as follows pursuant to Bye-law 63 of the Bye-laws:

(@) for an annual general meeting of the Company and any
SGM at which the passing of a special resolution is to be
considered, it shall be called by at least twenty-one (21) days’
notice in writing; and

(b)  for all other general meetings of the Company (including a
SGM) shall be called by at least fourteen (14) days’ notice in
writing (the notice period must include ten (10) business days
under the Listing Rules’ requirement)

(c)  the notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served

or deemed to be served and of the day for or which it is
given.
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Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting, the
Shareholder should follow the “Rules and Procedures Governing
the Election of Directors”, which can be found on the website of
the Company (www.easyknit.com).

Procedures for putting enquiries by the
Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in written form via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6,
481-483 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: 1218share@easyknit.com

In respect of the other shareholding/entitlement affairs:
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’'s Road East

Hong Kong

(address will be changed to 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,

16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong with effect from 15 August 2022)

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has not made any changes to its Bye-laws. The
Company’'s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws are
available on the websites of the Company (www.easyknit.com)
and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
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The Directors present this directors’ report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in property development,
property investment, investment in securities and others and
loan financing, details of which are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 96 to 264 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid to the Shareholders during the Year
(2021: nil.).

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2021: nil.).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five (5) financial years,
as extracted from the consolidated financial statements, is set out
on page 265 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS OF KEY
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The business review of the Group as required under Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the key financial performance indicators to the businesses
of the Group, including, among other things, (i) a fair review
of the Group's business; (ii) a description of principal risks and
uncertainties facing to the Group; (i) an analysis using key financial
performance indicators and (iv) future development in the Group’s
business, are disclosed in “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 11 to 30 of this annual report.

The corporate social responsibility, environmental policies and
performance of the Group are disclosed in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report set out on pages 68 to 89 of this
annual report.
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As far as the Board is concerned, the Group has complied in
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of 8,212,000
shares (2021: 9,120,000 shares) of its own ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$33,053,000 (2021: HK$37,582,000). The repurchased Shares
were cancelled during the Year. Details of the Shares repurchased
are as follows:
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EFEHE

REFEMs RAFE AKEBDES
ERTHERUAEEEBREEFTEX
FEZHBERERIER -

SN

ARABRANRANER 2 EHFBHRAEF
BWAZEATHERERMES -

BE  HESEEAQF EHES

RAFE ARQRAEBHOEAS K
8,212,000/% (20214 : 9,120,000/%) & & =
L E R B E A A33,053,0000% 7T (2021
£ : 37,682,000 L) - 2 BB AR 0 B2 R A
FERNTHE BHELDBEROFBIHIWOT

Number of
ordinary  Consideration per share Aggregate
shares BERRE consideration
Month of repurchase BE AR repurchased Highest Lowest paid
BELER
BOHE BE R EN&ERE
HK$ HK$ HK$
ET ET ET
August 2021 20215 8A 1,371,000 4.00 3.90 5,394,710
September 2021 20219 9HA 3,007000 3.98 3.95 11,932,650
October 2021 2021910 A 2,616,000 3.87 3.87 10,123,920
November 2021 2021114 125,000 4.70 4.70 587500
December 2021 2021412 A 872,000 4.80 4.60 4,120,720
February 2022 202292 A 20,000 4.00 4.00 80,000
March 2022 202243 A 201,000 4.05 4.00 814,000
Total: st 8,212,000 33,053,500

The repurchases of the Company’s shares by the Directors during
the Year were made pursuant to the mandate granted by the
Shareholders at the 2021 AGM, with a view to benefiting the
Shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value per
share and earnings per share of the Company. As at 31 March
2022 and up to the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company in issue was 73,988,403 shares.
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders as at 31 March 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$864,960,000 (2021: approximately HK$869,330,000).

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company during
the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity on pages 100 to 101 of this annual report and note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (Vice President)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Ms. Koon Ho Yan

Candy, an executive Director, will retire from office by rotation at
the 2022 AGM and, being eligible, will offer herself for re-election.
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Director an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 31 to 33
of this annual report.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no change in the information of the Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules except
the changes in the Directors’ remuneration up to 31 March 2022
are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the provisions of the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws. No
Director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Related Party Transactions/Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, there were no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group's
business, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director, or a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any
time during the Year or at the end of the Year.

57

KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1

Directors’ Report

EFEHE

ARRIEERERBIUNATESERELD
MAIEIBERZ A EREBB I EMMFEL Z

FEHERE ARARBEBHELIFEANT
EEHBBYL -
ESZEEFBHRANFEREIEIAE -

EEERNEE
BB RARW O E &= £ & £2022F38

BEMFMESHI - WERE EHHRAE
BLBWGRATRENEFTEREZD -

EERBEN
2REFHERE LHRNRAAMAN 2

FEXwmERT BMEBEEFRARAFTLZ
REGHTAR—FABARRARIEMH

AFEHRECEER BRI

ESRERRRRNRS - ZH
BHZH &=

%$¢ﬁ2§é%ﬁﬁ%%?ﬁ%%A

R/ REXGIFRBEEN  REAFE
EHMWIM$¢EM$% ZN/NYS [
EAMBRARMAILERASEERKZE
ARG ZHHEHNT BEEEREE
ERHECLER  NIERBRIEEMAN
BRAREEIMBEREFEEEKRMNE -



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Directors’ Report

EEEWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The Company was deemed to be interested in approximately
74.76% interest in Eminence as at 31 March 2022, which was
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company. The principal
businesses of Eminence and its subsidiaries are the property
development, property investment, investment in securities and
others and loan financing. As at 31 March 2022, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu,
who was an executive Director and vice president of the Company,
was also an executive director and deputy chairman of Eminence.

The Company and Eminence are separate listed entities run by
separate and independent management. Ms. Lui cannot personally
control the Board and is fully aware of, and has been discharging,
her fiduciary duty to the Company and has acted and will continue
to act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Therefore, the Directors believe that the Company is
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s
length from, Eminence.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022 and up to the date
of this annual report, none of the Directors had any interest in a
business which may compete with that of the Group and which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares and the
underlying shares of the Company
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M2022F3A31H  EERAQNF EFEITH
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ZrffRzERZ R AR BRE LR
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Number of Ordinary Shares

EERKRGAEE
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate % of
Name of Director Interest Interest Interest Other Interest Total Shareholding
(Note vi)
BOER
EEps A% R FhER AEER Hit & st Bak
(H1itvi)
Koon Ho Yan Candy (“Ms. Koon") 73,000 — — 29,179,480 29,252,480 39.53%
ERM(ELZL]) (Note i) (Note ii)
(B ati) (H7iti)
Lui Yuk Chu (“Ms. Lui") 73,000 73,000 17429,664 — 17575,664 23.75%
EEH(BLL)) (Note ii) (Note iv) (Note v)
(i i) (B #tiv) (H#tv)
Notes: Bzt -

(i)

(i)

These interests represent options granted to Ms. Koon as beneficial
owner under the share option scheme of the Company adopted on
5 July 2012, details of which are disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme of the Company” in this directors’ report.

29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and are beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited in its capacity as
the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries include
Ms. Koon). As a result, Ms. Koon is deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The
Magical 2000 Trust.
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(i) These interests represent options granted to Ms. Lui as beneficial
owner under the share option scheme of the Company adopted on
5 July 2012, details of which are disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme of the Company” in this directors’ report.

(iv)  These interests represent options granted to Mr. Koon Wing Yee
(“Mr. Koon"), the spouse of Ms. Lui, as beneficial owner under
the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 5 July 2012,
details of which are disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme of the Company” in this directors’ report. Ms. Lui is
deemed to be interested in those shares in which her spouse, Mr.
Koon, was interested.

(v) 17,429,664 shares are owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Lui.

(vi)  The percentage represented the number of shares over the total
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2022 (i.e.
73,988,403 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE
COMPANY

On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"”) was adopted and approved by the then Shareholders for
a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date whereby,
the Board, may at its discretion, grant share options to any eligible
participants (including Directors and employees of the Group) to
subscribe for the shares of the Company subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.

The scheme mandate limit in respect of the granting of options
to subscribe for shares of the Company under the Share Option
Scheme has been refreshed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 8 August 2019 which the total number of shares
of the Company may be allotted and issued pursuant to the grant
or exercises of the options under the Share Option Scheme shall
not be exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at 8
August 2019 (i.e. 91,320,403 shares).
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Details of movements of the share options during the Year are
listed below in accordance with Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules:
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Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
Date of price per As at during the during the during the as at Exercise  Vesting
Grantee grant share 2021.04.01 Year Year Year  2022.03.31 period date
R2022%
BR R2021F REAFE REFE REFE 3A318

AR A R BH TEE 481H ERE [RXGR:d
(Note i) HKS
(H &%) BT

g

xH e R 1T Tl BEAH

Directors (Note )

Bt

Ms. Koon 2021.08.30 3.99 = 73,000 = = 73,000 2021.08.30- 2021.08.30
B&t 2031.08.29

Ms. Lui 2021.08.30 3.99 = 73,000 = = 73,000 2021.08.30- 2021.08.30
Byt 2031.08.29
Employees (Note /i)

EBE W 2i)

Mr. Koon 2021.08.30 3.99 = 73,000 = = 73,000 2021.08.30- 2021.08.30
BRAE 2031.08.29

Koon Chun Ting 2021.08.30 3.99 = 73,000 = = 73,000 2021.08.30- 2021.08.30
BRE 2031.08.29

Koon Wai Yan 2021.08.30 3.99 = 73,000 = = 73,000 2021.08.30- 2021.08.30
BEM 2031.08.29

Total - 365,000 = = 365,000

@ar

Notes: K&t -

i

) These grantees are substantial shareholders of the Company (the
“Substantial Shareholders”).

(ii) These grantees are associates of the Substantial Shareholders.

(i) The closing price of the shares immediately before the grant of
share options on 30 August 2021 was HK$3.90.

(iv)  The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be

subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
changes in the Company's share capital.
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Apart from the above movements, no share options were granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Share Option Scheme
during the Year.

As at 31 March 2022 and at the date of this annual report, an
aggregate of 365,000 shares under the Share Option Scheme,
representing approximately 0.49% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company, may be issued upon exercise of share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme. Since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme, no shares have been issued
upon exercise of all the share options granted under the scheme.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme of the Company are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF EMINENCE

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the "Eminence Share
Option Scheme"”) was adopted and approved by the then
shareholders of Eminence for a period of 10 years commencing
on the adoption date whereby the board of directors of Eminence,
may at its discretion, grant share options to any eligible participant
to subscribe for the Eminence shares subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the Eminence Share Option Scheme.

The scheme mandate limit in respect of the granting of options
to subscribe for shares of Eminence under the Eminence Share
Option Scheme has been refreshed at the annual general meeting
of Eminence held on 1 August 2019 which the total number of
shares of Eminence may be allotted and issued pursuant to the
grant or exercises of the options under the Eminence Share Option
Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the shares of Eminence in issue
as at 1 August 2019 (i.e. 310,583,205 Eminence shares).

During the Year, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed,
cancelled or outstanding under the Eminence Share Option

Scheme.

Further details of the Eminence Share Option Scheme are set out
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme of the
Company” and “Share Option Scheme of Eminence” above and
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report, at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SFO

As at 31 March 2022, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO shows that, other than the interests disclosed in
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, the following Shareholders had notified
the Company of their relevant interests in the ordinary shares and
underlying shares of the Company, which represent 5% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company:

KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1
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EFEHE

ESREROIEREE 2 ER

R £ XTARRAR AR &) & [ 1L B A
A -EHRRAFRZEAVBHRRMN
36T EES  ARA - HEERAT
EEAMBARKARNE QR NAFE
NEMSEBETIEMNZH BEES
AREBEARAREMEAMEABER 2K
M EEEMER -

REFSRPERGBETREN

REREBRAR

#

R2022F3A310  ARBIREZESRBE
GBI EXVEBEIBBREFTZEEREER
MET BRIEZRBRG  BERORE
BEZEGRABIMBRE ERIN T
BEREMEAQRBERARAFEBR KRG
MHERGzEEET MZEEEMEE
RARABEEITRA 5% L

Long positions in the ordinary Shares and the REBRROREBERGZ TR
underlying Shares
Number of Approximate %
Name of Shareholder Notes Capacity Shares Held Total of Shareholding
RRER 2B i &% BRERGEA By BFRENEIHL
(Note iv)
(Hitiv)
Magical Profits Limited () Beneficial owner 29,179,480 29,179,480 39.43%
ERBEAA
Accumulate More Profits Limited (i) Interest of controlled corporation 29,179,480 29,179,480 39.43%
XEHEE R
The Winterbotham Trust i) Trustee 29,179,480 29,179,480 39.43%
Company Limited
BEBEREEARRA EHTN
Winterbotham Holdings Limited (i) Interest of controlled corporation 29,179,480 29,179,480 39.43%

REHEE RS
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Number of Approximate %
Name of Shareholder Notes Capacity Shares Held Total of Shareholding
RR#EE 28 iz BH EERGOEA BY BFRESEIL
(Note iv)
(Kisiv)
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas () Interest of controlled Corporation 29,179,480 29,179,480 39.43%
Hooper TEGEE 2w
Mr. Koon (i) Interest of spouse 17502,664
BRE [GE:
(i) Beneficial owner 73,000 17575,664 23.75%
BExEAA
Sea Rejoice Limited (i) Beneficial owner 17429,664 17429,664 23.55%
ZEBERAA EREAA
Notes: B i -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and are beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited in its capacity as
the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which
include Ms. Koon, an executive director of the Company). The
Winterbotham Trust Company Limited is owned as to 75% by
Winterbotham Holdings Limited. Winterbotham Holdings Limited
is owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper.

17,429,664 shares are owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Lui, an executive director of
the Company. On 30 August 2021, Ms. Lui was granted 73,000
share options of the Company under the Share Option Scheme. Mr.
Koon, being the spouse of Ms. Lui, is deemed to be interested in
17,502,664 shares of the Company by virtue of the SFO.

These interests represent options granted to Mr. Koon as beneficial
owner under the Share Option Scheme, details of which are
disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme of the
Company” in this directors’ report.

The percentage represented the number of shares over the total

issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2022 (i.e.
73,988,403 Shares).
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(i) 29,179,4800% fi% 17 LA Magical Profits Limited
PEBEERLRAEESEE  ZARA
Accumulate More Profits Limited & & A& -
i Accumulate More Profits Limited Bl B 1
/5 The Magical 2000 Trust (E 5 2§ A & 1%
RAARMTEEER D) ZEREAREE
HRETARARZEHAE - Winterbotham
Holdings Limited R )R 1R EE B R A
A % B75% # #m o Christopher Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper %&£ 4 7 Winterbotham
Holdings Limited # 5 #799.99% & & ©

(i) 17,429,664 B AL EBERAGIEE -
ZARBAARAIRNTESERLE2EE
= BEA o R20219F8HA308 - 1R K BB I #E
T2 ELLERT3,000) AT FEALKE o
BAEABELLZES BEZBHFRBE
1& 0 - 48 A 17,502,664 K A &) i% 5
FEEEL -

(i) Z%FEEDEEREBEBREFIRTEREGE
RESBEARNNBRE FERAES
EHREARFEIRMEE] —HHEE -

(Vi) ZEBEDARKRMEE K A202243A318
ANATE BT A48 2 (873,988,403 /% %
7) e



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions for the Year are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
The Company has not entered into other transactions with its
connected parties which are required to be disclosed in this annual
report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

With regard to the related party transactions which also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions,
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they
are applicable.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five (5) largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 79.6% of the Group's purchases and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 49.7% of the
Group's purchases.

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 56.5% of the Group’s revenue and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 18.5% of the Group’s
revenue.

Save as disclosed and to the best knowledge of the Company,
none of the Directors and their respective close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company's total issued share capital) have any
interest in the five (5) largest suppliers or customers of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group values its employees who are the Group’'s most
important assets. Staff are rewarded with competitive remuneration
packages and benefits. The Group is committed to fostering a
conducive, harmonious and discrimination-free working environment.
Occupational health and safety is the top priority across the Group's
operations. Safety guidelines are established to safeguard the
employees from any occupational hazards.

The Group is also dedicated to providing high quality properties,
products and services to meet our customers’ needs and is
striving to maintain good relationship and close communication
with our business partners, banks, contractors and vendors. Thus,
senior management of the Group have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
as and when appropriate. During the Year, there was no material
and significant dispute between the Group and its business
partners.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$1,189,000 (2021: HK$91,000).

REMUNERATION MECHANISM

Details of the Company’s remuneration mechanism are set out in
the "Corporate Governance Report” from pages 40 to 41 of this
annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Bye-laws, and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, every Director and other officers of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any
of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices and related
matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter
in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
of them. A Directors Liability Insurance is in place to protect the
Directors and officers of the Company against potential costs and
liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors and
officers of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from pages 34 to 53 of
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
of its shares as required under the Listing Rules for the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year been reviewed by the Audit Committee. Information of
the duties of Audit Committee and its composition are set out in
"Corporate Governance Report” on page 39 in this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING
PERIOD

Events after the end of reporting period are set out in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 27 to 28 of
this annual report and in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, certified
public accountants, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment as independent auditor of the
Company at the 2022 AGM.

By order of the Board
Koon Ho Yan Candy
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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REPORTING STANDARD AND SCOPE

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the "ESG
Report”) was prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
ESG Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide") set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules. It provides an overview of the ESG management
approach as well as sustainability initiatives and performance of
the Group for the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (the
“"Reporting Period”).

The scope of this ESG Report covers our property investment,
investment in securities and others and loan financing operations
which represent the Group’s most significant economic,
environmental and social impacts.

For a full list of ESG aspects, respective key performance
indicators (“KPIs") and their reference within this ESG Report,
please see the ESG guide content index included on pages 84 to
89.

Reporting Principles

Identified ESG issues that are
material to the Group and
stakeholders for disclosure
BRAEAEERFHEBEZNIRE -
HEREREE  EARBERE

Materiality
BEEM

Eit

Adopted consistent
methodologies for meaningful
data comparisons over time
RA—BOBRBERA A
CHERRIIEEERENLR

Consistency

— it T

68

Quantitative

Balance
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Disclosed KPls in a measurable
manner
LAR] FEr2 M A IR AREEE

Provided an unbiased picture of
the Group’s ESG performance
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Materiality Assessment EEMFMG
The Group conducted a materiality review to determine material AEBEZR=ZFFRFETEELHEZ - U
ESG issues for disclosure by following a three-step process: ETERAEREENEERE HERE

SRR
~
Reviewed ESG disclosures of industry peers to identify common disclosure practices.
PRl EHEREATMNEE  HEREABETE  UBIERNEEEN-

5l J

Proritisation

HEBEHS

Validation

Consolidated and analysed the results of the peer benchmarking exercise to develop a prioritised list of ESG )
issues of varying materiality levels for confirmation.

REINMRAEATNEENRNER  UHE—RERBEHIINTRAEEZRERE HEREABEE
B DHER -

~\

The Group’s senior management convened a meeting to confirm a finalised list of material KPIs for disclosure.

FEEESREEEAHEE  URREZRREVESEEE  FARESEE -

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY TtEHEEE

The Group recognises that our business has an important role in =~ AEEZ:E 5 > BN ESLBLEZ S E(E
contributing to a more sustainable future. As we drive business f - AZ R EMAIFENREKELTE o
growth, we strive to integrate corporate social responsibility ERFIHEESEFERARRE - P8 K
(“CSR") into our day-to-day operations. Guided by our CSR Policy, {t%¥#te@&fF((bgdesSE)@R AR
we have made continuous efforts to manage our environmental &i&E - TP EH S ETHEMEE T - &
footprint, stock a robust talent pipeline and cater to the needs of AT Z N ERBRMNIRELT  FHER
the disadvantaged. AKBWAFTBEE TREDLHENTE -
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Company is committed to the sustainable management of
our environmental footprint and continual improvement of our
performance. In line with our environmental stewardship, we
focus our efforts on energy efficiency, resource management and
cultivation of environmental awareness among employees.

Improve energy efficiency

K EFEER K2t

Energy Conservation

BRI REIR

HARRE

ARBBNERMORFERPETAFE
B A AEHHERR - RESHRMNIR
BEER BRALITEEXRREE RS
BREELBBEEINRREAL -

Promote staff awareness
BEEITES

Monitor consumption data

EEHEEE

Energy Consumption and Emissions

Electricity consumption in our managed properties and office
premises represents a significant proportion of our carbon footprint.
To this end, we actively explore energy-saving opportunities and
adopt hardware upgrades to enhance our energy performance
over time. At our managed properties, we transitioned all our
lighting fixtures to LED lights and equipped motion sensor controls
in public areas to ensure efficient energy use and to minimise
unnecessary consumption. We also maintain indoor temperatures
at a comfortable 24°C to 26°C and installed low emissivity or
double-glazed windowpanes to optimise thermal conditions and
insultation, reducing heat loss. Our offices are also renovated
with energy efficiency in mind, for instance, we maximise natural
lighting wherever possible to reduce the need for lighting fixtures.
We also set up an independently controlled lighting system to allow
for flexible and efficient usage of lights in different office areas.
When procuring appliances and electronics, the Group has placed
an emphasis on choosing newer more energy-efficient models.
To maximise cooling efficiency, we regularly hire professional
technicians to clean or replace our air filtration elements. During
lunch breaks and outside of office hours, the air-conditioning and
power connections are also partially turned off.
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Waste and Resource Management BYRERERE

The major type of waste at workplace is paper with some other I {ESFIM T BEYMEHARLHAR 86—
non-hazardous wastes such as carton box of smaller amounts, LHMEZEZY WHERIHHSE
while hazardous wastes produced are of immaterial amount. The MELXHNEEZEREREZYEHR L & - KEEH
Group encourages all employees to demonstrate sustainable B2 EETHEHEIERERAFETE
behaviour in their everyday routines to foster a resource efficient A B EH L E RN TIEXL - RFIERE
work culture. Our staff are directed to use digital copy file T RERAEFAHBRERE R BT KR

whenever possible, including for financial reports, meeting notices, & * & &%

B BEEBXRTRRORA

circulars, and corporate information issued to our shareholders &l © & AR A B DRI ENRI & B E TE -
which significantly reduced our printing and mailing. When hard & H Z# B2 I AE - B MIEEF B BE

copies are necessary, we promote the use of recycled and Forest N &HZMERZ

Stewardship Council certified paper and use double-sided printing £ FA & E 5l E -

by default.

S & 27 &
H5®RE

WK - WFEAR

Besides paper, we are also cognisant of reducing the general &K RIN > BFMEZHZBR D ERMD
waste generated in our offices and managed properties. Inour WAEMEBEBWEELN —RED - £

office common area, we provide durable and reusable food IRy # A= A £
containers, cutlery, and cups to eliminate single-use plastics BEFAMNEMA L

B i IR PR AT A AT
BERARMTF  AFERBE

as much as possible. The Group has also set up multi-material EGBENEBE - AEBACERME
recycling collection bins in the public areas of our managed EYWENAHLEBEIHERE ZE YR EIUWFE -

properties.

In line with the Group's resource management approach, we also B AEEBEBNEREE H i BRAMIEE
place a heavy importance on efficient use of water and strive ERBMBK EYEAITHEBRTE N
to conserve resources where practicable. We conduct regular  #i# &R - B EAEHBREE B8 MKEE
monthly inspections on our pipes and taps to ensure no leakages 38 ' R B FIN R RIS R EIEY ¥ I &

in our office premises and managed properties. Additionally, I8 JJ7K o 1tk 4 >

BMREEMALTFER

sensor taps and water efficient fixtures were installed in all the FREKEBEREKESE  UF FihE B

washrooms to better manage water consumption. FEKE o

Consumption A £ Unit E {1 2021/22F E 2020/215F E
Electricity & J3:

—intotal LA 42 8 5t '000 kWh F & F F B 334.91 79.55
— by intensity LA % & 5F ‘000 kWh/FTEF BT EE "ER2BEE 3.76 2.49
Petrol j5H:

—in total LA 48 £ 5t Litre & Ff 13.33 10.18
— by intensity LA % E & Litre/FTERAF SR 2B E S 0.15 0.32
Water K:

—intotal LA 8 & 5t m337 5 oK 6,781 530
— by intensity A % & &+ mYFTEX HK ER2BES 76.19 16.56
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group's GHG emissions were
mainly resulted from energy consumption whereas water and
paper use account for a relatively small amount as represented by
Scope 3 emissions.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BERBHEKE

REEHE AEENBEREHREE
TREEFOERE MAMERBREEES
E3P R BN ENED -

BERBERE Unit B4 2021/225E  2020/215E
Scope 1 emission & E18E ) £ tonnes of CO,eMa — A{L Tt & 2 36.09 2758
Scope 2 emission i B 25F i & tonnes of COeMi — AL E 8 173.98 44.51
Scope 3 emission & B3 = tonnes of COeME — AL E B 2.72 0.21
—intotal AR 25 tonnes of COeME — AL E B 212.80 72.30
— by intensity A % € &t tonnes of CO el — &It & 2 2.39 2.26
Cultivating Environmental Awareness BERRER

To build a lasting environmentally conscious culture, we actively
raise sustainability awareness of our employees. At our office
premises, signs and internal notices relating to responsible energy,
water and material consumption are posted in common areas and
washrooms to strengthen the awareness of energy conservation
and consumption reduction for all employees, which helps to
guide all employees to form good habits of conservation and
environmental protection, thus laying a solid foundation for the
sustainable development of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, there were no non-compliance cases

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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To address the climate-related impacts and risks to our business,
we have been adopting different strategies to enhance our
governance and improve our resilience to climate change. In terms
of risk management, we have identified the climate-related risk as

follows.

Climate-related risks

Impacts to our operations

R - HERERHRE

RIR21

RERBEMEBHOREEBRZERRAR
BRI RKBIAMBE AL REZL R
RE(CWEERN HEAREEMS &
P92 8 Bl i DA T SRU1 AH B L B o

Hurricane and other
extreme weather
events

Change in long-term
rainfall pattern

Possible damages to the physical
properties and building structure, and
disruption of utilities supply which may
lead to loss in business and revenue.

Possible damages to the building
facilities and structure, and an
increase to the building operation and
maintenance costs.

In terms of precautionary measures to minimise the potential
damages related to the risks:

1) Display typhoon signals in an obvious location of the

buildings;

2) Remind tenants to shut the windows and lock doors

securely; and

3) Inspect the pumping system and remove any blockage of
drainage outlets and channels.

The Group is determined to mitigate the impact of climate change
on the operation and will constantly review the policy to improve
the measures and disclosures.
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OUR PEOPLE

Employees are the engine which drives the success of our
business. As such, we remain committed to providing an inclusive,
engaging and supportive work environment which facilitates
personal development and safeguards the health and well-being of
all employees.

OUR PEOPLE

EMMET

Caring Company

The Group takes great care to ensure a workplace free from
any prejudice or discrimination, supporting fair recruitment and
employment practices based on individual merit, experience and
qualifications regardless of race, religion, gender, disability, family
status, age or any other basis restricted by law.

To attract and retain every talent, we offer attractive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits, including medical health insurance
and a range of leave entitlements. Our human resources
department is responsible for annual performance appraisals
and determines promotion arrangements and salary increments.
Additionally, we encourage our employees to maintain a good
work-life balance by organising different staff activities such as
festive celebrations, weekly breakfasts and fitness classes. To
enable employees to share festive joy with their families, such as
Chinese New Year's Eve, Mid-Autumn Festival and Christmas Eve,
staff is dismisssed earlier for celebration. Through these events,
we look to cultivate a stronger communal and caring spirit within
the Group and facilitate deeper interpersonal connections among
our colleagues.
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During the Reporting Period, there were no cases of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations' relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, labour
practices, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

Occupational Health and Safety

Ensuring staff health and safety of is always our priority. Following
our safety guidelines, we have worked diligently and implemented
precautionary measures to minimise potential occupational hazards
across our operations. For instance, an emergency protocol has
also been established providing guidance on standard procedures
to handle extreme weather situations such as typhoons and
rainstorm warnings. At our office premises, apart from conducting
regular fire drills and carpet cleaning, we ensure a clear indication
of emergency evacuation routes which are unobstructed at
all times. Similar control measures have been put in place at
our managed properties alongside quarterly inspections of the
firefighting system, including sprinklers and smoke detectors.

Labour Standards

The Group is fully aware that exploitation of child and forced
labour belongs to a violation of human rights and international
labour conventions, therefore the Group strictly prohibits the
occurrence of child labour or forced labour employment. During
the recruitment process, applicants are required to present
identification documents to the Human Resources Department for
age and identity verification to prevent the use of child labour. In
addition, we provide employees who work overtime with overtime
pay and other related benefits in accordance with relevant laws,
regulations and internal policies.

The Group was not aware of any serious violations of child labour
and forced labour laws and regulations during the Reporting
Period.

T Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).
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Our COVID-19 support

During the Reporting Period, we have continued to implement
several measures to reduce the transmission risk of COVID-19
on our premises. These included the provision of essential anti-
epidemic supplies to our employees, stepping up the frequency of
cleansing and disinfection procedures, and setting up a designated
temperature screening station at the entrance of our premises.
We have also required our employees to wear surgical masks and
check their body temperature before reporting to work. Multiple
sanitisation points have been set up at our managed properties for
tenants.

To help build an immune barrier for the entire community, we
encourage our employees to get vaccinated by offering vaccination
leave. Besides, flexible working hours and work from home
arrangements were implemented in our head office.

During the Reporting Period, there were no reported cases of non-
compliance with applicable occupational health and safety laws
and regulations? that have a significant impact on the Group.

Training and Development

To remain agile in a fast-paced business environment, we support
staff at all levels to enhance their professional knowledge to
cater to the needs of employees from different departments and
at varied career stages. To encourage continuous learning, we
subsidise staff members to participate in different external training,
including courses, seminars and workshops. Our employees are
also eligible to receive one day of paid study leave for the purpose
of learning and development.

2 Including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Chapter 509).
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Business Ethics

The Company upholds the highest ethical standards and
accountability throughout our operations and has a zero-tolerance
approach for corruption or malpractice of any form. All employees
are required to follow our Employee’s Handbook which outlines
our expectations for professional and appropriate behaviour.

Whistleblowing Policy

During the Reporting Period, we have enhanced our group-level
whistleblowing mechanism by the adoption of a comprehensive
Whistleblowing Policy in March 2022. The policy aims to enable
the Company’s employees and those who deal with the Company
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, about possible
improprieties in matters related to the Company, in order to help
detect and deter misconduct or malpractice or unethical acts in the
Company.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects intellectual property rights. Employees are
required to follow the Group's policies and procedures regarding
intellectual property right when making use of materials, pictures,
contents as well as all other forms of private intellectual property
that are not produced by their own or possessed by the Group in
order to comply with relevant laws such as the Patents Ordinance
(Chapter 514 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Besides, the Group
has registered its trademark and retained a detailed record of the
intellectual property rights it possesses to protect its intellectual
property rights.

During the Reporting Period, there were no confirmed cases of

non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
business ethics practices.
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Supply Chain Management

As part of our supply chain management approach, we prioritise
business partners who share our dedication to environmentally
and socially responsible practices. To ensure our stringent
requirements are fully met, appropriate monitoring and assessment
mechanisms have been put in place. Suppliers who fail to deliver
the promised quality are subject to a series of inspections and
reviews. This holistic approach enables us to better manage ESG-
related risks arising from our supply chain whilst building effective
long-term relationships with our partners.

At our managed properties we have appointed specialised
consultants to provide advisory services on equipment and
materials procurement. The consultants have been specially
directed by the Group to consider sustainability factors such as
energy consumption and environmentally sustainable materials in
addition to quality and costs.

Responsible Services

The delivery of quality and responsible services is essential to our
business sustainability. As such, we have established stringent
mechanisms and standard procedures to provide employees
with guiding principles in relation to quality assurance, customer
service and privacy. For instance, we have set out complaint-
handling procedures to handle and address customer concerns in a
consistent and timely manner.

In respect of the Group’s money lending business, the Group puts
great effort to ensure our compliance with the Anti-money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and other ordinances which combat money laundering
and terrorist financing. In March 2022, the Company had adopted an
Anti-corruption Policy which sets out the basic standard of conduct
which applies to all directors, officers and employees at all levels of
the Group. They must conduct their activities in full compliance with
this Policy, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), and all other applicable laws relating to bribery
or corruption in each jurisdiction in which the employees do business.
The Group conducts prudent due diligence to identify and verify the
customers and beneficial owners, as well as the purpose and intended
nature of the business relationship, constant monitoring to identify
and report suspicious activities or transactions, comprehensive record
keeping and staff awareness training.
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In respect of the Group’s investment in securities and others
business, we follow the guidelines outlined by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption and Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC"). The investment team comprises of
professionals with diversified backgrounds licensed with the
SFC in various regulated activities: dealing in securities (Type 1),
advising on securities (Type 4) and asset management (Type 9).

Complaint-handling

We actively seek feedback from our tenants and have also set
out designated communications channels for any complaints or
enquires. Once a complaint, enquiry, or maintenance request has
been received, it will be logged and classified based on the nature
of the issue and level of urgency. The issue will then be passed
along to the relevant teams which will handle and communicate
back to the tenants according to our standard procedures in a
timely and effective manner.

Data Privacy

The Group places great importance on data privacy and customer
information handling. We set out clear privacy guidelines
and procedures covering the use and management of data
and information in accordance with the relevant regulatory
requirements, including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Only authorised
personnel can access customer data on a need-to-know and need-
to-use basis. Employees are required to follow our personal data
handling procedures and only directly relevant personal information
required for business transactions are collected from customers.
No personal data is collected by any third parties without prior
consent and authorisation from the data owners.

During the Reporting Period, there were no complaint cases
relating to corruption, health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

We leverage our resources to contribute to the position
development of the communities we serve. Working together
with the Easyknit Charitable Foundation, we help to support
underprivileged members of our communities through donations
and collaboration with other charities and social enterprises.
During the Reporting Period, the Group contributed approximately
HK$1,189,000 in community investment. Apart from offering
financial and in-kind contributions to people in need, we encourage
staff to participate in different charitable activities and voluntary
services.
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HKEx KPI Data Table BRI ERIERHER
A. Environmental
RIB
A1.2 |Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BERBAHHREREE
Scope 1 emission Tonnes of CO_e 36.09
#HENHEME WE— et E 2 '
Scope 2 emission Tonnes of COe 173.98
HBE2HERE WE— etk E 8 '
Scope 3 emission Tonnes of CO_e 279
HEIFEME WE— St E 8 '
— in total Tonnes of CO_e
e S 212.80
LA SR WS/ E =
— by intensity Tonnes of CO,e/FTE
LA E 5t W _fatinEg8 EH 2.39
A1.4 |Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
BEEREYELBLERREE
Concrete and Metal tonne
—r . 1,020.00
BET RSB Mg
tonne/FTE
. A= 11.46
W/ EREBES
Paper Waste kg
1,995
JEE 4% T
ka/FTE
- Va = 22.42
FTr/SR2HBEE
Recycled Metal tonne
118.00
B i & & 7
tonnef'[E - 133
W ER2BIES
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A2.1 |Energy consumption by type and intensity
REBEAINEREERREE
Direct Energy Consumption
BEEGERESE
— in total ‘000 kWh
~ 121.37
LA 25 T B8 F B
— by intensity ‘000 kWh/FTE
VA & &1 TETRE SR 2B 1.36
&8
Indirect Energy Consumption
MEERESE
— in total ‘000 kWh
. 334.91
LA 48 2 51 T & F BB
— by intensity ‘000 kWh/FTE
LA E 5t TETRE SR2B 3.76
B8
Total Energy Consumption
BEERFEE
— in total ‘000 kWh
e 456.28
INEEE T 18 T B
— by intensity ‘000 kWh/FTE
A% JE &t TEFRE /"SR 2B 5.13
E8
A2.2 | Water consumption in total and intensity
BEKEREE
Water Consumption
ERKE
— in total m3
~ NN 781
T STk 678
— by intensity m3/FTE 105.95
A% E 5T MNAHK/EREBES '
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BRI HERERERE

B. Social
e
B1.1 |Total workforce by employment type and gender Male Female
REREERMAESNESRY S g
;Jg%%tme l;l\u;;ber of people 53 36
Part-time Number of people 0 0
e BBk AH
Total workforce by employment type and age group Under 30 30-50 Above 50
REBEARFRAMNIAINEELY 30 A T | 308% £508% | 5088 A £
E;g%—%nme T\u;ber of people 4 38 47
Part-time Number of people 0 0 0
e B A B
B1.2 |Employee turnover rate by gender Male Female
RHEREsNEERALLE S i
% 13.21% 16.67%
::';E:fyee turnover rate by age Under30 | 30-50 | Above 50
52 67 g 48 5 81 9 10 0 B 2k 1t = 30 AT | 308% 2505% | 5088 A £
% 0.00% 23.68% 8.51%
B2.1 |Number and rate of work-related fatalities
EIEBEMETHARRER
— By number Number of people 0
VAN 85T A B
— Byrate % 0
LA LE 3 &
B2.2 |Lost days due to work injury
EISBATHEAY
—  Staff Days 0
BT B &
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B3.1 |The percentage of employees trained by gender and
emp:)oyee catigory e ve 'é_/lj\le Ferr)ale
g R EAEAN B NS NERE S F i

% 11.32% 22.22%

;; ;;;isff % 20.00%
'::';;L; gagers % 12.00%
%eg%'\{;aagers % 12.50%

B3.2 | The average training hours completed per employee b
employeeiategoryg ’ ’ o ! ';/ljle Ferrllale
BEREEANBANTERETREN TR # i

L\;u;ber of hours 136 200

Junior Staff Number of hours 444
HRET A &1
Middle Managers Number of hours 953
hRERE IS
ienior Managers Number of hours 246
mARERE e 21

B5.1 | Number of suppliers by geographical region
REBESINMHEFHE
Hong Kong Number of suppliers 136
& HEmEA
Mainland China Number of suppliers 20
ey HEmE A
Singapore Number of suppliers 5
oIk HEmE A

B6.2 | Number of products and service related complaints received
EERRERRRBEHIRFEE
Number of complaints 0
®FHE

B7.1 |Number of concluded cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the company
HEARNFRREIEELANESHFARGNHE
Number of cases 0
EJLS QE|

B8.2 |Resources contributed
&RE M
Donations (HK
BRECE ﬁ() $) 1189122
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Content Index BXAORE L ERERBEESD
RAB &G

HKEx KPI

B X FrB@$# Description Page Index
EMEE B BB ZES

A. Environmental

RiE
A1 Al General Disclosure 70-72
Emissions — MR EE
BB A1 The type of emissions and respective emissions 71-72
data
HER Y & AR B R
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity 72, 80

BREREBRAERERTE

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity Due to the business
FMEAEEREYVBEERETE nature of the Group,
this KPI is considered
not material.

ERANEENEHME
B HBRERIER
WER/LTEK -

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity 80
FMEABREEEYBREREE
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps 70-72

taken to achieve them.
WM FEI LR EEER AERELEEEMEKE
5 o

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 70-72
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved

HARBEERBEETEEDNSE  REEE
ENEERFABKR
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HKEx KPI

B X Fr B $#8 Description Page Index

BERER A B %zl

A2 A2 General Disclosure 70-72
Use of Resources — MR R
"REA A21 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type 81
in total and intensity
REBERESHNEER JEEEREEERE
E

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 71, 81
BREKEREE

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set 70-72
and steps taken to achieve them.

MR Ve RERAREERER AERELE
R B o

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 70-72
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
ot SR EGE R KOR ERT B E A B - AR
WAKKREER BEIESLEEFARINALE -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products | Due to the business
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit|nature of the Group,
produced this KPI is considered
LRMATAREMBNEE R(EA)E & E |not material.
BAEE ERAEENEBL M

B WEREBIER
BHRABLAEK -
A3 A3 General Disclosure 70-72
The Environment and — R E
Tl Res?l{rces A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities 70-72
BRERARER .
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them
HAEBEHHRERRRAAERNEALER
EERNERFUATENTY
A4 A4 General Disclosure 73
Climate Change — M E
REREL A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues 73

which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them
BB RAEEHBITAEERENERSR
ZEBEEE  REYHITE
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HKEx KPI

B X Fr B #8 Description Page Index
EREE H#H RT3

B. Social
HE
B1 B1 General Disclosure 74-77
Employment — MR

&=

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age 83
group and geographical region

rER EREE  FhAFNRREHOE
B

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 82
geographical region

IR FERAR MR E DM EBRKE

B2 B2 General Disclosure 75
Health and Safety — IR
REEZE

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 82
ATEBEMIL T AE KX

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 82
EIGHEAIERH

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety 75
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored

TR MOBEREREL2ER UEE#E
MITRERFTE

B3 B3 General Disclosure 76
Development and — R E

Training

R REH

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender 83
and employee category (e.g., senior management,
middle management)
RUEMREERN(NERERE  FREREE)
EomMEIEEBS L

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee 83
by gender and employee category
RUERREEENES  BREEETHKIIH
FE B
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HKEx KPI
B X Fr B $#8 Description Page Index
BERER A B %zl
B4 B4 General Disclosure 75
Labour Standards — MR R
BT XA — .
ETRA B4.1 Description of measures to review employment 75

practices to avoid child and forced labour
AT REENNE AR PETRAEH L
T

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such 75
practices when discovered

Wi EBRERBRE BB RIB R MR

B5 B5 General Disclosure 78
Supply Chain — R E
I{\ilil‘%l;g;m};nt B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region 83
RIEEE 1% 40 % B 9 #0 f FE P B B

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging 78

suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored
MAEABERHERERNED  mERTHEBEED
WEHEREE  URBERTRERAE

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify 78
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored

A ERABANEEESERONREREER
RO ARBBAMITRERTE

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 78
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored
HiEREHEBERREREZARRE R KRK
BB H - ARMBRITRERG A
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HKEx KPI
B X Fr B #8 Description Page Index
BENER o BEiS%E5|
B6 B6 General Disclosure 78
Product — MR EE
;eng};'bmty B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject | Due to the business
A= to recalls for safety and health reasons nature of the Group,
EENCEXERAE AL S EEEEIEHMZA | this KPlis considered
P EE D not material.
ERARENER M
B hERERIER
R BIAEKXK o
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 83
received and how they are dealt with
EEBARERRBRBNRFHRENAREE T X
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 77
protecting intellectual property rights
MR R RRENZEES @B
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall 78-79
procedures
J{EE giﬁiﬂ%i&?uu@”&*ir
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 79
policies, how they are implemented and monitored
HAEBEERNRERLBEE - URBBEHIT
&%%ﬁ&
B7 B7 General Disclosure 77
Anti-corruption — =
RES B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding 83
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
REZBRABETASIEEERETIEELED
BT FARGNBE RFALE
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- 77

blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored

PR R EWmEF  AREERTRER
FE
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B8
Community
Investment

HKEx KPI

B X Fr B $#8 Description Page Index

EREE #Hi Bl ZES|

B8 General Disclosure 79
— MR EE

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 79
FrIEREE

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the 79, 83
focus area
FEIHBMEMNE RN S LERE)
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Independent Auditor's Report
BB AR

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 96 to 264,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

90

=2

BAEBEBREEAERATAKRE

(REREZTMHZBERA A

RZEMUATEBIERMDEFFTIER
96E264E MK EHBEEBBR A UAT
EHEl BEARDREWNBARUATHE
[ EEEDNEREUBRE  LESMIK
MR BIER2022F3A3NB NG E T B AR
FEBEZZALFENGRABEREMSE
Alak HEAEREHERNEAESR
EX URBREAUBHRRMIT BEZE
EETHRBEE -

BMRE ZERAVBERREBESDHE
grMAag(EEerMAag)BAHNE
BHBEREEN(EETHREEN]DE
EMAFEHRMT &5%BK20229F3831
HOGEMBRAREEZZBIEFENLE
AUBRELRGEABERE YDERSE
BEAREHHEBEERZAERE -

BPERBEEESTHAGRMNETER
AR EBRAERMDETER - BN
EZEEATAENEFCEARERE
Bt B A M B HERAENEESD D+
EE— S - REBESAMASHEM
MEBEXEFEBERTIOATEHRITAD) -
BB BE5E YEETTHTH
Hih EXEREME - HMABE - HMAME
GHEFEIEERTLEZHARMANE
AAERREMER-



Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
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opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
BRENEE
Valuation of investment properties

REYFEZ1GE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significant judgments
and assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the fair value.

iy EEEEREABEATENSREAZHN
MEBE RPABNREADEZGEA ARRE
SHEE -

At 31 March 2022, the fair value of investment
properties was approximately HK$2,424 million (note
14 to the consolidated statement of financial position),
with a fair value gain recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$37 million (consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income).
M20223A31R & B W X QX F E LA B
2,424,000,0007 JT (47 & B %5k L &k B 5E14) - R
R A FEW =4 A37,000,000% T (A B &=
REMEEKER)

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair
value based on valuations performed by an independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers (the
"Valuers”). Details of the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EEEREMECATENIRBERBLAEREEM
BRI T(HEMDELZEEIR - HEMKRABZ
HEAERTEGAZHBEREEVBHRRME
1ARHE -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNTEERARETEE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BPHREMEEEZRBRTFEE:

Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the

valuations;
e WNEHEME BEEETEETHMEESIE D

EMBERE FIRACEEREK  EZ2HE®
B fEMRBZIZESARHBE:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers;

AIEGBEMONER  EIRFEINE:

Assessing the integrity of information provided
by management of the Group to the Valuers by
comparing, on a sample basis, details of rentals
to the respective underlying existing lease
agreements; and
FRAMBETALBEARAEN ZHEFE
marfh ESEEEEREGEMZENZ T
B Rk

Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used
by the Valuers and management of the Group
by comparing with relevant market information
with similar properties and assessing the
appropriateness of specific assumptions of the
properties by reference to character, location and
other individual factors which affect the valuation
of properties.
FRUERABEEMEEBATSERALLEEY
EMEGLBEIVESRS LEMEAMERE
EUTEEEBRZNES M - WA (GG ERD
k BEEBEEEERERAZEZEGAZEGEE -
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B A REN RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ME{E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor's report is Leung Chui Shan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEakAtEZETER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

2022 2021
20225 20214
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
B et FET FET
Revenue B 5
Sales of properties HEYE 248,576 275,319
Rental income HaBA 65,283 32,815
Interest income from loan financing REERBE ZFBERA 17,262 13,726
Building management BFER 19,663 1,622
350,784 323,382
Cost of properties sold and services HEME RRERBEK A
rendered (175,796) (223,382)
Gross profit EH 174,988 100,000
Other income, gains and losses Hibe A~ Wz K B 18 20,123 8,003
Distribution and selling expenses A (37,856) (29,205)
Administrative expenses 1THF X (101,374) (49,075)
Other expenses H 5 % (231) =
Write-back on properties held for sale ¢ [EI#F{EHE Y % = 300
Write-back (write-down) on properties % 8] (it ) 45 /5 ) & %
held for development for sale 24 1,629 (19,5672)
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of REMEZLNTFEED
investment properties Wz (& 18) 14 37,064 (85,640)
Loss on revaluation of intangible assets EF & E v B4 EE 22 (723) —
Net (loss) gain on changes in fair value of Z A FEFTABZZEF
financial assets at fair value through ZATEZE(EE) K
profit or loss F R (37,905) 80,462
Gain on changes in fair value of financial R &% & A FE J)\Tﬁ
assets at fair value through profit SRMEEZLATFEZBH U
or loss upon modification - 73,520
Release on disposal of debt instruments at i & B % F i 22 F B 5t A
fair value through other comprehensive ,J@%ﬁqﬁ ZEBIA
income (3,819) 970
Gain on settlement of loans receivable by # {4 % JE U B 20 2 W 2%
properties 21 35,846 —
(Impairment loss) reversal of impairment & & & 2 CRLE & 18) BEE B
loss on financial assets, net: BEFeE:
— Loans receivable —RKRER 21 (27,224) (47791)
— Debt instruments at fair value —?E’R?Tﬁ‘ﬂ\ﬁfﬁiﬁ
through other comprehensive WamzEHIA
income 19 (22,286) (306)
— Debt instruments at amortised cost ~ — FE R A B 2 B
TH 20 (1,090) 1,650
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of Ut B — KM B A T 2 B 3
a subsidiary = 16 1,676,151 —
Loss on remeasurement of interest ) qu E-HEBEARER Y
in an associate B8 15 (656,380) ==
Gain on bargain purchase at date of NG =14 R S AN R |
deemed acquisition of additional mEAEBENBELS
interest in an associate 15 — 58,471
Share of results of an associate DE—fBERREE (1,250) (53,799)
Share of results of a joint venture DE—EEERARER (5) (5)
Finance costs BEKK 7 (28,415) (19,022)
Profit before taxation BR B2 A4 A 8 1,027,243 18,961
Taxation charge (credit) HIAR X (%) 10 (17,743) 2,968
Profit for the year KEERH 1,009,500 21,929
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meEakEtZERKER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

2022 2021
2022 20214
NOTE HK$000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
Other comprehensive (expense) HttZ2EEX)HA
income
Items that may be reclassified BRI EN R B m o B -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Share of other comprehensive DME—FHEE AR 2 EM
(expense) income of an associate: 2HEHFEZ)BA:
Share of translation reserve of an SE—BHE AR
associate bE - 10,078
Share of fair value through other DIE—HBERRZ
comprehensive income reserve BAFEFAEM
of an associate 2 [ o 33 116
Reclassification of translation REALERE A #ER
reserve to profit or loss upon BEHNSIEEERZZ
deemed disposal of interest in bE A
associate (570) —
Reclassification of fair value through REABHERENRER
other comprehensive income KEFHTEEER
reserve to profit or loss upon BAFEFAEAM
deemed disposal of interest in 2EWRSEHE
associate (12,707) —
(13,244) 10,194
Exchange differences arising on BESINEBUBRREE
translation of financial statements ZERERE
of foreign operations 13,798 —
Change in fair value of debt BAFEFAREMEERE
instruments at fair value through ZEBIAZRAFEES
other comprehensive income (22,656) 747
Release on disposal of debt HERBREQTEST
instruments at fair value through Hth2EbW BB ITA
other comprehensive income 3,819 (970)
Impairment loss on debt instruments AABRZEAFERTA
at fair value through other Hi2EM s EBITA
comprehensive income included in ZREBEFE
profit or loss, net 22,286 306
Other comprehensive income for the year N4 & 7 Hith 2 U 25 4,003 10,277
Total comprehensive income for the year N8 7 & M W 5 4258 1,013,503 32,206
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: ~ ARFEE %7 (F518) 91k
Owners of the Company /NSEREDN 979,437 22,308
Non-controlling interests FEERER 30,063 (379)
1,009,500 21,929
Total comprehensive income (expense) AFEZ2EBA (FX) BEH 1k :
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RATHEE A 979,064 32,585
Non-controlling interests Rk ER 34,439 (379)
1,013,503 32,206
Basic and diluted earnings per share FREAR B ERF 12 HK$12.463% T HK$0.2578 7T
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e BRI R

At 31 March 2022 #2022%#3531H

2022 2021
2022F 20214F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
a3 FAET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEEFKE 13 203,234 107138
Right-of-use assets FAREE 1,082 493
Intangible assets BREE 22 7,063 500
Investment properties BEME 74 2,423,573 1,179,400
Interest in an associate — e AR R 15 — 808,718
Interest in a joint venture —HaER T%E 7 52 57
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABZZE®
profit or loss BE 18 43,274 211,446
Debt instruments at fair value through 3% A F{E T A H A 2 m@ Uk 25
other comprehensive income ZEBIE 79 - 4,030
Debt instruments at amortised cost REBHEKAFEZEBKITA 20 40,936 15,209
Loans receivable FEU & & 21 93,949 17280
Deferred tax assets BERBEEE 30 13,559 8,724
Deposits e 23 285 10,205
2,827,007 2,363,200
Current assets mMEEE
Properties held for development for BIELHEZRREME
sale 24 4,418,372 950,375
Properties held for sale BHIEHEWE 789,228 960,930
Trade and other receivables B 5K H e 5RIE 25 165,375 38,218
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABEZZE®
profit or loss BE 18 362,400 148,876
Loans receivable JE W E 3 21 152,031 125,736
Debt instruments at fair value through & A F TE SIAHMEE RS
other comprehensive income ZEBKTHRE 19 4,884 7740
Debt instrument at amortised cost REEKAGECERELA 20 15,436 —
Tax recoverable A U B 5 18 - 309
Bank balances and cash BITHEBRERE 26 184,425 308,222
6,092,151 2,540,406
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables a” 5 & H A0 T FE 27 153,104 41,047
Contract liabilities EHEE 27 16,534 6,276
Amount due to a non-controlling Fgﬁ—E?Hﬁ“ PRI R €5
shareholder 28 159,114 101,288
Tax payable e E 65,112 51,573
Lease liabilities HE&E 398 510
Secured bank borrowings BHEMRTEE 29 1,206,455 468,010
1,600,717 668,704
Net current assets REEESFE 4,491,434 1,871,702
Total assets less current liabilities EERBRTDEE 7,318,441 4,234,902
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2022 2021
20225 20214
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
783 FET FET

Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EREFIBAE 30 23,955 =
Secured bank borrowings BHRBRTEE 29 2,356,249 1,004,457
Lease liabilities HEAE 720 —
2,380,924 1,004,457
4,937517 3,230,445

Capital and reserves EARARFE
Share capital Bz A 31 7,399 8,220
Reserves @1 4,170,307 3,223,053

Equity attributable to owners of the RARBEBEAEGER

Company 4,177,706 3,231,273
Non-controlling interests FERER 759,811 (828)
4,937517 3,230,445

The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 264 were & = & pR2022FE6 4208 # /& R B E & &
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 5968 £ 2648 v & B % ®* - W H T 5
June 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: BEEREEE:

TSE WING CHIU RICKY KOON HO YAN CANDY

E RS BEAM
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREARE
Fair value
through
other
Share comprehensive  Property Non-
Share Share Capital option  Translation Special  Contributed income revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
RATE
HARKZE  MEER
Bax  ROEE RARG BRERE EABE  GAGBE  EHRY®  UERE BE  2iEd % FERER ait
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEr FEL FEL iz 2 iz 23 iz 2 Az Az FEr FEr FEL FEL T
fnoted) (note by fnote ¢) fnote d)
CEZ] (Ha (Hio (Hiéta)
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4718 9,132 27333 196,565 S (9,508) 9,800 220937 (404) 69872 2468543 3236270 (449) 3235821
Release on disposal of LEREREATE
debt instruments at SAEMEENS
fair value through other JEBIR
comprehensive income - - - - - — — (970) — - (970) - (970)
Change in fair value of BATEFALR
debt instruments at 2EREZER
fair value through other IAZATEES
comprehensive income - - - — — - - i - - 7 - 'y
Impairmentlossondebt ~ FFABHETZEAT
instruments at fair EiARHZE
value through other W BBIRL
comprehensive income HEEE
included in profit or loss - - — — - - - 306 - - 306 - 306
Share of other comprehensive 75— BB 4 27
income of an associate Eh2EkE - - - - 10,078 - - 116 - - 10,194 - 10,194
Profit (loss| for the year RERRTR(ER) - - - - - - - - = 22,308 22,308 (379 21929
Total comprehensive income 2K B 2 A
logenselortheyesr  (B1%) - = = - s = = 199 - onwe s B %06
Share repurchase and RAEBER TS
cancellation note 37/ (Hisn 912 (36,670) - - - - - - - - 37582) - (37582)
At 31 March 2021 R0NE3IAIA 8,220 234,663 196,565 - 570 9,800 220,937 (205) 69,872 2,490,851 3231213 (828) 3,230,445
Exchange differences arising £ 885 R HE
ontranslation of financial ~ HEEEZEH
statements of foreign B
operations - - - - 10,315 - - - - - 10,315 3483 13,798
Change in fair value of BATEIALR
debt instruments at 2ENHER
fair value through other IAZATEED
comprehensive income - - - - - - - (19,970) - - (19,970) (2,686) (22,656)
Release on disposal of HERRREATE
debt instruments at HARB2EKR
fair value through other ZBBIR
comprehensive income - - - - - - - 2,730 - - 2,730 1,089 3819
Impaimentlossondebt  FABEHZEAT
instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income HEER
included in profit or loss - - - - - - - 19,796 - - 19,796 2490 22,286
Share of other comprehensive 7 5B 4 AT A1
income of an associate 2ENE - - - - - - - 3 - - 3 - 3
Release on deemed disposal of 8254 1 (£ H £ B &
interest in associate L 3 - - - - (570) - - (12,707) - - (13.21) - (13.211)
Profit for the year REREF - = = = = - - - - 979431 979,437 30,063 1,009,500
Total comprehensive income  KEE 2 AR A
(expense] for the year (B%) = = - - 9,745 - - (10,118) - 979431 979,064 34439 1013503
Share repurchase and R
cancellation fnote 37/ ) (821) (32,391) - - - - - - - - (33212) - (33212)
Acquisition of a subsidiary &t N
(note 16) (Ha216) - - - - - - - - - - - 726,200 726,200
Recognition of equity-settled BRRELENRA
share-based payment BERER - - - 581 - - - - - - 581 - 581
At 31 March 2022 R202E3A318 7399 202,212 196,565 581 10,315 9,800 220,937 (10,323) 69,872 3,470,288 4177706 759,81 4,937517
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes:

(a)

(c)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the
companies forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
prior to the listing of the Company's shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August
2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group includes (i) the gain
on revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group, (i) share
of the gain on revaluation of leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment of the Group’s former associate, both arising from the
transfer of the Group’s leasehold properties or former associate's
leasehold land and property, plant and equipment to investment
properties in prior years, net of (iii) the transfer to accumulated
profits upon deemed disposal of subsidiaries in prior years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

LS

(@) AEEZBRARHERKRENR20065F10H K
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
nv_\ é IE: ﬁjﬁ% '%%

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

2022 2021
2022 20214F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RELLEH HERE
Profit before taxation B& 5% A g A 1,027,243 18,961
Adjustments for: TR
Interest income S A (22,425) (15,727)
Interest expense FMBERAX 28,415 19,022
Depreciation of property, plant and M¥E - -BERRBZINE
equipment 8,167 4,664
Depreciation on right-of-use assets CRABREECHE 673 803
Dividend income from listed FHEREZBRERA
investments (10,825) (1,928)
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value BRENMECZRNFEE
of investment properties (W2 ) B 18 (37,064) 85,640
Gain on settlement of loan IMEERNDERBER
receivable by properties 2 W (35,846) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME BEREHEZ
and equipment Y 25 (382) —
Gain on bargain purchase of I — B & AR BB ME
additional interest in an associate 2 & B W (1,676,151) -
Write-back on properties held for BESELEYE
sale - (300)
(Write-back) write-down on (BEMBFIELEERE
properties held for development )%
for sale (1,629) 19,5672
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value BAFHEFABZ 2SR
of financial assets at fair value EEZAVEEYES
through profit or loss (M zx) 37,905 (80,462)
Gain on changes in fair value of Risk B IZ A FEEFTA
financial assets at fair value BRsemEEY
through profit or loss upon NYEEHH =
modification - (73,520)
Loss (gain) on disposal of debt HERRFEFAELMD
instruments at fair value through 2HMEZEBIAZ
other comprehensive income BB M) 3,819 (970)
Impairment loss on loans BREFRZREERFE
receivable, net 27,224 4779
Impairment loss on debt BRAFEFAEMEZE
instruments at fair value through WamzEBILAZ
other comprehensive income BEEE 22,286 306
Impairment loss (reversal of REBHEK A EZ
impairment loss) on debt BERLTAZ BEEBISE
instruments at amortised cost (REEBEED) 1,090 (1,650)
Share of results of an associate DE—BEHERARES 1,250 53,799
Gain on bargain purchase of W iE — M & ARl g
additional interest in an associate Ewm B EKE - (58,471)
Share of results of a joint venture DIEEERNREE 5 5
Loss on remeasurement of interest EFFE—MBELR
in associate Bm BB 656,380 -
Loss on revaluation of intangible BREECEMREBE
assets 723 —
Recognition of equity-settled share- BRABRELELRR A
based payment HHE R 581 ==
Effect of unrealised exchange RAERERZE /T E
difference — %)
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nV_\é EE ﬁiﬁ % 'lsa%

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

2022 2021
20224 20214
NOTE HK$000 HK$'000
a3 FET FET
Operating cash flows before movements 2B & ¢ HH 2 KL B LR E
in working capital 31,439 17540
Increase in properties held for BIELERRELN
development for sale (658,441) (67,202)
Decrease in properties held for sale BFELEME R D 171,702 221,142
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at X A FEFABZE 2
fair value through profit or loss A E E L) R (13,531) 46,624
Decrease (Increase) in trade and B 5 % H b B U RIE R 2 (35 )
other receivables 1,540 (29,051)
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable [ W & Zx (3% hn) 5l (12,795) 45,944
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K H b FE 1 FRIBHE AN 6,415 2,221
Increase in contract liabilities BB EEN 10,258 6,276
Cash (used in) from operations e (FTA) ﬁfr Be (463,413) 243,494
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREBNER (5,644) (1,682)
Dividend received B2k S 10,825 1,926
Interest received from loan financing REEXRENEKFE 17,262 13,726
Net cash (used in) from operating (AR REREEHHEF
activities (440,970) 257464
Cash flows from investing activities REREFDH L HEME
Acquisition of financial assets at fair WEEATENABRZ
value through profit or loss SRMEE (302,342) (160,192)
Net cash outflows on acquisition of a WE—FABAR 2
subsidiary RentFaR 16 (111,852) —
Purchase of debt instruments at BARBHEHNAGTEL
amortised cost BHITAE (42,258) =
Purchase of intangible assets BABVEE (10,733) =
Purchase of debt instruments at fair BABAFEFARMEE
value through other comprehensive a2 EETIA
income (10,667) (15,322)
Purchase of property, plant and BAME - BELEE
equipment (1,924) (196)
Addition of investment properties EmMEEYWE (1,433) —
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEEATENABRZ
assets at fair value through profit or TREEZMBHRIA
loss 183,312 73,412
Proceeds from maturity of debt BATEFAEMLEZERE
instruments at fair value through ZEBTARBABHE
other comprehensive income 31,204 33,843
Proceeds from disposal of investment ~ HEREWE 2 AEZKE
properties 19,517 —
Other interest received H At 2 W & 8,905 8,710
Proceeds from disposal of intangible HEEFEEZHBR
assets 3,447 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BERZEZ
plant and equipment FT18 5K 1R 931 ==
Proceeds from disposal of debt HERBHEK A=
instruments at amortised cost BRLAZF{BFE - 21,000
Deposits paid for acquisition of WENBARXNMNE:
subsidiaries - (10,000)
Acquisition of additional interest in an W iE —FE e A e IMER
associate - (4,969)
Net cash used in investing activities ARIRBES  RE FHE (233,893) (63,714)

103




Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

2022 2021
2022 20214F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cash flows from financing activities REMEEFH REeRE
Bank borrowings raised EXRTEE 1,830,377 830,329
Advance from a non-controlling —IEERBRIBT
shareholder 57,826 10,940
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (1,252,012) (786,576)
Repurchase of shares BEER (33,212) (37582)
Interest paid ERHLE (51,800) (29,743)
Repayment of lease liabilities EBEEHERE (656) (816)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities 8 &8 (X)) Bt & BB 2 R & F 5 550,523 (13,448)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash 3R & R ERIIE € (5l 4) 18 o0 F 58
equivalents (124,340) 190,302
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of £#HE & &R R &
the year 308,222 117920
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  SMEE R & &) 7 2 & 543 -
Cash and cash equivalents atend of the FXRE L RERIE ST -
year, represented by bank balances BIRTEREE S
and cash 184,425 308,222
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; the
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
and joint venture are set out in notes 43 and 17, respectively.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first

time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period

beginning on or after 1 April 2021 for the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 2021

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

105

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

—BEH
KEBBEEEAERAR(ARRA] K
"ﬁ&EIMT%"ﬂ%ﬁ$%7%F$EIJ)EA
BREFMNIREREZBRR
ﬁﬂx@&% yﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂj(fﬁw
RFADFER L/ ARG M=
it R FEEEMBNFERIAA
BRI —EHE -

mepBmiReRAET (AT IE
BB ARBZNEER

KRBT — MK EER AT - NAF
ZEEMBRARILRGE R EERSE
ZEBE DR EH N M E43K%17 o

RS T E B R R
B ([ & 38 B A 4R 252 8] )

RAFEBRBIER 2 EERTER
B H R E R

ﬁA$¢F‘* REBECEHXNERBREE

efre((EAetmAe)A
%Tﬁlliﬁf RIBEBY IS MELER - 5
REGEMBHRERMNE  ZEEEF]
B R2021F4A1B Kk 2 B FIIA ) &
[ AP 58 &l A Rk :

BRERBHREENE 20198 KBS HIAE

165 B 3T A )
EEFBREENE 2021F68308%H
1657 BRI A 20198 M A S /A
BHREAE

BEEMBREELN FIREERE
Eo% - BEEH EEE
EBIE39%

BEMIEREED
F7% BAUBR
HEAFEARR
BERBEREER
F16REFTA



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

The Group also applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the
International Accounting Standards Board issued in June
2021 which clarified the costs an entity should include
as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS
9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments relate to changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as a result of
interest rate benchmark reform, specific hedge accounting
requirements and the related disclosure requirements
applying HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.

As at 1 April 2021, the Group has several financial liabilities
with interests indexed to benchmark rates that will or may
be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The following
table shows the total amounts of these outstanding
contracts. The amounts of financial liabilities are shown at
their carrying amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS
9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS

16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
(Continued)

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

RAFEBRBER 2 EERTER
PR mEER (#)

HREEBHBEREERFEIN &
BEIERE399 FAEMER
ERRE7H  BEEOBHEER
FAEREBHYEHEERFE16%
TR FIEBEERE — F_EER ]
B EE)

Hong Kong
dollars
(“HKD")
Hong Kong
Interbank
Offered

Rate
(“HIBOR")
BBzl
ERRITEAE
FE(EBR
TRERED
HK$000
FAET

BEMRITIEER

Secured bank borrowings

The amendments have had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements as none of the relevant contracts has
been transitioned to the relevant replacement rates during
the year. The Group will apply the practical expedient in
relation to the changes in contractual cash flows resulting
from the interest rate benchmark reform for bank borrowings
measured at amortised cost.

As at 31 March 2022, for variable rate secured bank
borrowings that are linked to HIBOR and London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR"), the Group had confirmed with the
relevant counterparties that HIBOR and LIBOR will continue
to be used up to maturity. The management anticipates that
the interest rate benchmark reform will have no material
impact on the Group's risk exposure.

107

1,472,467

HREREARAFEREF RSN
AERMNE BMZEERIALENER
EHMBHRRENTE AEEEHEE
RBEANAFENRITEEZMEKE
ERFEEYWNANREREHRAE
REEX -

2022638310 » W R HEF B R T
EEFERBIRITEAERE (B
WITRAEREDEBH 2 ZEHEBR
TEE AEBCEHREBERZIEHFRE
R EABRITAERBRBHIEITHE
EFREBEETAEINHA - EEE
TEH - FIREAEREBE TS HALE
ZRBAEELEERNTE -



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

F&EFH%M R BRUR &%
I (TEBTHHREER )

TH _}ﬁ#

B AR B e R 4 2 FTRT R AR 4E
A ERMEREER

7% 5 30 4% 42 A0 08 P AR A B 4 R A
M2 RASE AT BB B RS2 :

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in

the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

()  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date.

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’'s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
“Financial Instruments: Presentation”.
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e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(Continued)

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's right to defer settlement
for certain borrowings are subject to compliance with certain
financial covenants within 12 months from the reporting
date. Such borrowings were classified as non-current as
the Group met such covenants at 31 March 2022. Pending
clarification on the application of relevant requirements of
the amendments, the Group will further assess whether
application of the amendments will have an impact on
the classification of these borrowings. The impacts on
application, if any, will be disclosed in the Group's future
consolidated financial statements.

Except for as disclosed above, the application of the

amendments will not result in reclassification of the Group’s
other liabilities as at 31 March 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGESUBHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

31 MAUGREMBHRREE

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties, certain intangible assets and
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values or revalued amounts, at the end of the reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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MAUGEVMBBREERE
B EEw®

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31 REREHBRREEW)

financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”
and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGEVBHREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EgTERE®
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31 REREUMBRREEW)
financial statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair o M B®mEMES - RIEBEA

value measurements are categorised into Level 1, FTEHFEGAZABREREER

2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to LN ‘;T;ﬁé BATEFECEE

the fair value measurements are observable and the M AFEFERNSBERE IR

significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement F2MBEIH - F T

in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in e FIRBABEBNITEA
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that AENEEREBERE
the entity can access at the measurement date; B MECRERARE)

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices o E2HE AR BIE T B
included within Level 1, that are observable for WETAZREIN - ATEE
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; LEEBENEEXAE:
and &

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the o ZEIMMAEBEENBEBEAN
asset or liability. TAIE R A

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FESHEE

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there

are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a
single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude
cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax
liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of
activities and assets is determined not to be a business
and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to investment properties which
are subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise
to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

115

REEHBEENE
A 38 1 55 /0 BB a5t

AEBANEREEZEERSH
AR EETAENETRERS
HARBLHMKEBN— %75
EBNEERTBNEBH AT
- EBAREENFTARF
B R BB & £ 5 @ 7] 3 Bl &
EX—HBEUAFBEESY - Al
HeagPRAHA -FETHRE
ETERASRFRAS B
EFFSHEEMRELERSFH
EEMFENELNEE - &
HashERAR - RIREZAR
BMEETEBREBMARE
-

EEWE

EAEBRSTERER —
MEENAGBR AEEBBEH
BEEBRRESANQAFELEDE
MARFERANETREFE
MREVENEREE /R
BE BRLEIAMEHSER
AHAEEMARENEE  BE
BERNBERBEANRAER
FE D B EE A A & A& E A
BE HEXZTEELBEL
&EBERBRE -



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an assets and a liability in
the “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements” (replaced by the “Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting” issued in October
2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired
leases were new leases at the acquisition
date. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquire prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income and measured under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” would be accounted
for on the same basis would be required if the Group
had disposed directly of the previously held equity
interest.

118

RECHXEEWE(#)

EB B (&)

BELNEEARE KBYHRZ
EEERESSBELKRES
ZHERARBHR ZBAEaR
(WA zRNEBNKBERSE
BBAHENEERAREARZ
FERBZEEFE - HEEN
HEE - CRBABNEER
FrEAEaBEzZFEBEREEN
B -WEBHR 2EMEERE
BHZERRBBTZAERA
WiEs R A FEMAZ
A Bl BEENRER
FER A — B ERE WS -

FERERARNBERERT
FAANRLOIEERENE AR
BEFEZREERN VKR
FE 4z B fE o A W BB 0T 2 T A
BEFERIBPRLIE
AEHIURTFEAE-FER
ENEEEREZERIFHINER
EEHR -

ELEAHOBBREKE AR
BARMBAWRBED R ER
aAEBERRIASEIREG =
BOBHEFAERAFE"
IWHER M E A R Y s s e 18 (1
BEEEBRATHARSERHE
2K  MAKEEEEN
SRR A RS AT
POE 2 T U R PR R IR B
FEEVHMEENFORISE T
HIGHEM & E B 8 AT 5K
BrIwEGsMEEZE28E B
EREREEANR -



KEBREEARAT

2021/224 ¥R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in
net assets of the associate/joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESHBE®)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration for (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The Group recognises revenue from property sales at
a point in time when legal title of property has been
transferred to customer, being when the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the

property.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGESUBHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EETHERE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FESHBE®
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFEHZEFXEE (&)
(Continued)
Over time revenue recognition: measurement F—ERERAEREEEE
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a FTETETKIBXE (FH)#E
performance obligation Z
Output method ) 1%
The progress towards complete satisfaction of a EEEKBEHEEINEEREMN
performance obligation is measured based on output BHEAEERAGE NEEE
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis FTEESEEBLAERNE R
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or SREEHRENBETEFEN
services transferred to the customer to date relative to Fermmk RN EBERNEMRE
the remaining goods or services promised under the ITHREEE  HEERBAE
contract, that best depict the Group's performance in REZEEmRBEG#ES
transferring control of goods or services. HHELIER
As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to EBEBNEREZ  BAE
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly BRYREARNERLZSE T
with the value of the Group's performance completed M EBRNEEMEE L E
to date, the Group recognises revenue in the amount MNeRE AEBEASERER
to which (including building management services) the BERZENHE(BEEFEERS)
Group has the right to invoice. HREFETE -
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract S ECIE R OR:0b: - BN
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those BMEEGHMNEENAELRAER
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a HEPHEITNEHNFTEERNRKRA
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract MABRMEFEH  MHITEE
had not been obtained. H oo
The Group recognises property sales commissions fMTEER AT UR B BL SR A+ B AR &
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The BEWEHEHEERABEE -
asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or Nt A RN EEREE R
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the GMEREFPFEBREEMSIR
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to ZEMSRBHEEEIFEEIE
which the assets relate. = o
The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing fisf I F A AR — F A 5T 2 5
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs EEE ASERATIT R
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or B2 MBS E KA NESE
loss within one year. aBH o
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESHBE®)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability; and

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property or inventory
as a separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position. Right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property and inventory are
presented within “investment properties”, “properties
held for development for sale” and “properties held for
sale” respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEFHEXR®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate

line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGESUBHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EETEBER @)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESHBE®)

Leases (Continued) HE#E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEFERBAHN(E)
Lease modifications HEBNR

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

HMELEATER  AEESKHE
EEREA—RERFHEAK:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease e HENABREMFER—
by adding the right to use one or more underlying HRZEEEEENET
assets; and REMEESHE: &

e the consideration for the leases increases by an e MHEREHEMMWISHEETR
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price (] £ 4% K #) J& S (B AR AB A -

I H % B ERETEM
BENHBARREES

for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect

the circumstances of the particular contract. LIWIF M ©
For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a HRARFAEBHEMNHE S
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, W AREEERIBEEEFTHE
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease EMHEHRITHEANEITAE
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised HABM BT ITIR R E LS
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the FIMBEENFGETIR  REAE
effective date of the modification. MEKREERE REHFTHE
HEBRE -

AEEBBHAHEEREEE
ETHERAERGHERARE

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the

relevant right-of-use asset. TEHEE -

When the modified contract contains one or more BEREITAEHEE —Iﬁiﬁlﬁgﬁ
additional lease components, the Group allocates the SN & 48 B ED AR EE R
consideration in the modified contract to each lease %M & 48 E’J iEE f@
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone 1 B EER TAQO‘:F' HRE D
price of the lease component. The associated EEXHEMBAKE D o 1B ?ﬂ
non-lease components are included in the respective EAKTDTARENHEER
lease components. MEB D o
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EETHER e

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Rental income which is derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business is presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

130

HE (&)
A& EERL A E)
AREHEHERE

PRBATREER SR ESRE
BEMBEHREERNFEIR AR
WMHIR R FEE - 6 5#
REHAFENHERE A
HAMBEIIEENK -

MA &R

B R A R SRR — B
MEEAHNZRENEERHE
ERBAR BEBBRKR N
MAOMBERENEERR -

AEBBERERBRBGLER
EmEhEAFEEET SR
BE - YHKEREERBNE
MENKEAHEN KRB
HENHEHENROH - -

S

REREERNEEERR 2WB
WRE - AR BEBZEEEN
SNEEE(SNE)ETZRHTIIER
SRR RTERER - RRE
HIR - UONESIEZERIREE
SEEBZRITEREHRBRE -
BRAFEIERAINEIEZ
FEMEBRATEEEER
ZBRITEXREHBLE -RESL
RARAINE S EZ FFERIAR
TETEHBRE -



KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEFHEXR®

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income, gains and losses”.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwiill.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interest in a joint venture, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEFHEXR®

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxation entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

If there is a transfer from investment property carried at
fair value to owner-occupied property evidence by the
commencement of owner occupation, the property’s
deemed cost for subsequent accounting shall be its fair
value at the date of change in use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to accumulated profits.

For a transfer from investment property carried at fair
value to owner-occupied property or inventories, the
property’'s deemed cost for subsequent accounting
shall be its fair value at the date of change in use.
An entity shall transfer a property from investment
property when, and only when, there is a change in
use, such as commencement of development with a
view to sale.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Crypto assets held by the Group are classified as
intangible assets in the scope of HKAS 38 “Intangible
Assets”. Crypto assets are initially measured at cost
and subsequently carried at a revalued amount.

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of
crypto assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognise in profit or loss, in which case the increase is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of a crypto asset is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the investment revaluation reserve relating to
a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to accumulated
profits.

Other intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is
acquired separately is carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised. An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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3.2 FESHBE®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwill

As the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to relevant cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (for
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating
units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately to profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHER®)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (for
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior year. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale which are
intended to be sold upon completion of development,
are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost
model in accordance with the accounting policies of
right-of-use assets, properties held for development for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Properties held for development for sale are transferred
to properties for sale upon completion.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and
are classified under current assets. They are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business is presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost
and debt instruments subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from
the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z£20224#3531A 1- £ &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as
a result of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
All other changes in the carrying amount of
these debt instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of FVTOCI reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying amounts
of these debt instruments. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any interest but excludes any
dividend earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “net gain/loss on changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL” line item.

Film right investment is the Group’s investment
in a film production project which entitles the
Group to share certain percentage of income
to be generated from the related film based on
the Group's investment portion as specified in
respective film right investment agreement but
the Group has no control nor joint control over the
investment. Film right investment is classified as
financial assets at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss ("ECL") model (including trade and
other receivables, loans receivable, debt instruments at
FVTOCI, debt instruments at amortised cost and bank
balances) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and lease receivables.
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KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

For all other assets, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the borrower or
debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the borrower’s or debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
borrower or debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the borrower
or debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the borrower’s or debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers the credit risk of the debt instrument
mainly with reference to external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z£20224#3531A 1- £ &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REFRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EETBER @)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)
SETAGR)
SR EEE)

Impairment of financial assets subject to BREBAVBWEEAEIR
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 ETRETENEREER
(Continued) BE(&)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Definition of default iy BHTE

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z£20224#3531A 1- £ &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.
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KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flow used for determining
the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used
in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.
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e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of loans receivable
and debt instruments at amortised cost where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account. For investments in
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve without reducing the carrying
amount of these debt instruments. Such amount
represents the changes in the FVTOCI reserve in
relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAGESUBHRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EETHER e

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGANBBEEERT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHHRE®
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESHBE®)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder and
secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the state-sponsored pension scheme
operated by the People's Republic of China (“PRC")
government or the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to

employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REGRESUKBEREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHBE e
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

32 FESFHBE®

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured at
fair value of the equity instruments at the date of grant.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the date of grant without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will be eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group's investment properties portfolios
and concluded that the Group's investment properties located
in Hong Kong and Singapore are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred
taxation arising from these investment properties located in
Hong Kong and Singapore, the management determined that
the presumption that these investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered through sale is not
rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC,
the management concluded that they are being held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in determining the Group's deferred taxation arising from
investment properties located in the PRC, management
determined that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sale is rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Valuation of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
key inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers to perform valuation of the
Group’s investment properties. At the end of the reporting
period, the management works closely with the independent
firm of qualified professional property valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key
inputs for fair value measurements. \Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.
Information about the valuation technigues and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of the Group's investment
properties is disclosed in note 14. Whilst the Group considers
valuations of the Group's investment properties are the best
estimates, the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in
greater market volatility depending on how the Covid-19
pandemic may progress and evolve, which have led to higher
degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the
current year.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties
held for development for sale/properties held for
sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the Group's properties held for development for sale/
properties held for sale, which are situated in Hong Kong
and amounted to HK$5,207,600,000 at 31 March 2022
(2021: HK$1,911,305,000), with reference to current market
environment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may exceed
its net realisable value. Appropriate reversal of previously
recognised write-down for estimated irrecoverable amount
is recognised in profit or loss when the net realisable
value increases. The estimates of net realisable value are
determined based on the best available information and with
reference to valuations made, less the anticipated costs to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales. Whilst
the Group considers valuations of the Group's properties
held for development for sale/properties held for sale are
the best estimates, the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has
resulted in greater market volatility depending on how the
Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve, which have led
to higher degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations
in the current year. Actual realised amount may differ from
estimates, resulting in a decrease or an increase in the net
realisable value of the properties held for development
for sale/properties held for sale and additional write-down
or reversal of write-down previously recognised may be
required.
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Revenue represents the aggregate of the amounts received
or receivable in respect of rental income and building
management from property investment, interest income from
loan financing and property sales from property development

during the year.

Revenue from sales of properties was recognised at a
point in time when the completed residential property
was transferred to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtained the control of the completed residential
property and the Group had present right to payment and
collection of the consideration was probable. The Group
received deposits from customers pursuant to the payment
terms of the sale and purchase agreement. The transaction
price allocated to the remaining unsatisfied performance
obligations was HK$64,569,000 (2021: HK$95,259,000) as
at 31 March 2022 and the expected timing of unrecognising

revenue is within one year.

For building management services, the Group bills a fixed
rate for services provided on a monthly basis and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right
to issue the invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value to the customers of Group’s performance completed.
The Group acts as principal and is primarily responsible for
providing the building management services to the property
owners, who simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefit provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs, the Group recognises the fee received or
receivable from property owners as its revenue over time
and all related building management costs as its cost of
services. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group
has right to invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is

not disclosed.

Rental income and interest income from loan financing
fall outside the scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from
contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2022

amounted to HK$268,239,000 (2021: HK$276,841,000).
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Information reported to the Group's chief executive officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"),
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered
or services provided. This is also the basis of organisation,
whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products and services.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are (i) property investment,
(i) property development, (iii) investment in securities and
others and (iv) loan financing.

(a) Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &
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(a) DEBEXRFEREE

BEENERDMEA DA EEZE

results by operating and reportable segment: ¥BREEZHTWOT:
For the year ended 31 March 2022 B £2022F3H31H 1L F&E
Investment
Property Property in securities Loan
investment development andothers  financing Consolidated
BER
NERE  WERZE  HHRE  BXRRE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FET FEn FET FEn
(note)
(#:2)
SEGMENT REVENUE NHE%E
External sales MREE 84,946 248,576 - 17262 350,784
RESULTS ES
Segment results PHEE 85,582 25,180 (73,863) 10,058 46,957
Unallocated corporate income N AN LGN 592
Unallocated corporate expenses AR RARY (10,176)
Other expenses A% (231)
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisiton Y8 — I B AR 2 &
of a subsidiary Bl s 1,676,151
Loss on remeasurement of interestin -~ E 75t € —HEH L N7
an associate EREE (656,380)
Share of results of an associate HMi-EBEARER (1,250)
Share of results of a joint venture PE-RAERREE (5)
Finance costs BERK (28,415)
Profit before taxation BEBATRA 1,027243
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z£20224#3531A 1- £ &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEF @)
(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a) DEPEXBERESE D)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 B E2021F3A31HIL FE
Investment
Property Property  in securities Loan
investment  development  and others financing ~ Consolidated
FER
NERE  WERER HtRE  ERRE ke

HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKSOOO  HKS0OO
AT TET TET TET TET

(note)
(i)
SEGMENT REVENUE NHERE
External sales MREE 34,337 275,319 — 13,726 323,382
RESULTS ES
Segment results PHEE (71,954) (875) 153,865 (38,352) 42,684
Unallocated corporate income N WA/NCI LGN 307
Unallocated corporate expenses EARIDART (9,675)
Gain on bargain purchase of additional Ut & — R B & 2 R 58 41
interest in an associate ERERNE
U g 58,471
Share of results of an associate ME-BAHERAEE 53,799)
Share of results of a joint venture M-HAEERFEE (5)
Finance costs BEKA (19,022)
Profit before taxation BEATRA 18,961
Note: Rental income generated from properties held for Wi REFELEEREME A
development for sale (included in property development WA (BREEMEERE D I
segment) was included in property investment MEBRREMERE D
segment. A o
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Segment revenue and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)

Segment results represent the profit earned or loss
incurred by each segment without allocation of share
of results of an associate and a joint venture, gain on
bargain purchase on acquisition of a subsidiary, loss
on remeasurement of interest in an associate, gain on
bargains purchase of additional interest in an associate,
finance costs and unallocated corporate income and
expenses. There are asymmetrical allocations to
operating segments because the Group allocates all fair
value changes of financial assets at FVTPL to segment
of investment in securities and others without allocating
the certain financial instruments to those segment
assets. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by operating and reportable segment:

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

(a) DEERBERELAE

B F20214F3531H 1F FE ()

DHEEREXRS D BHRD 2 &
MEEZEE BEFREREED
e iE—EEERRR—HEL
NAEIZEE  WE—HHBAF
LEBWEBRE  EFFE—
MEE A ArEZ 2EE - W
—HBERARBEIIER ZEE
hElE MEXNARED R
ZREBMARAE - EEDEZ
MEETAHEE IR HWITEA
AEBSEEAFEFAER
Zé%ﬂégz/\ifﬁﬁﬁgﬂipg
FREMEED I WRDE
*E’\/fﬁﬁlﬂiéig/\jﬁﬁé °
MlitquiF"JI;z@%/?%'ﬁ%%%

ERERSBEERRAMZ
%%

(b) 2HEEREE

BREBERZFOBAONMAKE 2
EE&EEQDT-

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Segment assets DEPEE

Property investment % ¥RE 2,448,508 1,229,311
Property development YEERE 5,451,292 1,921,541
Investment in securities and others iﬂ#&ﬁ’r@?ﬁ & 411,691 338,192
Loan financing EXEE 252,175 169,224
Total segment assets DEEERE 8,563,666 3,658,268
Interest in an associate —EH g A — 808,718
Interest in a joint venture —@EA & SWNEIE 52 57
Tax recoverable B qE ?R bzl — 309
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRR S 184,425 308,222

Unallocated financial assets at FVTPL & 5 fid 2 & A FE T A
Baze@mEE 63,984 =
Unallocated corporate assets EOWRZ AR EBE 107,031 128,032
Consolidated assets HaARE 8,919,158 4,903,606
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEER @
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) 7HEEREE®)
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Segment liabilities DEBE

Property investment L= 46,567 134,925
Property development EERE 245,895 9,048
Investment in securities and others 5‘%&%1@ w®E 11,544 882
Loan financing EXEE 13,441 2,590
Total segment liabilities NEBERRE 317,447 147445
Secured bank borrowings BEHEMEBITEE 3,562,704 1,472,467
Tax payable FET B IR 65,112 51,573
Unallocated corporate liabilities £l /NI =F 36,378 1,676
Consolidated liabilities mEAaE 3,981,641 1,673,161

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances ROMERREERSHTRME

and allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than interest in an associate,
interest in a joint venture, unallocated financial
assets at FVTPL, tax recoverable, bank balances

and cash and other assets.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and
reportable segments other than secured bank
borrowings, tax payable and other liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZEHER @)
(c) Other segment information (c) HftpHEHR
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Bl £2022F3H31H I FE
Investment
Property Property in securities Loan
investment development andothers  financing Unallocated Consolidated
25K

NXRE  WRRR  HRRE  GREE E7E 4]
HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOOD
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Amounts included in the measure of ~ ERAENTEERHBE

segment assets or segment results; B fEZ4E:
Capital addtions BREN N4 1834 10,779 - 40 54,000
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BERRECHE

equipment 4,047 3513 17 - 590 8,167
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZNE - - 563 110 = 673
Gain on changes in fair value of RENE ATEENE

investment properties (37,064) - - - - (37064)
Net loss on changes in fair value of BATEFABR 2 2BE

financial assets at FVTPL ExATEEDER

#E - - 37905 - - 37905

Gain on settlement of loans receivable  £R M EENER 2 W%

by properties - - - (35,846) - (35,846)
Loss on revaluation of intangible assets  EFEE EftEE - - 723 - - 123
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net M E 2 REFEFE - - - 2204 - 21224
Impairment loss on debt instruments at - FATEFALB2ENS

FvTOCl LEBRIAZAEER - - 2,286 - - 2,286
Reversal of impairment loss on other R EHM A B2 EHER

debt instruments at amortised cost TEZREERRR - - 1,090 = = 1,090
Impairment loss on other receivables, b ENFEREEEFE

net - - 3819 - - 3819
Write-back on properties held for BOBENERERNE

development for sale - (1,629) - - - (1,629)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEF @)
(c) Other segment information (Continued) (c) HfvpHBER#)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 B E2021F3A31HIL FE
Investment
Property Property  in securities Loan
investment  development  and others financing ~ Unallocated ~ Consolidated
B5R
NERE  MERE EbRE  BRAE ERE ag
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included inthe measureof ~ BREESHEEUSTE
segment assets or segment results: B EC2E
Capital additions EREM - - - - 19 19%
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BERRECNE
equipment 1,601 3,012 28 - 2 4,664
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZIE = 29 518 56 = 803
Loss on changes in fair value of RENE/ATEEDER
investment properties 85,640 — - - — 85,640
Net gain on changes in fair value of BATEFABR 2 2BE
financial assets at FVTPL EZRTEESNE
#E - = (80,462) - - (80.462)
Gain on change in fair value of financial -~ RN RATEFARS
assets at FVTPL upon modification LEBEEILTREE
i - - (73520) = - (73520)
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net UM EH 2 FiEBIEFE - - - 47791 - 47791
Impairment loss on debt instrumentsat~ FATEHA L2 ERS
FvTOCI LEBRIAZAEER - - 306 - - 306
Reversal of impairment loss on other K EHM A B2 EHER
debt instruments at amortised cost IR REEERR - - (1,650) - - (1,650]
Write-back on properties heldforsale BB i E4% - (300) - = - 300)
Write-down on properties held for WHBELERRNE
development for sale — 19572 — — — 19,572
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong (place
of domicile), the PRC and Singapore.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on
location of its customers for segments and information
about its non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets and financial instruments) by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

D EE R
(d) HEER

AEBZEEDURBECER
) RERFINE -

AEEZOBEPAEME D
MRBIREPZEXBRIRE
EZREMBISZERBEE
TEREEHRBEEERERT
B)BERMT:

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REIREEZEEE ERBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20225 20214
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong BEBEREH)

(place of domicile) 320,655 323,382 2,063,541 2,096,306
PRC H 27,394 == 387,783 e
Singapore 03 2,735 — 183,680 =

350,784 323,382 2,635,004 2,096,306

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group

(e) EBEFEFZEH

REBEEFEERAEBRRER
HBBI0ORALNEPZEXER

is as follows: m
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A EEA = 44,079
Customer B! EFB 65,000 =
Customer C' BPEC 43,510 —
Customer D! BED 42,648 —

U Revenue from property development.
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®MERA
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Interest on bank borrowings RITBEZHE 59,208 32,370
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGEZHNE 27 45
59,235 32,415
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of i : IR & BIRE E R AN E ANk
qualifying assets x| (30,820) (13,393)
28,415 19,022
8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. ER¥iAn=A
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Profit before taxation has been arrived BB AR F 2
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 9(a)) EE= e (#:790) 11,743 7320
Other staff costs, including retirement  E B T oA - 8 38R K 4E F
benefits scheme contributions BE TN 45,878 21,997
Share-based payments (excluding URHBERCTHR(TERIEE
directors) %) 349 =
Total staff costs B TRk A 4 57,970 29,317
Auditor’s remuneration % 85 B BN & 5,263 2,269
Cost of properties recognised as EERAERIZ 2WERK
expense 171,202 221,087
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEAZREBEZTE
equipment 8,167 4,664
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEECZNE 673 803
and after crediting: RBEEA:
Dividend income from listed KB LEMRE 2R EWA
investments 10,825 1,928
Government grants (note) BRAS 5 B) (A7 2t) — 1,897
Interest income from BRI AKE
Debt instruments at amortised cost R#ENTFTEZ
EHEITA 2,434 1,140
Debt instruments at FVTOCI TE’&$TE SFAEMET
Wz EBIAE 2,149 670
Bank and others RITR EH A 580 191
Gain on disposal of properly plantand ~ HEWE - BE & & E 2 K
equipment 382 —
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 8. BRBiAGEF @)
Note: Bt 77 -
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised 2021F3A3MBLEFE AEBER IR
government grants of HK$1,897,000 (2022: nil) in respect of 201978 M 7% & m H B R B 2 N B
Covid-19-related subsidies, which were related to Employment 1,897,000/ 7T (20224 : #&) « Jh B & B K
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong Government. NARHEZIRIUFEIFE BB -
DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'SAND 9. EZE - HFETHARKEES
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS ZE
(a) Information regarding directors’ (a) EEAZEEMES2EHR
emoluments
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company H E2022F3A3IB L FEFEAR
for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows: AIESEMEFBNT:
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
BrES BUkHnES
Koon
Tse Wing HoYan  JongKoon  TsuiChun  LauChak
ChiuRicky  Lui Yuk Chu Candy Sang Kong Hang Total
i@ EiK EAR R4 BhER 28 an
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$'000
FET FEn FEn FEr FEn FEn FEr
[note (i) [note (i) [note (iv))
(Wit (W) (Wéthiv)
Fees EXHs - - - 155 155 155 465
Other emoluments EtMe
— salaries and other benefits  —% & R £ &7 1500 7265 2,055 - - = 10,820
— retirement benefits —RIEHHE
scheme contributions 3 18 179 2 - - - 26
— share-based —HRAER
payments {3 - 116 116 - - = 22
Total directors' emoluments ~ EZHSEE 1518 7560 2,200 155 155 155 11,743
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

9. EEX EHETHRARRES

AL G
(a) EBMESHEZER )

H 202138318 L &F &
AEEWESHEBOT:

ZINYN

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
gz BUEHTES
Koon
Tse Wing HoYan JongKoon  TsuiChun ~ HonTam  LauChak
Chiu Ricky Lui Yuk Chu Candy Sang Kong Chun Hang Total
#xkE  BEEH RO HEEE  BER BEF  HBE ag
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKSU000  HKSU0O  HKS00O  HK$D0O  HK$000
fér  TEr  FEn  TEr  TEr  TErn TEr TEx
fnote (j) {note (i) {note i)} fnote (iv)
(Wit (W (Wi (Wi
Fees ESHE — — — 150 150 52 % 450
Other emoluments LR
—salaries and other benefits ~ —FH &R EREF 1,500 3463 1,739 - - - - 6,702
— retirement benefits scheme  — B F 38
contributions 3 18 132 18 - - - - 168
Total directors’ emoluments EZMOLE 1518 3595 1,757 150 150 52 9% 7320
Notes: B et -

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky is the Vice President and
Executive Director of the Company. His emoluments
disclosed above for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021 include those for services rendered by him as
the Vice President and Executive Director.

The Company determined to provide certain residential
units and carparking spaces to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a
son of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a director of subsidiaries
of the Company, and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy free of
rental and charges for as long as they are employed by
the Group. Aggregate rateable value of these properties
as set by the Hong Kong Rating and Valuation
Department was HK$2,998,000 (2021: HK$3,087,000).

Mr. Hon Tam Chun resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 5 August 2020.

Mr. Lau Chak Hang was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 6 August 2020.
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(i) @BIXBEEAARRRZBIERE
FUMITESE - HIA LHEZ
£ BE B E £20226F K 20214
AR FEEABERER
WITEEMRBE RS -

(i) ARAFARTRAEEHRZLINTE
FREARBHBAREETER
HEAEUARBEAMZTREZ
EEEEMNREFEEM TR
EZERAEBEAAREALSE
B-RETEEZMMERES
sl SWEZER=MA
E 42,998,000/ 7T (20214 :
3,087,000/ 7T) ©

(i) FEEBHILEEMR2020F885H
BIEBUIERITES -

(iv)  BIEE %A RN2020F8A6F &
ZERBIUFATES o
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Information regarding employees’
emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year included two (2021: two) directors. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2021: three)
highest paid individuals, not being directors, are as
follows:

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

Zwﬂﬁ(ﬁ;

(a) FRAESMEzER (@)

FHABEBRZATETFHEEE
REEEBARARAEEER
EHCREMESOMS -

ot FUR 2 %8 S 3 BT E
TETERBFER/ARRESFL
REMESHME -

(b) FRAEEME2EH

AER AEBREZRSHFAL
BEMEBQNF - WMB)ES -
HHE=20Q021F : =Z4)1FE
ErERFgALTZBES0NT

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Salaries and other benefits Fe Rk EMEF 11,632 6,630
Retirement benefits scheme iR KTE F &8 30

contributions 59 b4

Share-based payments LA RR 10 73 B HE AT 3K 232 -

11,923 6,684
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'SAND 9. X - BE{THARERES

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) ZHE e
(b) Information regarding employees’ (b) EEEEEMEZER (®)

emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of these employees fall within the ZERBZMEN T THEE:
following bands:

Number of individuals

EEAH

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,0007% JT 2 1

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ Jt 2,500,000/ JT — 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/% JT £ 3,000,000/% 7T — 1

HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 7t £8,500,000/% JT 1 —

3 3
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the REEEE  AEBEE I
Group to the directors and the other three (2021: three) SFEEREM=52021F : =
highest paid individuals, as an inducement to join or HEEHFe AL EANA
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss in FRMAREE R 2 ZE) sk E
office. In addition, during both years, no director waived BAREBIB ZFEE o Lo AW
or agreed to waive any emoluments. BFEE REESEHEXRER

ZEMME
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10. TAXATION CHARGE (CREDIT) 10. BIEFMZ (K &2)
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
The charge (credit) comprises: X (Ex) B :
Current tax: NERFEIE
Hong Kong aBE 7,330 2,436
PRC A 2,643 =
Other jurisdiction Hapmlx @ 549 —
10,522 2,436
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BEFE(GERE) TREME -
Hong Kong &E (185) 688
PRC B 215 -
Other jurisdiction H A AR 58 —
88 688
Deferred tax (note 30) iR FE I8 (H 7£30) 7133 (6,092)
17,743 (2,968)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the FREFE2BBFESRIBEME
estimated assessable profit for both years. JERTBRF 216.5%F & °
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BEPECEMSHE(RERSEH
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax EDREEMGRIAEMGH - K
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the current year. ZHBRRIAFEHERE25%
Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates HEtr iR EEZHIBHIRMABA
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction. ERE BT ERE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

10. TAXATION CHARGE (CREDIT) (coninuear  10. BB (3 )0

Taxation charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the AREEHRRAZ(ER)HEEER
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit HEmrmElimz 2R AR 2 % EE
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: FONNE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation B 7% Bl & A 1,027,243 18,961

Tax of Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5% & %& & F| 13 7§ £16.5%

(2021: 16.5%) (20214F : 16.5%) 2 i 18 169,495 3,129
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ THEINFH A 2 Hi B £

for tax purposes 30,387 15,738
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax #EZB R Uk A 2 i 18 &2 £

purposes (193,013) (30,866)
Tax effect of share of results of an —HBERARERNIEESR

associate B IE FE 206 8,877
Tax effect of share of results of ajoint —AZRAFIRFDEEEZ

venture HEEE 1 1
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMRBEEHE 2R EFE 9,670 2,652
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses PHATAERMEBEBE

previously not recognised HMETE (3,953) (6,471)
Utilisation of deductible temporary FAEBERERITEN

differences previously not recognised  FR R = &8 (2,639) —
Tax effect of deductible temporary RAERAEN Z2BREERER

differences not recognised BRE 4,343 4,050
Effect of different tax rates of REMAEERBRELE 2

subsidiaries operating in other MBARTRBE 2

jurisdictions 3,142 —
Underprovision for prior years BAFERETR 88 688
Others i 16 (666)
Taxation charge (credit) for the year AEEHRBERAZT (K R) 17,743 (2,968)

180



KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. DIVIDEND

No dividend were paid or proposed for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting periods.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

1. K2

NE E2022F 2021638318 ILFE
BERkASEBRAEAKE B8R
EHRBTEEZRNEREKRE -

12. BIREF

ARBBREEZERERNREER
MITRBATEMGE:

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Earnings for the purpose of calculating FETEERE AR E TR M
basic and diluted earnings per share EZBFRATREES
(profit for the year attributable to NEEZ & H)
owners of the Company) 979,437 22,308
2022 2021
20224 20214
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ et EEREREF M5 R A
shares in issue during the year for the & %17 2 & i@ B h0 i
purpose of calculating basic earnings F19 &
per share 78,620,943 90,834,655
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEEELTERNTZE:
shares:
Share options 5 I 1 12,324 —
Weighted average number of ordinary ezt E SR # EAF ML R
shares for the purpose of calculating ik Bk
diluted earning per share 78,633,267 90,834,655

For both 2022 and 2021, the computation of diluted earnings
per share did not assume the conversion of the former
associate’s outstanding convertible notes since their exercise
would result in increase in earnings per share.

181

120227 F2021F - SR BEF 2
SRR AR LA AT A A R
BB THRRER  BAGEREN
SREFIEM -



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z£20224#3531A 1- £ &

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BMEKRKRE

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
HAXR - &
HONE A LERRE RE HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAT FET
COST B 7R
At 1 April 2020 202046 4A18 80,934 10,801 3,857 95,592
Additions NE — 196 — 196
Transferred from properties BARENENE
held for sale 32,330 130 — 32,460
At 31 March 2021 120219534318 113,264 1,127 3,857 128,248
Additions RE — 960 964 1,924
Write-off e — (36) — (36)
Disposal HE — — (549) (549)
Currency realignment ERRE — 15 30 45
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 76) W BN B AR (41£16) 3,468 737 1,312 5,517
Transfer from investment property ~ EHREME 97400 — — 97400
At 31 March 2022 7202263H318 214,132 12,803 5,614 232,549
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2HME
At 1 April 2020 1202064718 6,332 6,887 3,227 16,446
Provided for the year REEEE 2,125 2,150 389 4,664
At 31 March 2021 120219634318 8,457 9,037 3616 21,110
Provided for the year KEE#E 5,586 1,973 608 8,167
Currency realignment B = 11 27 38
At 31 March 2022 182022634310 14,043 11,021 4,251 29,315
CARRYING VALUES RHEHE
At 31 March 2022 720224 3A318 200,089 1,782 1,363 203,234
At 31 March 2021 #202143A318 104,807 2,090 241 107138
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis according to the following
useful lives:

Over the duration of the leases
or fifty years, whichever is
the shorter

3 to 10 years

Leasehold properties

Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to b years

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group transferred
industrial units from investment properties with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$97,400,000 (2021: nil) to property,
plant and equipment upon the completion of acquisition of
Eminence Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”) as the properties
are leased to a subsidiary of Eminence.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group transferred
residential units from properties held for sale with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$32,460,000 to property,
plant and equipment upon change in use of these properties
as director’s quarter and other benefits (see note 9(a)(ii).
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

13. Y% - BEREE

FREEME BERRE BUE
RBRBUAT ZAMERF M ENE :

GEROEY/ES BEHOZFRX
At
NBREEGTHE

MOBR - & ZE+F
KEM&®B

E =ZhfF

B E2022F3A3MB It EE - N x K
WEesLtEERAR(ELDE
AEEBBIXxEMNREMAE AL
97,400,000/ JL(20214 : &) 2 & &
MEERWE WMERRERE NUWEHE
FEWzHBRR -

HE2021F3A3BLEFE  AEEH
F = B 1t BR | 48 58 532,460,000/
TZREHEVEEAYVE BER
BE UERESFEERAMENA
& (R FE9(@)) »



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. REYHE

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and
industrial units under operating leases with rentals payable
monthly, quarterly or semi-annually. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 1 to 10 years (2021: 1 to 3 years), with
unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial period
held by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts contain
market review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the
option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of

AEBRELLHASHASEEE -
BMEMIEEN YREA - BFE
SEBFFURRN—AESES A2
AT E B E A12105F (20214F 1 15
3F) AMAGERESERIKRES
EREBHENES KREZHEHEEEY
HEEMSEGER - UEAME AT
FERHEHZEF -

HRAAENGNEBEEREB 2T
EEBHE BAKEIERABOR
BEmERINERR  HEANALER
SRHREEERE HABAERY
HmBREENE 2ER -

lease term.

HK$'000
T T
FAIR VALUE NS
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4A1H 1,265,040
Decrease in fair value recognised in REEERZAFERD
profit or loss (85,640)
At 31 March 2021 R2021%F3831H 1,179,400
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 16) W — KB AR (HaE16) 1,285,074
Additions NE 41,433
Disposal & (19,517)
Reclassification to properties held for EFSOERBELERRME
development for sale (16,300)
Reclassification to property, EFMOEME BMEREZE
plant and equipment (97.400)
Increase in fair value recognised in RIBRERZAFEL M
profit or loss 37064
Exchange adjustments SN 3 B 13,819
At 31 March 2022 202293 A31H 2,423,573
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The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021 has been arrived at on the
basis of valuation carried out on the respective dates by the
following independent firms of qualified professional property
valuers not connected with the Group:

Location of investment
Name of valuer properties

At 31 March 2022

Colliers International (Hong  Hong Kong

Kong) Limited

Vigers Appraisal and Hong Kong
Consulting Limited

Vigers Appraisal and PRC

Consulting Limited
Edmund Tie & Company Singapore
(SEA) Pte Ltd

At 31 March 2021

Colliers International (Hong ~ Hong Kong
Kong) Limited

The unrealised gain relating to investment properties held at
the end of the reporting period of HK$35,847,000 (2021: loss
of HK$85,640,000) was recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 March 2022.

All investment properties of the Group are under the Level

3 fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

KE B KR E Y ENR202263A318 &
2021F3A3MB Z R FETIIE AT EAK
EESEHEBECBIUSERBEDE
HEMRZSEEHETHEZREEE
E

LRI REWMEM D
"2022F3H31H

SOBBEMERER B
(BB)BERLQA]

BT EE AR B
B RAA

BRI EETAE A
GRS NG

Edmund Tie & o
Company (SEA)
Pte Ltd

M2021%E3H31H

SHBEMERR BE
(FEA)BRAA

B Z=202293A318 Ik F E - B R
EHABEZCEREMERERK
#35,847,0007% JT(20214F: & 18
85,640,000 L) E RIB I R ©

AEBMBREMENEIRAFE
ERT - AFEERATEFAE
BEEMEAREDL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of the investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used),
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group
ARERBZRENE

Fair value at 31 March
MPER3ANA

222
A2E
HKS$ 000
FEL

2021
2001E
HKS000
FET

Fair value
hierarchy
LYEER

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HEFERTERA

14, BEWE 0

TRINTUNMAEEREDE 2 AFE
ZER((LER FIERzHERE
R A) UERBREBEAFETENE
AZABREEESNATESH(E
1= E3MR) o

Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity

EXATTBERA HEE

Commercial units in
Hong Kong

BRBREM

992,700

992,700

1,023,300

1,023,300

Level 3

Income approach
— term yield

LN
—E ik a

—reversionary yield

186

Term yield, taking into account of yield ~ The higher the term yield
generated by market average seling and reversionary yield,
price and the market average rental the lower the fair value
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions of
the building, which is ranged from %
t0.2.0% 10 3.0% (2021: from 2.0% to
3.0%)

THNE ZEALENE HETY TAREREELAR
EERMAETHALEL AR ® ATEAR
REREMERLHE - N TH20%
£3.0% (20215 < B2.0%Z3.0%)

Reversionary yield, taking into account
of yield generated by market average
selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk
associated with the future rental,
which is ranged from 2.45% 10 3.6%
{2021: from 2.45% to 3.6%)
BERE ZEULBRNE 2051
EERME TR KA RRE
AREERR AT N FA246%
£3.6% (20215 - $2.45%£3.6%)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYZR @)
Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AREREZRENR AYEMIANE ATEEA HEFERTERA  EARWHEHA EE
2022 2021

20205 WNE
HKSO00  HKSOOO

FEr FAT

— monthly term rental Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the monthly
derived from the average of the term rental, the higher
rental as stated in the existing rental the fair value
agreements, which is ranged from
HK$33 to HK$420 per square foot
2021: from HK$33 to HK$420 per
square foot)

—BAEEES SRENGATHALNRERARN BARAREAR AT
mil THReRL  BYARN  ERR
Fh33BTEA0ET (20015 : 5T
FRBBETENET)

— reversionary rental Market monthly rental rate, which is The higher the reversionary
ranged from HK$35 to HK$556 per rental, the higher the
square foot (2021: from HK$35 to fair value
HK$578 per square foot)

—F5He 8RR BYARNFaknir E5ReRR ATE
EOO6ET(001F BTARMAE AR
TE518%TT)

Commercial units in 136,900 — Level3 Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, using market direct ~ The higher the price per

Hong Kong —hased on market comparables and taking into account of  square foot, the higher

observable character, location and other individual ~the fair value
transactions of similar factors such as road frontage, size of
properties and adjusted  property, etc., which is ranged from
toreflect the locations HK$60,350 to HK$310,924 (2021: nfa)
and conditions of the per square foot
subject property

ERAEEN 136,900 - 23 BRABA BYARER RRAMGERULEN BTHREEAR AT

—ERAENEZTSE  BH UZEMERH MENR  BRE
TEERHREAE  HuARRZ 0EEER 0E
HRBABNEN A §EARNTL60350% T
ERER E31094B (20015 TER)

187



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REY= @)
Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
ARERELRENR AYEMIANE ATEEA HEFERTERA  EARWHEHA EE
2022 2021

20205 WNE
HKSO00  HKSO00

FEr FAT
Commercial unit in 2,810 2800 Level3 Direct comparison method ~ Price per car park, using market direct ~ The higher the price per
Hong Kong (car —based on market comparables and taking into account car parking space, the
parking space) observable of location, age and other individual higher the fair value
transactions of similar factors, which is HK$2,810,000 (2021:
properties and adjusted ~ HK$2,800,000)
to reflect the locations
and conditions of the
subject properties
ERHEEN(EN) 2810 2800 #3 R LAV S BRENER RATHERILRN SEELEEAR AT
—ERAENZE WS BH UEZEMENE BRUR  BRR
TERRSRERE  EpENRZ - MEMEEN2810000
NRBBEME 2L B (2021F : 2800,000% T)
ERER
Industrial units in 128,800 153,300 Level3 Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, using market The higher the price per
Hong Kong —based on market direct comparables and taking into square foot and price
observable account of location, age and other per car parking space,
transactions of similar individual factors, which s ranged the higher the fair value
properties and adjusted  from HK$4,008 to HK$9,438 per
to reflect the locations square foot (2021: from HK$7987 to
and conditions of the HK$8,003 per square foot), and car
subject properties parking space of HK$2,600,000 each
(2021: HK$2,370,000 each)
EETEEN 128,800 153300 34 BRI SYHRER RATZEZALERE STARERREMEEN
—EREENE TS BN UZENENE ERUR  ERERR ATER
TEERARARE  HeENRZ BTARNT4008 &
NRBBEME L BrE438BT(200%: §TAR
ERER NT987E T 280038 ) HR
FEEA2,600,000% 7 (20215 :
{d2,370,000% 1r)
Industrial-office units in 519,200 — Level3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account of yield ~ The higher the term yield,
Hong Kong — term yield generated by market average selling the lower the fair value
price and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions of
the building, which is 2.7% (2021: n/a)
FRIEBAEEN 519,200 - B3 LN THhE ZEALENEHAT TEAREDRE ATHE
—EHhE BVERRTRTHREEEME  RE

RRBRENERZHE  B27%
Q% :TER)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYZR @)
Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AREREZRENR AYEMIANE ATEEA HEFERTERA  EARWHEHA EE
2022 2021

20205 WNE
HKSO00  HKSOOO

FEr FAT
— reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into account ~ The higher the reversionary
of yield generated by market average yield, the lower the fair
selling price and the market average value

rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk
associated with the future rental,
which is 2.7% (2021: n/a)

—E5h&E BERG ZEULEME ST BHURE
ERRMGTHAG 2 KERRYE  RE
ARELERZBE - B27% (2021

F:1ER)

— monthly term rental Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the monthly
derived from the average of the term rental rate, the
rental as stated in the existing rental higher the fair value

agreements, which is ranged from
HK$13.2 to HK$19.5 (2021: nfa) per
square foot

L3 Lk SRENSATARLIRERARN SATHECAR OV

FcPafeEL §FARN E25
Th13.28 L F1958 (20215 : 7
A8

—reversionary market unit - Reversionary market unit rate for each The higher the reversionary
rate unitis compared with direct market market unit rate, the

comparables and taking into account higher the fair value
of character, location and other
individual factor, which is HK$6,420
(2021: nfal per square foot

—EETREMER  RERCEBTRELER EW5E ERTREUERES
BULamERELR 128 ATEAR
ENE UENREABERRR
BIARB6ANEL0NE T8
)

189



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR M
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REYZE =)

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
FREREZRENR LTEMRIANA ATEER HEFERTERA  EARWHEHA EE
2022 201
222 W%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEr FAT
Residential units in 31,800 — Level3 Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, using market direct ~ The higher the price per
Hong Kong —based on market comparables and taking into account square foot, the higher
observable of character, location, age and other the fair value
transactions of similar individual factors, which is ranged
properties and adjusted  from HK$8,078 to HK$18,222 (2021:
to reflect the locations n/a) per square foot
and conditions of the
subject property
ERfEEN 31,800 — £ BRI SYHRER RATBERALERN §YARERAR AT
—ERAENEzTS  AH UEZRMEREONE B EAR
TEESSRERE  RURERBENRZ §TFRA
NRBEENEZN  T8078ETE18228 (20215
ERER TER)
Residential units in 183,680 — Level3 Direct comparison Price per square foot, using market direct  The higher the price per
Singapore method — based on comparables and taking into account of  square foot, the higher
market observable character, location and other individual ~the fair value
transactions of similar factors such as road frontage, size of
properties and adjusted  property, etc., which is ranged from
to reflect the locations HK$20,966 to HK$22,563 (2021: n/a)
and conditions of the per square foot
subject property
FNREEER 183,680 — 3 EELAE BYARER RATSEZTHBRN BYAREEAR AT
—EREENE TS BHOUZEMERE LENR GRS
TERRARERE  HufNEZ 0EGER 0E
NRBBRMERZL K% §FARAN 20,9665 T
ERER E0563BT(001F :FER)
Industrial units in the PRC 387683 — Level3 Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate, which is 8% (2021:nfa) - The higher the
of net income per annum capitalisation rate, the
with provisions for lower the fair value
reversionary income
potential Monthly rental rate, taking into account  The higher the monthly
of market comparables, which is rental rate, the higher
Renminbi ("RMB")115 (2021: nfa) per ~ the fair value
square metre
METZEN 387683 — B3 BMAFEHEZRA  BALE BFA8%(QE TER) AXtXes ATER
BAEUHER L &
RAENRER
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REY= @)
Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
ARERELRENR AYEMIANE ATEEA HEFERTERA  EARWHEHA EE
2022 2021

20205 WNE
HKSO00  HKSOOO

FEr FAT
Land with attached 40,000 — Level3 Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, using market direct  The higher the price per
structure in —based on market comparables and taking into account square foot, the higher
Hong Kong observable of character, location, age and other the fair value
transactions of similar individual factors, which is ranged
properties and adjusted  from HK$1,349 to HK$1,600 per
to reflect the locations square foot (2021: n/a)
and conditions of the
subject property
ERMERELH 40,000 — £ BRI SYHRER RATBERALERN §TARERDR AT
—ERRENEzMS  AH UEZRMEREONE B EAR
TERRAREAE  RURERBEREZ §THRN
NRBEENEZN  T149ELE1600E L (0015 : F
ERER @)
24235713 1,179,400
In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the REEREMEZATFER X2
highest and best use of the properties is their current use. REBREAERRNERKZFA
e
As at 31 March 2022, except for the industrial properties 7202243 A31H - ££387,683,000/8 7T
amounted to HK$387,683,000, land with attached Z T W3 - 40,000,000 T 2 & B
structure in Hong Kong amounted to HK$40,000,000 and a B B8 722 25 £ 3h 12 2,810,000/8 T 2 & /&
commercial unit in Hong Kong (car parking space) amounted EEEM(EMQOVFE - EERESE
to HK$2,810,000 (2021: commercial unit in Hong Kong fiz (¥ fir) £42,800,0007% JT) 4h + AN &
(car parking space) amounted to HK$2,800,000), all of the FIBIREYHEDEBUNMERTA
Group's investment properties have been pledged to secure SEZEITHE

banking facilities granted to the Group.
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

15. R E N RIHER

2021
20214
HK$'000
FET
Cost of listed investment in an associate —EBERR LMEEZHA 407,855
Addition of equity interest upon the Group's RAEBHBELBT 2 BRERE
conversion of convertible note issued by r 48 00 2 AR 7R 2
Eminence 16,980
Addition of equity interest upon subscription of &R E = ILET 2 HKRRZ &L N
rights shares issued by Eminence AR = 71,419
Acquisition of equity interest in Eminence W B = L AR A R i 39,350
535,604
Share of post-acquisition profits and other 31 W B 18 08 A1) B H 2 T U AR
comprehensive income:
— At beginning of the year —RF A 258,248
— Share of losses and other comprehensive —NhEEREMEAERY
expense (43,605)
— Gain on bargain purchase of additional — W iE— Mg RAREIINER 2
interest in an associate EEWE K= 58,471
— At end of the year —RER 273,114
808,718
Fair value of listed investment in an associate —HE AR Mg E 2 AT EMA Z)
(note) 135,087

In September 2020, the Group had acquired additional equity
interest in Eminence through stock market. Accordingly, the
Group's equity interest in Eminence increased from 27.47%
to 29.60%. The excess of the Group's share of the net fair

£29.60% °

20205 9H - REBFEBREMS

WESIL 2B EAEZ - Bt - &
& B R & LB AR 7N #E 25 R 27.47 % 38 AN
#H 202138318 I &

value of the associate's identifiable assets and liabilities over B AEBEBEERAUZNEE

the cost of the investment amounted to HK$58,471,000 was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March

2021.

MBEHA
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group acquired
additional equity interest in Eminence through cash offer
and Eminence become a subsidiary of the Company. At
31 March 2022, the Group held 74.76% (31 March 2021:
29.60%) of the issued share capital of Eminence. A loss
on remeasurement of interest in an associate amounting to
HK$656,380,000 was recognised in profit or loss, which
included release of translation reserve and FVTOCI reserve
amounting to HK$570,000 and HK$12,707,000, respectively.

Note: The fair values of the listed shares were determined based on
quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange.

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting
period were as follows:

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

15.

B NTIRER

HZE202243A3BLLEE AEEE
BEREeKRESLZEIINEAEZ =
WK B ARRRIHH B AR - 1120226
AR ' AKEFER LB EHITRA
274.76% (2021938318 : 29.60%) °
EVFEBRE AR RE 2 EBBRA
656,380,000 7' EEEB =T HER
BREBRHRELFERZAFETAR
2\ W= 2 #E D B A570,000/%8
7T 12,707,000 JT °

et LB Z R FEDREZANEG
i BREREEE -

REBRBRERHRAEB S QA]
T

EA R

Proportion of nominal value of

Place of incorporation

Name of associate and operation

issued share capital
held by the Group

Principal activities

rEBERFEN
BENR BB o 1 R AR it BY B 347 IR A< [ {E L A FEXEWR
2022 2021
20224 20214
Eminence Bermuda/Hong Kong N/A 29.60% Investment holding
=W BRE &S TEA KEZERK
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 15. B & AR o)

The summarised financial information in respect of the EEAEE B E AR A& E R
Group's associate was set out below. The summarised BT o LT B 7 & B3 R
financial information below represented amounts shown in RIBBEEEUBREENRE 25 L
the consolidated financial statements of Eminence and its FEWBAR(ISLEE]DIEZE VB
subsidiaries (the “Eminence Group”) prepared in accordance WK -BERRAIRAEEZEZEH
with HKFRSs. The associate was accounted for using BMERNEZREZLRE -
the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
2021
20214
HK$'000
FETT
Current assets mENEE 3,156,267
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,457,070
Current liabilities mEAaE (570,421)
Non-current liabilities EnBAaE (1,161,623
Net assets attributable to owners of Eminence & L% R 515 & & 5 58 2,881,293
Revenue = 80,253
Loss for the year KEEEE (180,793)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEFHEMEEK S 36,110
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEEEZERAX (144,683)
Group's share of loss of an associate AREB ML — BB L AREIE (53,799)
Gain on bargain purchase of additional interest in g B — R B & A RIZEIME 2R 2
an associate EXEE g 58,471
Results attributable to interest in an associate ~ — B & A AR DG ¥4 4,672
Group's share of other comprehensive income N5 & 5 5 — E B & A7)
of an associate Eme2mmkas 10,194
14,866

194



KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 15. BEEQTER ®)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information A EB B ER R R RV B RE
to the carrying amount of the interest in an associate MRIEE AT ERRMEYER:

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2021
20214
HK$'000
FE T
Net assets attributable to owners of Eminence & U & R 5158 &E 7 58 2,881,293
Proportion of the Group's equity interest in AN E R LU RR A = 2 el

Eminence 29.60%
852,863

Less: Net assets of the Eminence Group not BoAERLZEShEILER
shared by the Group BEEFHE (44,145)
808,718

195



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group acquired
additional equity interest in Eminence through cash offer and
Eminence became a subsidiary of the Company upon close
of the share offer in April 2021. Aggregate consideration
of HK$210,588,000 has been paid in cash. The acquisition
has been accounted for as acquisition of business using
the acquisition method. At 31 March 2022, the Group
held 74.76% (2021: 29.60%) of the issued share capital of
Eminence.

HZE202243A3BLLEE - AEEE
BRSBHWE S ILEINE AR
& W B R2021F 48 D B4 & R
BRBARBIZ—EHBRR - AR
8210,588,000/8 ;L E LI & T - |
BEBCHERKRBEIARINEES
I Bg - 2022438310 - AEEFEF
=z B 1T IR AR74.76% (20214 :
29.60%) °

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised on R BERANEWBEERE
the date of acquisition &
HK$'000
FETT
Investment properties "EYHE 1,285,074
Property, plant and equipment Y BEREZE 5,517
Right-of-use assets FAEEE 48
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFABZZEMEE 153,365
Debt instruments at FVTOCI EAFEFAEMZERE 2 EBITA 36,182
Loans receivable FE W B 3 121,347
Deferred tax assets EEHIBEE 8,250
Properties held for development for sale BIEHEERME 2,760,807
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E e Uk ZOE 119,233
Bank balances and cash RITHEHB LA 98,736
Trade and other payables B5 & EMEMNRIE (100,780)
Tax payable JE - 7 18 (8,882)
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEER (1,508,353)
Convertible notes CIE:Ni &8 S (199,944)
Lease liabilities HEAE (50)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIAEE (19,767)
2,750,783

Except for the loans receivable and debt instruments
at FVTOCI acquired with fair values of HK$121,347,000
and HK$36,182,000 at the date of acquisition had
gross contractual amounts of HK$173,605,000 and
HK$39,530,000, respectively, the remaining receivables
acquired mainly comprise of trade and other receivables with
a fair value of HK$119,233,000 at the date of acquisition
which were approximated to the gross contractual amounts.
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B 7 U B B H LA R F {B121,347,00078
70 }.36,182,0007% JT W B H B I & 3k
MEAFEFAEMEZARS ZER
TAMEHEE SR A173,605000%
7T %39,630,000/8 T4 - E &R B W BE
FEWHBEBXFEZRERKERSRATE
£119,233,0008 L2 B 5 Kk H b fE UK
RIE - BEHESBHESGNBEMRSE -
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Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests (25.24%) in Eminence
recognised at the acquisition date of HK$726,200,000 was
measured by reference to the proportionate share of the
assets and liabilities of Eminence Group on acquisition date,
representing the assets acquired and liabilities recognised
for the Group of HK$2,750,783,000, adjusted by: (i) adding
back the difference in fair value and liability component of
the convertible notes issued by Eminence to the Group of
HK$141,780,000 less deferred tax liabilities related to these
convertible notes of HK$15,343,000, and (ii) adding back
right-of-use assets of HK$5,634,000 less lease liabilities of
HK$5,674,000, recognised by Eminence in relation to lease
arrangements between Eminence and the Group.

Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of a
subsidiary

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

FERES

AUk B B EA i 52 £ 8 &726,200,00078
TCH) R L FE I AR A 2 (25.24%) Th & &
SLUEBRKBERENEEREEDL
B3 = - 8 E KA & E2,750,783,000
BILTHEWBEEMECEREE K
LDT&ERAZ:-ONE®LRAER
BONBRREENAFEEREGED
o Ky Z F8141,780,0007% JT & B = #%
TR EBREEMNECEHIEAE
15,343,000 7T : K (i) N Bl & A #& &
EED,634,00078 & R == 1L Bt B B R
ESEMTVHETHBRRNEEAR
5,674,000% T °

WE—ENEAREE 2R EWE
Wy %

HK$'000

FET

Consideration transferred BEHEERE 210,588
Plus: interest in an associate upon - EFAEEAFEN —EBE AT

remeasurement to fair value = 137844

Plus: non-controlling interests ho: FEERRE = 726,200

Less: recognised amount of net assets acquired B DWW EEE FEHNERSH (2,750,783)

(1,676,151)

The directors of the Company consider that the acquisition
of Eminence was an effective channel for the Company
to expand into the non-residential property development
sector and could create synergy values by achieving greater
business coherence and enhancing resources allocation.
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of a subsidiary
amounting to HK$1,676,151,000 is recognised in profit or
loss as a separate line in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The transaction
resulted in a bargain purchase gain as the fair value of shares
of Eminence is much less than the net assets acquired at the
date of acquisition.
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ARBEERE WBESLALXRAF
RUEEBRETERZEFTEDERE
B WAL ERFENERKEES
MEREERSE HhHEHEE
B WE-—HHBRAIIEEZHEENW
B U %51,676,151,0008 TN 42 A 18 &
FEMEERERANIBEABIIAE
ER RHGELEHBRBERERE
AL ATFERKEESREE
RETIR R E EFE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z£20224#3531A 1- £ &

16. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(Continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of a

16. WEE—BEM B AR )

WiE-EMEAREE 2 RS RE

subsidiary R
HK$'000
T T
Consideration paid ERRE (210,588)
Less: cash and cash equivalents balances BoBEWEReMERBSES
acquired 98,736
(111,852)

Included in the Group's revenue and profit for the year
(after intragroup eliminations) is HK$58,770,000 and
HK$56,445,000 attributable to Eminence, respectively.

No proforma information of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2021 is presented as
the contributions are insignificant.

AEBAFEMEEBREN(KEE
RARMBIEKEE) DB EESLE
{5 #958,770,000/% st }56,445,0007%
7TE o

B4 2 3K £ B 202164 818 % KX
WHBEERERNEEERKCEER
MNEEZER  AEEBITTEK-

17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. —BEEEQATER
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$000
FE T FET
Cost of investment in an unlisted joint R —MIELFTEE QT Z
venture & R AR 1,744 1,744
Share of post-acquisition loss o Uk B 18 B 1B (1,692) (1,687)
52 57

198




17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

18.

KEBREEBRAA

2021/224 ¥R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

Details of the Group's joint venture at the

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

end of the reporting

17. —EAEATER

(435
\ M=/

REBEEHAR AKBZEZERAFIE

period are as follows: N

Proportion of Proportion of
Name of joint venture Place of incorporation ownership interest voting power held Principal activity
RELELR ML E BRERERLA FrisRERLA TEEH

2022 2021 2022 2021

20226 2021F 20226 2021F

Bonita Springs Global Limited B! 50% 50% 50% 50% Investment holding
Bonita Springs Global Limited ~ RBRZEE RERR
No financial information of the joint venture is disclosed in HREEREHRAERTREATE
the consolidated financial statements as the joint venture is MU EBAGREVERERBEESE

not material to the Group.

ZHHBER -

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. AT EtAERZEmE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =3
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Listed investments, at fair value: EWEE  BAFE:
— Equity securities in Hong Kong —REBREINZ
and overseas (note (a)) I8 A58 5 (H i (a) 287,033 142,645
Unlisted investments, at fair value: JEETRE  EHAFE:
— Convertible notes (note (b)) — AR B (K 2 wm) = 199,944
— Principal protected deposits — RAEGFER(H ()
(note (c)) 27171 —
— Investment funds (note (d)) —BEES (W) 7,339 =
— Equity-linked notes (note (e)) — BREHBRE (M2 (E) 27570 6,231
— Investment in limited partnership —BREEREBR (WM
(note (f)) 27,087 —
— Life insurance policy (note (g)) — AEBREW i) 13,718 11,502
— Film right investment (note (h)) — B REIRE (W i7n) 15,756 -
405,674 360,322
Analysed as: DA
— Current portion — mEE D 362,400 148,876
— Non-current portion —EmE B 43,274 211,446
405,674 360,322
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of the

18. RAVEFABEZZERME

B

g )

74 55 [0 A AF ) o 0 5 9 ) B O A 51
EHEHEZ AT EHARDZ S B

relevant group entities are set out below: BEESHINWOT
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
uss$ ET 43,357 11,502
RMB AR 15,756 —
Notes: B & -
(a)  The fair values of the listed equity securities were determined (a EMRAFBHFZAFEDIBERR

(c)

based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock
Exchange or an overseas recognised stock exchange.

The details of terms of all the convertible notes are the same
as those disclosed in the Group’s annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021. The convertible notes
issued by Eminence were fully eliminated on consolidation as
at 31 March 2022.

The principal protected deposits are denominated in RMB and
issued by bank in the PRC. They contain embedded derivative,
the interest rate of which is determined with reference to the
exchange rate of US$ against HKD and ranges from 1.00% to
3.00% (2021: n/a) per annum with original maturity of three
months.

The investment funds are denominated in RMB and issued
by an unlisted entity in the PRC. The fair values of the
investment funds as at 31 March 2022, which amounted to
HK$7,339,000 (2021: n/a), are measured using the discounted
cash flow method. The expected interest rates are 6% (2021:
n/a) per annum. As at 31 March 2022, the investment funds
will become matured after one year (2021: n/a) from the end
of the reporting period.
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A318 2 A ¥ 1{E7,339,0005% 7T (2021
FRERNDEABRBESRERX
2 o HH F F & B6% (20214 ¢
i@ A) e M202263A31H * & &
Ao BRBERLEREZE —FRNIH
(20214 : @A) »



KEBBREBBR AR 2021/22F 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. B AFETABZZERME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) Es)

Notes: (Continued) Kiat: (&)

(d  (Continued) @ &)
The investment funds are recognised as follows: REESHROT
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F 418 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary e g — M E R A 9,827
Interest received 2 A B (825)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REBZERZAFEEE (1,641)
Exchange adjustments SN BE 77 & (22)
At 31 March 2022 720223 A31H 7339
(e)  The fair values of the equity-linked notes as at 31 March 2022, (e) MR ZE B F & M20226F3A31H 2

which amounted to HK$27,570,000 (2021: HK$6,231,000),
are determined based on the market closing prices quoted by
a bank. The equity-linked notes have maturity of within one

year.

The equity-linked notes are recognised as follows:

A F E /527,570,0007 7T (20214 :
6,231,000/ 7T) * Jh 1B & R 17 Fr s UKk
MEET REHBDZENHERE

— P -

BREHAREERNOT:

HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4A18 —
Additions NE 160,192
Disposals & (59,000)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REBEZERZAFEEE (6,877)
Transfer to listed equity securities A LTRAEFS (84,859)
Interest received 2 F 8 (3,225)
At 31 March 2021 #2021 3A31H 6,231
Acquisition of a subsidiary I i — M E R A 7058
Additions NE 131,000
Disposals & (31,248)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REZERZAFEEE (6,571)
Transfer to listed equity securities WA ETRANE S (76,915)
Interest received 2 F 8 (1,850)
Exchange adjustments SN E 5 B (135)
At 31 March 2022 720224638318 27570
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(f)

(9)

The amount at 31 March 2022 represented HK$27,087,000
(2021: n/a) for interest in a limited partnership (the “Limited
Partnership”) as a limited partner.

The interest in the Limited Partnership is recognised as
follows:

18. RAVEFABEZZERME

B

=W

Brat s (&)

(f)

R2022%3A31H B R & B(A
BAEBNIERBERABAZERZ A
27,087,000/ 7T (20214 : N@A) -

BEREBZERERMT

HK$'000

FET

At 1 April 2021 R2021F 4818 —

Acquisition of a subsidiary I B — M B 2 A 12,089

Additions NE 6,145

Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REZERZAFERSE 8,770

Exchange adjustments SN EE 3 B 83

At 31 March 2022 7202293 A31H 27087
In May 2021, Goldchamp International Limited (“Goldchamp”), (@ H2021F58 - AR a2 M B A A

a subsidiary of the Company, entered into life insurance
policies with an insurance company to insure Ms. Lui Yuk Chu,
a director of the Company, and Mr. Koon Wing Yee, general
manager of the Company. Under the policies, Goldchamp is
the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum
is United States dollars ("US$"”) 2,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$15,480,000). Goldchamp is required to pay an upfront
deposit of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,480,000)
including a premium charge at inception of the policies
amounting to US$400,000 (equivalent to HK$3,096,000).
Goldchamp can terminate the policies at any time and receive
cash back based on the cash value of the policies at the date
of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payment of
US$2,000,000 plus accumulated interest earned and minus
the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense charge.
Goldchamp's insurance policies have been pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to Goldchamp.

In December 2021, the Company entered into life insurance
policies with an insurance company to insure Ms. Lui Yuk Chu,
a director of the Company. Under the policies, the Company
is the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum
is US$120,000 (equivalent to HK$933,000). The Company is
required to pay an upfront deposit of US$120,000 (equivalent
to HK$933,000). The Group can terminate the policies at any
time and receive cash back based on the cash value of the
policies at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
upfront payment of US$120,000 plus accumulated interest
earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge and
policy expense charge.
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(9)

(h)

(Continued)

In prior years, the Company entered into life insurance policy
with an insurance company to insure Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy,
a director of the Company. Under the policy, the Company
was the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured
sum was US$10,800,000 (equivalent to HK$83,808,000).
The Company was required to pay an upfront deposit of
US$1,283,000 (equivalent to HK$9,956,000) including a
premium charge at inception of the policy amounting to
US$76,980 (equivalent to HK$597,000). The Company
could terminate the policy at any time and receive cash
back based on the cash value of the policy at the date of
withdrawal, which was determined by the upfront payment
of US$1,283,000 plus accumulated interest earned and
minus the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense
charge. In addition, if withdrawal was made between the first
to eighteenth policy year, there was a specified amount of
surrender charge. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Group surrendered the life insurance policy with the insurance
company. A surrender charge amounting to approximately
HK$953,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

Life insurance policy is denominated in US$, a currency other
than the functional currency of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered
into an agreement with a film production house for a
total investment cost of RMB13,600,000 (equivalent
to HK$16,585,000) pursuant to which RMB12,920,000
(equivalent to HK$15,511,000) has been paid as at 31
March 2022. The film right investment represented the
20% of interest of film production which entitled the Group
to predetermined percentage of income to be generated
from the film based on the Group's investment portion as
specified in respective film right investment agreement. The
fair value of the film right investment which amounted to
HK$15,756,000 is measured using the discounted cash flow
method. As the film will be broadcasted in the fourth quarter
of 2022, the film right investment is classified as a current
asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

18. AT EFABZZEME
=®)
Hiet: (&)
(90 (&)

(h)

RBAFEE  ARARE—-FHREBQ
AR —THABRENIZRARA]
BEEAMRZRLET - BEZRE K
Rl BEZHEARREFTBEARE
# 1R % A10,800,000% jT(H F ©
83,808,000 L) ° A A 7 B X
J& 1~ #% £1,283,000% T4 & R
9,956,000/ ) BIE R M LR B
BB ZRET76,980% T(HHER
597,000/ JT) ° A& 2 A Al B 1L {A] B
MRIEZRERBERRBZRE
2HREBEKDES  LIREE
731,283,000 7T & Fr R B 2 2 &
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ZE+TNFERR BEBTSEE
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FE - AEERRBAGREEAS
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AR B IANZ B o
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- EFEEAR LD -
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It B R2022F3A3MB XM AR
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19. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

19. ROV EFAHMEE WS

ZBEHITA

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed investments, at fair value: EhEE BRAFE:
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REBSXBINET ZEEFE
or overseas with fixed interests H BEEFHNENTH
ranging from 6.92% to 9.50% 6.92% £9.50% (20214 :
(2021: 8.50% to 8.90%) per 8.50% %8.90%) * FHiH
annum and maturity dates ranging #2022%F 4311H £2023
from 11 April 2022 to 23 June F6H23H (20214 : 2021
2023 (2021: 24 May 2021 to 30 F5H248HE2022F6H30
June 2022), at fair value H) & FE 4,884 1,770
Analysed as: 2Rl =
Current portion B E 4,884 7,740
Non-current portion FERBEH D — 4,030
4,884 11,770

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, debt instruments at FVTOCI
are stated at fair values which are determined based on the
quoted market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange

or overseas recognised stock exchanges.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the credit
loss allowance measured on 12m ECL basis as the credit risk
on these financial instruments has not increased significantly
since initial recognition. The Group assessed the ECL for
debt instruments at FVTOCI by reference to credit rating of
the bond investment by rating agencies, macroeconomic
factors affecting the respective industry for each issuer,
corporate historical default and loss rate and exposure of

default of each bond investment.

Credit loss allowance loss of HK$22,286,000 was recognised
in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:

HK$306,000).

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 42.

All debt instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in US$, a
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant

group entities, at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

20. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED 20. BEERAFTTECERKIA

COST
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Unlisted debt instruments in Hong Kong B &I FTEHKIA
Fixed-rate unsecured promissory note TE B R IE R A N &

(the “Promissory Note") (note (a)) (THE BB, D(W (@) 23,340 -
Fixed-rate secured note (the “Secured BEIFEMRERERE ([HEEFZ2%E )

Note") (note (b)) (K77 b)) 16,004 16,009
Other unsecured notes HEmIERERER 18,918 -
Less: Impairment allowance R E R (1,890) (800)

56,372 15,209
Analysed as: AR
Current assets mENEE 15,436 =
Non-current assets EmBEE 40,936 15,209
56,372 15,209
Notes: K& -
(a In May 2021, the Group and Lion Best Global Limited (a)  M2021458 + 7N & @ i Lion Best

(the “issuer”), an independent third party incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, entered into a promissory note
agreement with principal amount of US$3,000,000 which
carried interest at 8% per annum and will be fully repayable
on the maturity date of 25 September 2025.

(b) In January 2020, Mark Profit Development Limited (“Mark (b)
Profit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement with Reliance Global Holdings
Limited (the “Note Issuer”), which its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange, pursuant to which Mark Profit subscribed
the Secured Note issued by the Note Issuer in the principal
amount of HK$16,000,000. The Secured Note is at an interest
rate of 7.125% per annum and with maturity date on 16
January 2023. The Secured Note is secured by a debenture
incorporating by a first floating charge over all the undertaking,
property and assets of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Note
Issuer.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

20. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED
COST (Continued)

The Promissory Note, Secured Note and other unsecured
notes were measured at amortised cost since the Group's
business model to hold these debt instruments were to hold
for collection of contractual cash flows, and the cash flows
represented solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. The Group assesses the
ECL with reference to the internal credit rating of the issuer
assigned by the Group.

21.

Credit loss allowance of HK$1,090,000 (2021: reversal of
credit loss allowance HK$1,650,000) was recognised in profit

or loss during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 42.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

20. RBEHEHATEZEHRTA

\ A=

MR AEEREARSFEB LA ZER
BEABSUBDENASRENSE
BAEARRE EREBREMIFER
SBRRBHEHKAGE BRERERE
RRASEMREELASHEZMAK -
REE2EZEMEANBETAZIAR
EEFRFHEEREEEE -

H E202293831BItFED R IE %

Rz B E 18 # % 51,090,000% T
(20214 : {Z B B 1B £ 1% £ 121,650,000
7S TT) e

BB BT 14 5 15 B B RE42 o

21. ERER

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fixed-rate loans receivable EREEWE R 342,252 217258
Variable-rate loans receivable FREWE R 3,080 6,535
345,332 223,793
Less: Impairment allowance RO E R (99,352) (80,777)
245,980 143,016

Analysed as: 2R =
Current portion mE D 152,031 125,736
Non-current portion EmBIE D 93,949 17280
245,980 143,016
Secured FHEA 153,948 56,770
Unsecured 3 92,032 86,246
245,980 143,016
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No aged analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aged analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of loan
financing.

At 31 March 2022, the range of interest rate on the Group's
fixed-rate loans receivable is 2.3% to 16% (2021: 2.3% to
16%) per annum and the range of interest rate on the Group'’s
variable-rate loans receivable is prime rate less 1% to prime
rate (2021: prime rate less 1% to prime rate) per annum.

Impairment assessment

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the
potential borrower'’s credit quality and defines credit limits
granted to each borrower. The credit limits attributed to the
borrowers are reviewed by the management regularly.

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable amounting to HK$245,980,000 at 31 March 2022
(2021: HK$143,016,000). At 31 March 2022, allowance
for loans receivable amounted to HK$99,352,000 (2021:
HK$80,777,000). There are no loans receivable which are
past due at the end of the reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 42.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

21. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 21. ERER @)
Impairment assessment (Continued) WAE RE A ()
The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable EWERZ REREZEESHWNT
is as follows:
Lifetime
ECL —
credit-
12m ECL impaired Total
BEFHN
EHEE
1218 B H BiE—
FEEE EERE Wz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2020 PR2020F4A1H 7928 25,058 32,986
Changes due to loans receivable #2020F3A31BE R
recognised as at 31 March & W E KT B
2020
— Repayments (note (i)) — BB K F0) (159) — (159)
— Net remeasurement of ECL~ —E#F st & FFBH =
(note (i) B BB (M a2 i) 1,307 46,298 47605
— Transfer to credit impaired — R EERE (3,846) 3,846 =
New loans granted (note (iii)) B E (M 7 i) 345 - 345
(2,353) 50,144 47791
At31 March 2021 72021434318 5,575 75,202 80,777
Changes due to loans receivable 72021 3H31HE #R
recognised as at 31 March EWERFBENES
2021
— Repayments (note (i) —EE W) (465) (7.812) (8,277
— Netremeasurement of ECL ~ —E =2 FB 8=
(note (i) B BB (K Rt i) (1,844) 15,467 13,623
Changes due to new loans U B — R B B~ A E A FT
arising from acquisition of a e GO
subsidiary
— Settlement by properties — DA E A
(note (v)) (K7 £ (v) — (8,649) (8,649)
— Impairment loss recognised ~ — S HERBIEE B
(note (iv)) (Bt &£ (iv) 52 21,552 21,604
New loans granted (note (/i) B E AT 2 (i) 274 = 274
(1,983) 20,558 18,575
At 31 March 2022 20224 3A31H 3,592 95,760 99,352
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21. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

The reversal of impairment loss of HK$8,277,000 (2021:
HK$159,000) was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$41,154,000 (2021: HK$3,408,000)
repaid during the year.

The remeasurement of ECL of HK$13,623,000 (2021:
HK$47,605,000) was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$180,438,000 (2021: HK$193,235,000).

The impairment loss of HK$274,000 (2021: HK$345,000)
was related to loans receivable with gross carrying amount
of HK$77,700,000 (2021: HK$5,500,000) which are newly
granted during the year.

The impairment loss of HK$21,604,000 was related to loans
receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$87,194,000
which are arising from acquisition of a subsidiary during the
year.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, unsecured loans
receivable arising from acquisition of Eminence with gross
carrying amount of HK$11,719,000 have been further
impaired for an amount of HK$8,649,000. Subsequently,
the loans receivable and the relevant interest receivable of
HK$1,084,000 have been settled by properties with properties
with fair value of HK$40,000,000, which constituted a
non-cash transaction and resulted in a gain on settlement of
loans receivable by properties of HK$35,846,000 during the
year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

21. B ER e
WEREE (®)
it -

il

BB B 18 8] 28,277,000 7T (2021
4 :159,000% T) 8 R E £ & A
41,154,000/ 7T (20214 : 3,408,000
BLIZERERTIRAFEEEESR
B o

iy EHTEEHREE BB =
13,623,000% 7T (20214 : 47,605,000
78 7T ) £ B M 42 {8 /3180,438,00078 7T
(20214F : 193,235,000/ 7T) 2 & W
BEXEBH-

(i) B B & 18 2274,000% T (2021
% :345,000% ) R E B B B
77,700,000 7T (20214 : 5,500,000
BILIZERERTIRAFEREL Z
WERERA -

(iv) 8 & /& 1821,604,0005% JT £ BR M@ 42
8 487,194,000/ 7T 2 E K E X TH A
NEFEWRFE-—BHBEIRER -

(v) BE20202F3A3NBIEE KES
WEAZEERERKERE@AE
11,719,000/ T EAEE — F R 1E - &
B & %8 58,649,000/ 7T - E1% © &
I B 3R & A8 B8 FE W F 21,084,000
7T 5 LA A F {& 440,000,000 7T 2
MEEN BRIEREREH WA
FEHSEMNDERRER 2K &=
35,846,000 JT °
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

22. B EE

Crypto Trading
assets right Total

&g

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FHETT FHET
(note i) (note ii)
(K1 7%1) (K1 atin)

COST OR REVALUATED A E® R

AMOUNT
At 1 April 2020 and M2020F4 18 &

31 March 2021 202193 A31H — 500 500
Additions NE 10,733 — 10,733
Loss on revaluation EHEE (723) — (723)
Disposal & (3,447) = (3,447)
At 31 March 2022 R2022%3831H 6,563 500 7,063
At cost g N - 500 500
At valuation A EET 6,563 - 6,563

6,563 500 7,063
Notes: K& -
(i)  The Group's crypto assets are carried at a revalued amount (i) AEBZNEBEBEEABE
of HK$6,563,000 being the fair value of the crypto assets 6,563,0007C ' Z e BLEMHYEK -

determined by reference to their market price at the end of
the reporting period.

The Group's crypto assets were revalued on 31 March 2022
with a loss on revaluation of HK$723,000 recognised in profit
or loss. The value was arrived based on the quoted price
provided by the broker under Level 2 fair value hierarchy.

If the crypto assets of the Group had not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost and their carrying amounts would
have been HK$7,397,000 as at 31 March 2022.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year
ended 31 March 2022.
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22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

(ii)

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group has a trading right
with carrying value of HK$500,000 that confers eligibility
of Constance Capital Limited (“Constance Capital”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to trade on the
Stock Exchange for the purpose of securities dealing and
broking. The trading right has no foreseeable limit to the
period that Constance Capital can use to generate net
cash flows. As a result, the trading right is considered by
management of the Company as having an indefinite useful
life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows
indefinitely. The trading right will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. It will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired. At 31 March 2022 and 2021, no
impairment loss has been recognised in respect of Constance
Capital’s trading right as amount involved is insignificant.

23. DEPOSITS

As at 31 March 2021, the amounts mainly included a deposit
of HK$10,000,000 paid to Eminence for acquisition of equity
interests in certain subsidiaries of Eminence which are
holding properties held for development for sale pursuant to
a sale and purchase agreement dated 5 November 2020. The
agreement has been terminated during the year ended 31
March 2022.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

22.

23.

BREE®)
Kiat - (&)

(i) M2022%F &2021%E3A31H K& B
A 85 E 1E500,0008 T 2 X 5 & -
ZREGEFLHEEARNFR QR (A
WER] AARIZ—HM2EWNBLAR])
FEARRBIETES  NET
BHEXGRERLES - SAEE AT
FRAREHRZRIEUNEERS
MEFHE AN AR2FAEEER
ARGEAERFHFTFHEEHRE
ERPEFRSTEFE -5
BTERBHEZHFERFHET
BER UWRXSEBREFEREE
BERHEBUERERETREIR
M2022%F K2021F3A31H © AR
LZ2eBITEKR sSAEEARZR
SELSBEREBEEER -

BE

R2021F3A31H X2 WIEREX
4= L 2% £ 510,000,000 7T ¢
ARKESLETWB AR 2 k-
5 LM B A A AR ¥ B HY 5202011 B
FACEBERMRFEELEREDE -
HZE202263A31BHILFE » ZHaEl
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

24. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 24. F{EHEREWZE

FOR SALE

The Group's properties held for development for sale are
situated in Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2022, HK$1,850,951,000 (2021: nil) of properties
held for development for sale are expected to be completed
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period,
while the rest are expected to be completed more than
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group performed
assessment of net realisable value on its properties held
for development for sale with reference to valuations made
by independent qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuations were arrived at
by using the residual method. At 31 March 2022, there was
an increase in the estimated net realisable value of certain
properties held for development for sale which were written
down in prior years, a write-back of HK$1,629,000 was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2022 (2021: write-down of HK$19,572,000).

AEBZBEHERRDETIURE

7 e

72022438318 * 1,850,951,000/% 7T
QONF:BIZBHIEFHERRYWXTE
HRSBERARZE T @EARNTK
HREBRAEHRREHART=ZEAZE
TR ©

M20224F K2021F3A31H  AEE &
BIELERRYEETZEEFE
HEN2ERAAEERBEHEZEL
AEARBEYEHEMITZMGE: Z
ZHEDREFBKGEEESDH - X8
TFEHBREZE THELEERE
Y % A] I8 R b B 720229 3A318
ARt £t & £2022%3A318 It F
[E - 1BmAEEREDE1,629,000% T
(20214 : #3%019,572,00058 7T) °

Analysis of leasehold lands component: MO T
HK$'000
FiET
As at 31 March 2021 7A202143H31A
Carrying amount BREE 839,106
As at 31 March 2022 "2022F3A31H
Carrying amount R E 4,112,733
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

24. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 24. F{EHEEEWE @)

25.

FOR SALE (Continued)

2022 2021

20224 20214F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Operating cash outflows KEIE SR o (512,820) —
Additions WE 3,273,627 —

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The residual values are determined as the estimated
disposal value of the leasehold land component. No
depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands taking
into account the estimated residual values as at 31 March
2022 and 2021.

All properties held for development for sale have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group in
both years.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A L35 2 BR T E AR AR & £
MRFIEMEMEEEBEGTE - F
HEEETABAO T WIS 2 HFTE
EEBE - & & 520229 K202143 8
JINBZHETEE REBEHOL MR
WEEH -

WA AREAE LR
EMEEERARBGRTAREL R
SEER

25. 5K H b B FRIA

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Trade receivables from contract with REBEFPENCE S EWFIA
customers 507 —
Lease receivables & e 5k IE 6,048 2,828
Prepayments AR 1,020 5,000
Interest receivable FE W FI B 1,032 1,058
Escrow deposits for properties held for HEHEME 2 EE R E
sale 16,541 4,622
Accounts receivable from margin RESBE EBUWIRR ()
financing (note) 24,093 22,450
Refundable stamp duty AR EEIER 103,160 -
Other receivables and deposits EMERFIEBERIEZS 12,974 2,260
165,375 38,218
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Note: The Group provides margin financing to certain individuals for
securities transactions secured by the individuals securities
held as collateral. Securities are assigned with specific
margin ratios for calculation margin values. Additional funds
or collateral are required if the outstanding amounts of
accounts receivable from margin financing exceed the eligible
margin value of the securities deposited. No aging analysis is
disclosed as in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the aging analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of margin financing.

The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants in
property investment segment. The aged analysis of trade
receivables and lease receivables, based on invoice date, at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

25. E G K Hb FEYFIE (&)

fraE: AEBEHAEAZ %1?%?&#1::1
MEZRXHMETIEARHRF
TRE-BFD EEE%EE’J%*
ittfu.ﬁréﬂ% TE WMRRE
TeRMENRBEERZARAEES
%Etiﬂﬁﬂ_ FHNERRERE

CAIFEBRINESRERS -
F%ZSQET%%E”%%EM%%T
ERENME RO IS REH
BOMEE - FULEWERE DT

REBREGTOEREDMOEP
TAEEH BEFRKKBENEERE
WHRERBRERARBRERRAR 2K
e Afran T

2022 2021
2022 20214

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-60 days 0-60H 6,280 2,690
61-90 days 61-90H = 138
91-120 days 91-120H 275 —
6,555 2,828

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 42.

No credit loss allowance has been recognised on the trade

and other receivables as the directors of the Company
consider that the amount is immaterial.
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26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

27.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, at prevailing market interest rates
ranging from 0.0001% to 1% (2021: 0.001% to 2%) per
annum.

The Group's bank balance and cash that are denominated in
currencies of the relevant group entries are set out below:

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

26. RITHBRNRERE

BITHEBEREBEALEEFFZHE
A RRBITTESEFFEH0.0001%
1% (20214 : 0.001% £2%) 7 = {#
Bk Z A2 8 2 /e BRER 1T 1T 30 »

AEBELNRESEERERIEZR
THRBRAESEHIIMT:

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$°000

F#E T FET

Us$ ETT 7.251 1,645
RMB AR 35 -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

27. ESRHMENRIEURE
HWEE

Trade and other payables Bk HMEMKIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Trade payables =0Y ANk 20,655 4,290
Retention payable (note (a)) R RIES (B it () 27,078 7476
Rental deposits received and rental EHeZe RBEKES
received in advance 23,880 8,936
Interest payable FEAS F) 2 6,479 2,563
Guarantee money received (note (b)) BUIR B & (Kt b) 10,000 =
Other taxes payable H b e B IR 6,194 —
Accruals and other payables TEIR R E Ab pE A 3RIE 58,818 17782
153,104 41,047
Notes: B a7 -

(a) Retention payable is withheld from subcontractors and will be
released by the Group within twelve months upon completion
of their works.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

Trade and other payables (Continued)
Notes. (Continued)

(b)  The amount represents money received from a borrower of
the loan financing business as security for loans granted.

The aged analysis of trade payables determined based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows.
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days.

27. ESREMEMREURE
=R (&)
ESRHEMERRIEE)

BiaE - ()
b)) ZeBERRERBEEKZ—AE

RARERERMRBERER R
ZARIR

REKREHARBZZAIMETZES
RN RIEREIITMT - BE 2FH
EEHR30H -

2022 2021
2022 20214

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-60 days 0-60H 20,567 2,350
Over 90 days B @m90H 88 1,940
20,655 4,290

Contract liabilities

The Group receives deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreement of sales of properties
during the year ended 31 March 2022. The deposits from
customers are recognised as contract liabilities until the
customers obtain control of the properties. At 31 March
2022, the contract liabilities amounted to HK$16,534,000
(2021: HK$6,276,000). The contract liabilities at 1 April 2021
of HK$6,276,000 (1 April 2020: Nil), were fully recognised
as revenue during the year. Contract liabilities are expected
to be settled within a year when control of the completed
properties are transferred to the customer.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

AMOUNT DUE TO A 28. BN—{UFEZERBRREHE
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
The amount is unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand ZeRALSEER 2B AHNIRK
and non-trade in nature. LIFEHZME -
SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 29. BB ITEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount repayable as FEEE CBERmMENT GRIEE
follows (based on the scheduled FIRERMEZIEEEER
repayment dates set out in the loan H)
agreements):
— within one year ——FR 1,206,455 468,010
— within a period of more than one — BB —FE BRMR
year but not exceeding two FHEER
years 888,846 45,896
— within a period of more than two — EEBMFEEIERR
years but not exceeding five FHEER
years 1,237,338 756,611
— within a period of more than five —ERFUNEMRER
years 230,065 201,950
3,562,704 1,472,467
Less: Amount due within one year BBIRARBDEEZ
. g . EI | 2 r*vE
shown under current liabilities FANIHEE (1,206,455) 468,010)
Amount due after one year shown BETRRIERBAGZ
under non-current liabilities —FRIHeHE 2,356,249 1,004,457

At 31 March 2022, the Group's secured bank borrowings
carry interest ranging from HIBOR plus 1.0% to HIBOR plus
1.825%, LIBOR plus 0.8% to LIBOR plus 1.0% (2021: HIBOR
plus 1.0% to HIBOR plus 1.825%) per annum, with effective
interest ranging from 1.24% to 2.11% (2021: 1.13% to
4.05%) per annum. The loans are secured by certain assets
as disclose in note 32. The proceeds were mainly used to
finance acquisition of investment properties, development of
properties and acquisition of financial products.

The Group’s secured bank borrowings that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

MN202243A31H » KAEBE v B EIFR
TEESFURBRITRERSINI0%
ERBRITEEFENIE25% * @ H
RITEERBMOSH EMRBEITH
I/ B IN1.0% (2021F : FEB R T A
ERBIMI0%EFBRITRIEREMN
1.825%) 5H B BEBRFEFMEJTIH1.24%
Z2.11% (20214 : 1.13% £4.05%) ° %
SEEXRDUBETEEFEABRLEE
R 32 - TSR BEBXZRELER
g%&ﬁ%% CBEMEARNE SR
o °

AEENHBEEEERESE B U
BB AERRTEEEHIIMOT

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$000 HK$'000

FAETT FETT

Uss E7T 20,513 ==
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z£20224#3531A 1- £ &

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. IEFEF B
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 13,559 8,724
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRIBAEG (23,955) =
(10,396) 8,724
The followings are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities TXARENRBAFEBRRNETE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BEERB(EE)BEREZS:
prior years:
Accelerated
ECL tax Revaluation
allowance depreciation  Taxlosses of properties Total
REEE mE
BEREE HENE  HEBRE  WEER H

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TAT TAT

At 1 April 2020 M202054 718 (2,476) 1,350 (1,506) = (2,632)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss PEEGIA) B (5,980) 307 [419) — (6,092)
At 31 March 2021 1202163 A31H (8,456) 1,657 (1,925) = (8,724)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 76/ WE-HRBAR N #16) (8.250) - = 19,767 11,517
Charge (credit) to profit or loss RBENBGIA) 4136 (172) (549) 3,718 7133
Exchange adjustments MMERE - - - 470 470
At 31 March 2022 2022437318 (12,570) 1,485 (2,474) 23,955 10,396
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At 31 March 2022, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$305,965,000 (2021: HK$103,869,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset had
been recognised in respect of HK$14,993,000 (2021:
HK$11,667,000) of such losses as at 31 March 2022.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$290,972,000 (2021:
HK$92,202,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 March 2022, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$122,978,000 (2021: HK$104,942,000).
A deferred tax has been recognised in respect of
HK$76,184,000 (2021: HK$51,248,000) of such temporary
differences. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to the remaining deductible temporary difference
of HK$46,794,000 (2021: HK$53,694,000) as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$128,265,000 (2021: n/a) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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MR2022%3A318 X & E B KX & B
i 18 & 18 5305,965,0008 T (2021
% : 103,869,000 JT) - A A B I $8
X E F o H &P R2022F3A31H 2
i 18 & 814,993,000/ 7T (20214 :
11,667,000/8 L) CHER BIELFHIBE
B -mBmREEBTARAREMNRA W
I 42 % R £ T290,972,0007%8 JT (2021
£ :92,202,0008 L) 2 IEE B AR
EHIEEE MEBBUERBAL
;'igfr °

R2022%3H318 + A~ & B /7] #1108
B B = 58 A122,978,000/8 7T (2021
F :104,942,000%8 JT) > B B % Z B&
BF = 58 & 1 276,184,000/ JT (2021
 :51,248,000/8 L) ERELER 18 o
1BE 4 5t 8 46,794,000 JT (20214 -
53,694,000 7T) 2 7] 08 & BF 7= 20 AE
RELEHEEE FRAERBEMNA
B E AR AT R B R ZER AT )
BAzHEBEEE -

BEF B EMBEHE - B2008%F1
B1HE > FEMNBERARRICEFRE
K2R EAHMBINT - AREAEE
eSO EE M L
el Z B AR R G RER
A 4R A B HRERIL R EHB R
A R 5HR FIl FE 15 F5 B £ %8128,265,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
Nominal
value Number of
per share shares Amount
BREMA R 8B S8
HK$ HK$'000
ET FHET
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2021 R2019F4/18 -
and 31 March 2022 2021 3H31H &
20229 3A31H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BREIRHAR:
At 1 April 2020 202054418 0.1 91,320,403 9,132
Share repurchase and cancellation A% 17 [l B8 & BXH 0.1 (9,120,000) (912)
At 31 March 2021 2021 3A31H 0.1 82,200,403 8,220
Share repurchase and cancellation A% 17 [l B8 & BXUH (8,212,000) (821)
At 31 March 2022 20224 3A31H 73,988,403 7399

H E20225F3A31HILEE - AQFR
BT EBERMMT

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
repurchased its own shares on The Stock Exchange as

follows:
Price per share Aggregate
Number of BRER consideration
shares Highest Lowest paid
Month of repurchase E i A 17 SREE &S BE BN4KE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT TET
For the year ended 31 March 2022 B ZE2022F3A3BEFE
August 2021 2021484 1,371,000 4.00 3.90 5,416
September 2021 20214F9A 3,007,000 3.98 3.95 11,979
October 2021 2021510 2,616,000 3.87 3.87 10,163
November 2021 20214118 125,000 470 470 590
December 2021 2021128 872,000 4.80 4.60 4137
February 2022 202242 8 20,000 4.00 4.00 80
March 2022 20224348 201,000 4.05 4.00 847
8,212,000 33,212
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZ2021%3831B 1L EE
March 2021 2021438 9,120,000 4.20 3.98 37582
The above shares were cancelled upon purchase. None of FABROREERFE KREFE

N K&TZW%QTT&%EE%E *
SO AR R E L RE S

the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities for both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EEHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of RBERR AEEERTRITIER
the Group were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities ERTAEEEEBEZEENT:

granted to the Group:

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Leasehold properties GiEFoRy/ES 196,728 104,807
Investment properties "EYHE 1,993,080 1,176,600
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong & E R /&2 ETRAE S
and overseas 82,218 44,583
Life insurance policy ASRE 12,914 11,502
Debt instruments at FVTOCI EAFEFAHEMER
WaRzEBIA — 3,848
Properties held for development for sale #H{EHE &R Y ¥ 4,418,372 950,375
Properties held for sale FHELEME 761,499 850,331
7,464,811 3,142,046
At 31 March 2022, 300,000,000 shares (2021: 19,800,000 R20223A318 - A& B — [ Kt B
shares) of Eminence with fair value of HK$37,200,000 (2021: A A ¥ £300,000,0000% (20214 :
HK$9,702,000) held by a subsidiary of the Group is pledged 19,800,000%) & ¥ & £&37,200,0007%
to a bank. 7L (20214F : 9,702,000 JT) 2 = W &
MEERTET -
In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment AN - EiiiE E Y E o He R EiliF
properties and future sale proceeds and rentals in respect EHEZREMERFELEDE 2K
of the above properties held for development for sale and RIFEMSRBRESMERTRT -

properties held for sale are also pledged to banks.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS  RRER AT

The Group as lessor AEEEREEA
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
F & T FET

Property rental income earned during R ERNBRER 2 W EE & W A

the year 65,283 32,815
Less: Outgoings T (8,122) (1,459)
Net rental income HE WA FEE 57,161 31,356

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as

follows:

AR ZHERKEENRNT

2022 2021

2022F 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F K 64,233 33,124
In the second year FER 40,644 8,200
In the third year EF=ZFN 21,584 1,040
In the fourth year FENFA 9,412 =
In the fifth year EOLFR 8,769 —
After five years HF & 5,334 =
149,976 42,364

Included in the above, undiscounted lease payments
receivable on leases are amounts receivable from the related

BREELXF RMRZBEREKHE
ENRREEBEBALZER:

parties:
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F KN — 2,496
In the second year B FER - 2,496
In the third year EF=ZFN - 1,040
— 6,032
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34. A

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Capital expenditure contracted for but B &l 41 KA NGB B RE
not provided in the consolidated RREEZERAAIZ IR
financial statements in respect of
— interest in Limited Partnership — BREHER (K FE)
(note) 19,510 —
— film right investment (note 18(h)) — BEMREIRE (M iF18(h) 829 —
20,339 o

Note: The amount at 31 March 2022 represented US$2.5 million

(equivalent to HK$19,510,000) (2021: n/a) for subscription
for interest in the Limited Partnership as a limited partner.
The purpose of the Limited Partnership is primarily achieving
capital appreciation and participation through investments
in equity and equity-related securities in Asia-Pacific and
Europe and portfolio funds with a similar investment focus.
The business of the Limited Partnership will be conducted
and managed by one single general partner (the “General
Partner”) who will act as agent of the Limited Partnership
while the investment committee of the Limited Partnership
(comprising individuals who are not connected with the
Group) shall decide and approve all investment and divestment
decisions of the Limited Partnership with reference to the
investment objective. The limited partners of the limited
partnership, including the Group, shall take no part in the
operation of the Limited partnership on the management or
conduct of the business and affairs except with the written
consent of the General Partner. Details of this transaction are
set out in the Eminence’s announcements dated 27 March
2019 and 10 May 2019.
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can
choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee'’s
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the
“mandatory contributions”). The employees are entitled to
100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon their
retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the pension scheme is to make the required
contributions.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset
employers’ contributions for the year. The employers’
contributions which have been dealt with in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
were as follows:

35.

RIRBERETE

REEREEE R MERTE ST K
Bl 2EREHARBMERES RN
wBAFE(TREEED RRES
AET  REARBEAFSHNG%
H&xZR1,500/8 7T BEILAEEE
HEMK - BEEEARKIRRES
ZERAFEAERKE%H &K E 1,500
7 7T ([ 98 Bl ME L 5K ) - B B 10655 &R
KB SETRTEERKRITREDE
A E AR R B R Z2100% -

RABEZHBRRZERERTERA
RUZBEREDNRNKRETEKE - I
BRrAARFE2ETADLRAENKRS
B - AEE 2 BEE /KR
At BIEH TR E ZHK -

REZWRERWHE R BIEEER
IHK -CRGAEaREBE2EK
SRPEEZEBREHKET:

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Employers’ contributions recognised in REZPERZEZHK
profit or loss 1,117 681

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in
the future years.
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On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 El
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. Under the 2012 EI Scheme, the directors of the
Company may at their absolute discretion grant options
to all directors (including any executive and non-executive
directors), full-time employees and consultants of the Group
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The 2012 EI Scheme
is valid for ten years commencing 5 July 2012, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 El Scheme are to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 El
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the
date of adoption of 2012 EI Scheme. The overall limit on the
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2012 El
Scheme and other share options schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates shall be subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of
the Company issue and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant
of options shall be subject to shareholders’ approval with the
connected persons of the Company abstaining from voting.
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Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of options in excess of the limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012
El Scheme is determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall end on a date which is not later than ten
years from the date of grant of the options. At the time of
grant of the share options, the Company must (a) specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised in whole or in part, and (b)
specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an
offer for grant of share options is HK$1.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
of the 2012 El Scheme shall be no less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer; (i) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer.
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On 30 August 2021, the Company granted share options
to eligible persons to subscribe for a total of 365,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the
Company, subject to acceptance of the eligible persons
and upon the terms and conditions of the 2012 El scheme.
Among the share options granted, 146,000 share options
were granted to directors of the Company who are also
substantial shareholders of the Company and 219,000 share
options were granted to employees of the Company who are
associates of the substantial shareholders of the Company.
The share options granted can be exercised on or before 29
August 2031 with an exercise price of HK$3.99. During the
year ended 31 March 2022, the fair value of the share options
amounting to HK$581,000 (2021: nil) that vest immediately
at the date of grant was recognised in profit or loss. No share
options are exercised during the year ended 31 March 2022.

No share options were granted under the 2012 EI Scheme or
exercised during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Share option scheme of a subsidiary

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of
Eminence. Under the terms of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, the board of directors of Eminence may, at its
absolute discretion, offer options to any full-time employee,
director or consultant of any member of Eminence Group
(including associated companies) to subscribe for shares
in Eminence subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid during
the period of ten years commencing 29 June 2012, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing
the value of Eminence and its shares for the benefit of
Eminence and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate
with any shares to be issued under any other share option
schemes of Eminence) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at
the date of adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme.
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Share option scheme of a subsidiary (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of the share options granted to each eligible participant of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period,
is limited to 1% of the shares of Eminence in issue. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of Eminence
with such grantee and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under 2012 Share
Option Scheme is determined by the board of directors of
Eminence and shall end on a date which is not later than ten
years from the date of grant of the options. At the time of
grant of the share options, Eminence must (a) specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised in whole or in part, and (b)
specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an
offer for grant of share options is HK$1.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme may be determined by the
board of directors of Eminence in its absolute discretion and
notified to each offeree but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of Eminence’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of Eminence’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of Eminence’s shares
on the date of offer.

No share option was granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme or exercised during both years.
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37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows from financing activities.

37. RERME BB B E 2B

%=

TRAAEEREMEZH BB
2% ERASKIIFRSEDH - XA
RERBZABEDNEHERERES

HARKIR LR EA

e AKX
gen R

RAKHEZ

RARTRERCKEREEHZHR

X =
ﬁ/}mi °

Amount
Secured due to anon-
Lease Interest bank  controlling
liabilities payable  borrowings  shareholder Total
Eff -1
BEA 2R
HESE EHFIR BITER REeH am
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2020 202054418 1,261 419 1,428,186 90,348 1520214
Bank borrowings raised ESRAER - - 830,329 - 830,329
Repayment of bank borrowings RERIEE - - (786,576) - 786,576)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE (816) - - - (816)
Interest paid BAAE (45) (29,698) — - (29,743)
Advance from a non-controling shareholder ~ —fir JE2 R R B & % - — = 10,940 10,940
400 (29,279) 1,471,939 101,283 1,544,343
Non-cash changes: ERLEY:
Interest expense on bank borrowings BAREIHNERR = 31,842 528 = 32,370
Addition of lease liabilities BEAREM 65 - - - 65
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEZFBHY 45 = = = 45
At 31 March 2021 #2021E3A318 510 2,563 1,472,467 101,288 1,576,828
Bank borrowings raised ESRAER - - 1,830,377 - 1,830,377
Repayment of bank borrowings RERIEE - - (1,252,012) - (1,252,012)
Repayment of lease liabilities EREESRE (656 = - — (656)
Interest paid ERFE (27) (51,773) - - (51,800)
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder ~ —fi JE¥E R X2 % - - - 57,826 57,826
(173) (49,210) 2,050,832 159,114 2,160,563
Non-cash changes: EREEY:
Acquisition of a subsidiary (ote 76/ KE-BHELA
(Hit16) 50 - 1508353 - 1508403
Interest expense on bank borrowings BIEEZHNERR - 55,689 3,519 = 59,208
Addition of lease liabilties HEBELM 1214 - - - 1214
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBB FIBRT 27 = = = 27
At 31 March 2022 12022834318 1,18 6,479 3,562,704 159,114 3,729,415
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group had
the following transactions with the Eminence and its
subsidiaries:

(a)

38. BHATR 5, BAERS

BREAVBRERMBEIN  RF
R AEEHESUEERBRAR
ETNTRS:

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Rental income Ha2BA 208 2,496
Management fee income EEBWA 35 420
Consultancy fee income BB A — 801

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director and substantial shareholder
of the Company, is also a director of Eminence.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held convertible notes
issued by Eminence, details of which are set out in note
18(b).

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

(b)

(c)

ARBEERETEMRELHRK
ITARUZES -

MR2021FE3A31IH - KREB#HF
BLBETZABRRER  FBHR
HI R B 5E18(b) ©

FEEE AR ZHM

EENHEBTITEEERERE
AZBEnT:

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F# T
Short-term employee benefits HHERERT

Salaries and other benefits e kEME R 32,202 19,603

Retirement benefits scheme RAR R AT Bl R
contributions 469 354
Share-based payments VAR (9 B E 0 3R 464 S
33,135 19,957

The Group has been providing accommodation to Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu for use by her and her family members
including residential units and car parking spaces
provided to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a son of Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and a director of subsidiaries of the Company, and
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy free of rental and charges for
as long as they are employed by the Group. Details of
the arrangement are set out in note 9(a)(ii).
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)
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Compensation of key management
personnel (Continued)

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
recommended by the remuneration committee and
approved by the board of directors of the Company,
respectively, having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

In January 2011, the Company and Eminence entered
into an employment agreement with Mr. Koon Wing
Yee to act as general manager of the Company and
Eminence. The employment agreement, which
constitutes a connected transaction, commenced on 21
February 2011 but may be terminated by either party at
any time by three months’ notice. The monthly salary
has been adjusted a few times to HK$270,000 for the
Company and HK$400,000 for Eminence with effect
from 1 April 2021. The remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing
Yee as general manager of the Company and Eminence
during the year (excluding those paid by Eminence
before the date of acquisition) was HK$8,146,000 (2021:
HK$2,600,000) and was included in the “compensation
of key management personnel” in (c) above.

Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
who is a director of the Company. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu also
holds 23.75% (2021: 21.20%) equity interest of the
Company through an entity wholly-owned by her at 31
March 2022.

During the year, the Group received rental income
totalling HK$504,000 (2021: HK$240,000) from certain
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy.

During the year, the Group paid HK$1,212,000 (2021:
HK$718,000) to Wing Yee Football Team Company
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Koon Wing Yee,
which is recognised in profit or loss as “advertising
expense”.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

FEEBABZHME
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MEBEEZ THARRES
SHLME

R2011F1A  ARAIEEILEE
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ERH®E BREEXS  H
20M&2A21B MK BaimE
FEA—FAREANEBEBGET=
TMABMMABILE - AFHFLHAE
# % 270,000 JT(H AR A
i &) %400,0005% 7T (%t /= 1L M
=) BH2021F4818 £ e B
REE BRKEREERLRQA
EalacErsie(TeEZ
Ry g A= Sl
¥ &) 58,146,000/ JT (20214 :
2,600,000 L) - REBEE MU
FOBEBZITEEEAS ZFHM]
ﬁq °
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38.

39.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(g) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has
received a refund of donation of HK$2,400,000 from
Easyknit Charitable Foundation Limited, a company
controlled by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy. The donation was paid by the Group to Easyknit
Charitable Foundation Limited during the year ended
31 March 2020 and recognised in profit or loss as
“donations”.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes secured bank borrowings disclosed in note 29
and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, accumulated
profits and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and raising or repayment of
bank borrowings.

Constance Capital (see note 22) is regulated by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission and is required
to comply with the financial resources requirements
according to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R"). Management closely
monitors, on a daily basis, Constance Capital’s liquid capital
level to ensure compliance with the minimum liquid capital
requirement under the SF(FR)R. Constance Capital has no
non-compliance of the capital requirement imposed by the
SF(FR)R during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

41.

Save as disclosed otherwise in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following non-cash
transaction. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
acquired equity-linked notes for HK$138,058,000 (2021:
HK$160,192,000). These equity-linked notes were linked to
securities listed on the Stock Exchange. Subsequent to the
acquisition, certain equity-linked notes of HK$76,915,000
(2021: HK$84,859,000) were converted into listed equity
securities as the share price at date of maturity of the
underlying securities reached the strike price.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
March 2022:

(@ On 29 March 2022, the Group acquired the
equity-linked notes which was linked to shares in
Hang Seng Bank Limited in the principal amounts of
HK$10,000,000. On 25 April 2022, the Group further
acquired the equity-linked notes of Hang Seng Bank
Limited in the principal amounts of HK$6,000,000.
Details of the acquisitions were set out in the
announcement published by the Company dated 26
April 2022.

(b)  On 13 April 2022, the Group acquired the equity-linked
notes which was linked to shares in BOC Hong
Kong (Holdings) Limited in the principal amounts
of HK$10,000,000. On 19 April 2022, the Group
further acquired the equity-linked notes of BOC Hong
Kong (Holdings) Limited in the principal amounts of
HK$20,000,000. Details of the acquisitions were
set out in the announcement jointly published by the
Company and Eminence dated 20 April 2022.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(c)

On 30 March 2022, Eminence and a placing agent
entered into the conditional placing agreement with
details set out in Eminence’s announcement on the
same date. The placing is completed on 20 April 2022.
A total of 186,280,000 placing shares have been
successfully placed by the placing agent to not less
than six placees at the placing price of HK$0.10 per
placing share pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the placing agreement, representing approximately
16.67% of the issued share capital of Eminence as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of the placing
shares immediately upon the completion. The net
proceeds from the placing, after deduction of the placing
commission and other related costs and expenses of
the placing, amounted to HK$18,380,000 will be used
for Eminence Group’s general working capital. Upon
the completion of the placing, the shareholding held by
the Group changes from 74.76% to 62.30%.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. €T H
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SRIAEZEH
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE T
Financial assets ERMEE
Amortised cost B gH AR
— Trade and other receivables — B RHEMEWKE 53,490 28,130
— Debt instruments at amortised — REEK AT EZ
cost EETAR 56,372 15,209
— Loans receivable —EWER 245,980 143,016
— Bank balances and cash —RITEHEE 184,425 308,222
540,267 494,577
FVTPL BRAFTEGFAER
— Financial assets at FVTPL — B AFEFABREZ
TREE 405,674 360,322
FVTOCI BEAFEFAEMEZE
g
— Debt instruments at FVTOCI — B AVFEFAHEME
mlmcEBBIE 4,884 11,770
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised cost BSH AR
— Trade and other payables — B REMENRIEAE 89,167 21,805
— Amount due to a non-controlling — A — (IR AR R
shareholder &5 159,114 101,288
— Secured bank borrowings — BERBRTEER 3,562,704 1,472,467
3,810,985 1,595,560
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
other debt instruments at amortised cost, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, trade and other receivables,
loans receivable, financial assets at FVTPL, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder and secured bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s primary cash flow interest rate
risk relates to its secured bank borrowings,
variable-rate loans receivable and principal
protected deposits which are classified as financial
assets at FVTPL. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of the secured bank borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 29. The Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to certain financial assets at FVTPL, fixed-rate
loans receivable, debt instruments at amortised
cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, bank balances
and lease liabilities. The Group has not used any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to
such interest rate risk, however, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR and LIBOR arising
from secured bank borrowings.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest revenue/income from financial
assets that are measured at amortised cost or at
FVTOCI is as follows:

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

5t 75 LB ' B EAR IR UK (40

5 B ()
(i) 7 EE 5 (&)

BEHERASRE R FER
AEt2HEKETEZS
MEEZMBEEE K

ANBEEWT
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Interest revenue M B & FERE
Financial assets at amortised cost HEERAFTEZ
SREE 17,262 13,726
Other income E Uk A
Financial assets at amortised cost BEEKATTEZ
EREE 3,014 1,331
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BRAFEFAEAMD
U2
EHTA 2,149 670
Total interest income MBI A M58 22,425 15,727
Sensitivity analysis BRE D

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments as referred to
above at the end of the reporting period and the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and held constant throughout
the reporting period. A 100 basis points (2021:
50 basis points) increase or decrease represents
is used when reporting interest risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If interest rate
had been 100 basis points (2021: 50 basis points)
higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31 March 2022 would decrease or increase by
HK$29,496,000 (2021: HK$6,120,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. HMKEREREERZERBX®)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) hEEpE(E)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) () FEE &
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DA (&)
The bank balances are excluded from the RITERTIBEERRAE
sensitivity analysis as the management of the PITREAREEERER
Group considers that the interest rate fluctuation BAINEZRBWTERK -
is not significant.
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis EHERER ZBRESD
is unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate 7 A 7S 5 X & B A B K &
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the Br - AFRRER T/ XK
exposure during the year. FRE R -
(i) Currency risk (i) B &E R
The carrying amounts of the group entities’ REREBHR - AN T E
foreign currency denominated monetary assets at JEBERBCEBEEL
the end of the reporting period are as follows: REENT:
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET F& T
US$ against HK$ ~ ETTH BT - — 55,349 24,817
RMB against HK$ A R¥H BT - — 35 —
US$ against SGD  ZE T W #1137 20,513 S 2,408 =
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on US$ against SGD for the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets/liabilities.

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between
HK$ and US$ will be immaterial, and therefore
no sensitivity analysis has been prepared. No
sensitivity analysis for the currency risk of RMB
against HK$ is prepared as the directors of the
Company consider the net impact of such foreign
currency risk is insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in US$ against
SGD. Sensitivity rate of 5% is used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis represents
the debt instruments at FVTOCI, and financial
assets at FVTPL and secured bank borrowings
where the denominations are in US$. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit where US$ strengthen 5% against SGD.
For a 5% weakening of US$ against SGD, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit.

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

b. MHEREEEERBKE)

w5 m B ()

(i) B (&)
WRE D (&)
TRELAEEHEXTH
¥ 03 7T B K B2 E5% B

BERE-RAETEEEA
BEAMERINERREE
BEEFEIEERSIER
REDTABRRELXRR
5% - HREDITEBER
EEMIINEFENEER
B YRmERRRIE
EXNe%EHHBEME o
HREISMERBRAET
AAENEREAFESARM
2EMEZEFRTRE &
RFPEFABZZERE
EREERARITEE - K
TE&RTRERTEHM
T FHEB% B - BR B8R
MABFTIZM - BLET R
M TEES%ME @ &
HHRBRBRBENBXREFER

HREE -

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Decrease in post-tax profit B £ 1% 0 ) Rk 4 (756) =

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
reflects the exposure at the year end, but not the
exposure during the year.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy to eliminate the currency
exposures. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Other Price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through
its investments in listed equity and debt securities
and equity-linked notes. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. The Group's
price risk is mainly concentrated on listed equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange
or an overseas recognised stock exchange of
issuers operating in property investment and
development and banking and finance industry
sector. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the
need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to price risk at
the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the listed equity securities had
been 10% (2021: 10%) higher/lower, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2022
would increase/decrease by HK$23,967,000
(post-tax loss for 2021: increase/decrease by
HK$11,911,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL.

In the managements’ opinion, the financial
impact on price risk of equity-linked notes will be
immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties are primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, bank balances, loans receivable,
other debt instruments at amortised cost and debt
instruments at FVTOCI. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risk associated with its financial assets, except
that the credit risk associated with loans receivable,
other debt instruments at amortised cost and margin
receivables is mitigated because they are secured over
marketable securities or properties.

At the end of reporting period, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information including forecast of
unemployment rate index and other relevant factors are
considered.

Except for financial assets at FVTPL, the Group
performed impairment assessment for financial assets
under ECL model. Information about the Group's credit
risk management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:

241

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

B 35 LB B R EAR IR BUR ()

1= B @ B K 6l B AT 1%

R20224% K 2021F3A31H » A&
BERZXSGHFARABERTEEAME
BRUBERAZEREERR
DEEEEXERE S R EME W
H - RITEH BRER &#
HAAFTECHEMEBILAR
EAFEFAEMEERZE 2 &
BILHEH AEETESEEMEKE
sk E i B b os 15 B I i
M%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂé?ﬁ%m
SERR  HEHEEKER  R#
%&$ﬁ22ﬁ@ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ
FERERZFSHENEERRB
L lEEﬁ%ﬁ%i%%ﬁ
ﬁ o

RBERAR  EFFEHEEESR
BRER  WERBAEEERNE
BEEREREHENREAM
HEEE) -

@E“iﬁﬁk%¥2é@1
ENh AEBHRAEHEE

BEREAE SR EE®ETRAERT
H-BEREBEERARKRER -

&K1z AR R AE R E R (i
EARAMEEMRAT:



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

b. BXREREEEERBEE)

1= B 3 B2 K Bl 1B AT 1% (%)

AEEHAIEER BT EF

comprises the following categories: HEENTER
Financial assets
other than
Internal credit Trade and lease  trade and lease
rating Description receivables receivables
E%Bﬁﬂﬁ@ EZRHEHEERR
REBEETR HEd W 1E Bz EREE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default  Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
1K /2 Bz REHEFHEARRBRRE BV EERN BEAHBOHEH 12@ABHEE
0 B 3R IA EEBRE—3FE BAE
BRE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due date Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
credit-impaired
Hh [ BEBAKLERIHPREER RERAHNER 1R2@AEHREE
EEBRE—FE BAE
BRE
High risk There have been significant increase in Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
credit risk since initial recognition through  credit-impaired credit-impaired
information developed internally or external
resources
= & B FHRAFHINFERDENERTMNGE BEAHNESR BEABHNOTESR
BBV e R A KEZEL N 1.:,J§5$E—3HD EEEBE —3kE
B {E SR E
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit—impaired credit-impaired
BB EEBETZEECHFEGERE REFBANEER  EEER R
EEFE—EE GEFE—GE
A A
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor Amount is written ~ Amount is written
is in severe financial difficulty and the off off
Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
G Eﬁé"‘?ﬁﬁﬁfwﬁﬁ‘k}\ﬁﬁ)\fﬁﬁﬁ%%’ﬁﬂ MHERERE Wi B MR

AEERREERW DAL
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL
assessment:

e M BEmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &
b. MHEREEERERBERE)

5 B & B R 68 715 ()

TERFIAEBAETEBRE
EFERFYEZEREENER
ZIEERR:

External credit  Internal credit Gross carrying
2022 Notes  rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL Loss rate range amount
2205 fE ABEERR  ABEEFIR  2BRIERRANEHEEEA FEREE AR
HK$000
FEn
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
RATEGARM2ENEZEHIA
Investments in listed bonds 19 CaaltoBa2(i)  N/A 12m ECL N/A -
RERTES CaalZBa2()  FHR NERENEEER TER
CtoCafi) N/A Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 50% to 100% 30,799
CZCalil TR BERBNRACERE - GEAE  50%E100%
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHAATEZCREE
Loans receivable 21 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 2% t0 6% 29,572
EUER TER Rk NEARBEEES 2%26%
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 100% 95,760
TER i ERRONRNEERE - RERE 100%
Bank balances 2% A1t Prime-1 N/A 12m ECL N/A 184,383
RiGR MZPrime1  TEA NEREAEEER TER
Debt instruments at amortised cost 2 NA Low risk 12m ECL 5% to 6% 58,262
REH AT BEIR TER Eak NEARBEEES 5%26%
Trade receivables from contracts with customers 2% N/A (i Lifetime ECL— not credit-impaired N/A 507
REEPENZEHRNGE TER ERRONENEERE - £EEHE TER
Lease receivables 2 N/A (ii Lifetime ECL— not credit impaired N/A 6,048
BERYWNE TER ERRANENEERR - FEERE TER
Other receivables 2% N/A (ii 12m ECL N/A 53,490
Efb YA TER NEARBEEES TER
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3H31H 1 &

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

42. EWM TR )
b. HMEREBREEEERBUR ()

il

1= B 7 B2 R Bt 1B 5F 18 (4)

(Continued)
External credit Internal credit Gross carrying
0 Notes  rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL Loss rate range amount
wNE FE NBEEIR MPGEEFSE nBRIEERFNREEEEE BREHE EEEE
HK$000
AT
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
RATEFARMRENEZERIA
Investments in listed bonds 19 B N/A 2%103% 12,065
RERLHES Bl TR NERRHEEES 2%53%
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHHATEZSREE
Loans receivable 2! N/A Low risk 0%t08% 126,035
EHER TER EER NEAREGEEE 0%28%
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-mpaired 62% to 100% 97758
TEE B LERBNEDEEEE—GENE  62%F100%
Bank balances 2 AtoPrime N/A N/A 308,216
it A1 EPrime-1 8l MBARHEEER AER
Other debt instruments at amortised cost 2 N/A Low risk 25% 16,009
REHAATE AHERIA ER EER MARHEERS 25%
Trade receivables 2% N/A [] Lifetime ECL — not crecit-impaired N/A 2828
EARNTE MER SRR R EER-FRENE TR
Other receivables 2% NA il N/A 28130
EpEUSE AR NEARBEEEE AR
Notes: B et -

(i) For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group
estimates with reference to external credit rating and
forward-looking information such as forward-looking
macroeconomic information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

(ii) For the purpose of internal credit impairment
assessment, the Group considers if there is any past
due record or other relevant information available
without undue cost or effort to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOC/

The Group assesses the credit risk of debt instruments
at FVTOCI at the reporting date. The Group’'s debt
instruments at FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds
that are graded by credit-rating agencies as per globally
understood definitions and certain bonds without
external credit rating are assessed by internal credit

ratings.

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

42. TR T H (&)
b. MERREEEERBE®)

B R FEGARMEEH K=
ZEHTR

AEERBEEHTRBZAF
Bt ARM2EKREZEBTA
ZEERR - AEBIR A FER
AREfEEBSE @B TAE
ZEEAEETAREBERRE
REMZEBEIR 2 LHES
METAEEINFEEFRZE
FAIAARBEEFRTME -

Lifetime ECL —
12m ECL credit impaired Total
ERBHH
BHEE
12188 BE-
BHEERR FERE Foh
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4A18 1,101 — 1,101
Changes due to debt instruments at R2020F4R1BE R
FVTOCI recognised as at BRAFEFAELZ
1 April 2020 Bl & EBIAM
— Upon redemption —RERR (1,101) — (1,101)
New bonds purchased Fris AR EH 306 = 306
At 31 March 2021 #2021%F3831H 306 — 306
Changes due to debt instruments at R2021E3ANAEHER
FVTOCI recognised as at BRAFEFAELZ
31 March 2021 Bl m EBIEM
— Transfer to credit-impaired —BREEEERE (105) 105 —
— Upon redemption —RNERE (201) — (201)
— Net remeasurement of ECL —ENMERBEE
ERFE — 3,803 3,803
Changes due to debt instruments at FRBREATEFALE
FVTOCI acquired therEkE 2 EET
EFBmEs
— Net remeasurement of ECL — BN ERBEE
ERFE — 9,865 9,865
New bonds purchased - _ 8819 8819
At 31 March 2022 #20226E3 4318 — 22,50 22,502
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOCI (Continued)

Loans receivable

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation
to the gross carrying amount of loans receivable
amounting to HK$345,332,000 at 31 March 2022
(2021: HK$223,793,000) with 45% (2021: 25%) of the
balances secured by marketable securities with fair
values of HK$36,900,000 (2021: HK$31,980,000) or
properties with fair values of HK$251,707,000 (2021:
HK$24,451,000) or guaranteed money of HK$10,000,000
(2021: nil). The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge
the collaterals, if any, in the absence of default by the
borrower. There have not been any significant changes in
the quality of the collateral held for the loans receivable.
In addition, the gross carrying amount of unsecured
loan receivable amounting to HK$60,158,000 (2021:
HK$59,600,000) are with personal guarantee. The largest
borrower of the Group by itself and together with the
other four largest borrowers of the Group accounted for
approximately 20% and 56% respectively (2021: 25% and
68% respectively) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31
March 2022. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit
risk. The management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to the credit risk are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Impairment allowances on outstanding loans
receivable are determined by an evaluation of financial
background, financial condition and historical settlement
records, including past due rates and default rates, of the
borrowers and relevant information from public domain
at the end of each reporting period. The borrowers are
assigned different grading under internal credit ratings
to calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of the
estimates of expected cash shortfalls which are driven
by estimates of possibility of default and the amount and
timing of cash flows that are expected from foreclosure
on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining and
selling the collaterals.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOCI (Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

Included in the gross amount of loans receivable
are HK$86,702,000 (2021: HK$72,700,000), net of
accumulated impairment allowances of HK$70,702,000
(2021: HK$50,144,000) due from a group of borrowers
including a borrower (the “Borrower”) with gross
amount of HK$32,397,000 (2021: HK$13,100,000) and
other individuals (with personal guarantee from that
Borrower) with gross amount of HK$54,305,000 (2021:
HK$59,600,000). During the year ended 31 March 2021,
the management assessed, taking into account the
relevant information from public domain, such balances
became credit-impaired and has taken various actions
to recover the balances. Upon acquisition of Eminence,
the gross amount of these loans receivable of the Group
increased by HK$47,476,000. The management has
requested the borrowers to make settlement of the loans
and total settlements of HK$49,474,000 were received
from the borrowers by way of cash or properties as
disclosed in note 21(v) during the year ended 31 March
2022. No allowance of impairment was made for a new
loan receivable due from the Borrower of HK$16,000,000
since the value of pledged asset is higher than the
value of amount borrowed. For the remaining balances,
an additional impairment loss of HK$20,558,000 was
recognised in current year for the purpose to fully impair
the remaining balances.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group assesses the credit risk of other debt
instruments at amortised cost at the reporting date.
The Group's debt instruments at amortised cost
comprise the Promissory Note, Secured Note and other
unsecured notes without external credit rating, which
have been assessed by internal credit rating. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, an impairment loss
on debt instruments at amortised cost amounting to
HK$1,090,000 (2021: reversal of impairment loss of
HK$1,650,000) was recognised in the profit or loss.
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5t 75 LB ' EEEAR I UK (40

BRAFEAAMEEHKZ
ZEXTAE)

ERE A (B)

FRERBEYIRLBEL®E
86,702,000 T (20214 :
72,700,000 JT) * B FE W — 48
BERATBERADBH RS B A
B 570,702,000 7T (20214 :
50,144,000/ ) H+ 8 —
28 T HY 42 5832,397,00058 T
(20214 : 13,100,000 7T) A &
H A @B A L (RZERARE
/) 18 A ¥ {R) & 42 354,305,000
B J0(20214F : 59,600,000/%8
TT) o A E E2021E3A318 IFF
EEEEEREDARELNME
BEENHZEEHREEERE
BERE YEHRRSETHRE
HEer o WERILE  AEEMZ
% e W E 3k 42 %8 18 hN47,476,000
BT - BEEBERERAEE
B3 RE E202293A8318 1t
FEBUWBMERANREESID
¥ mK FE21) BT T’ 5 R
45 B 48 5849,474,00078 T © M
REREEEESNEBELESE
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JEWRERAEREHRBEEE -
MBTHEHRME ERERFERE
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INEBEIRRTEBRRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. €T B )
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. HMKEREREERZERBE®)
policies (Continued)
Debt instruments at FVTOCI (Continued) BRAFHETIAREMEDEKZ
ZEXFTAE)
Debt instruments at amortised cost (Continued) HEBEK A G EZEFETLA
(&)
12m ECL
1218 A
EHEEREE
HK$'000
FETT
At 1 April 2020 20204818 7876
Changes due to financial assets recognised as at B & &t & & 720204

31 March 2020: SAIABRZE%:

— Written-off — i 38 (5,426)

— Reversal of impairment allowance recognised ~ — # @ 2 &R 2 @ &

3 (1,650)
At 31 March 2021 2021563 H31H 800
Changes due to financial assets recognised as at B & &t & & 120214

31 March 2021: BABIRER &8 :

— Impairment allowance recognised — BEWRZRERE (232)
New notes purchased HEBARE 1,322
At 31 March 2022 7R2022%3831H 1,890
Trade and lease receivables and other receivables EGRIHEE BRI ELRRE

1t JE Y 5 TH
No allowance for impairment was made since the HRARRESEENBE A Y
directors of the Company consider that the probability SESEREZERBENNLE
of default is minimal after assessing the counterparties’ MK WY EELRERESE -

financial background and creditability.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOCI (Continued)

Bank deposits and bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability
of default is negligible as such amounts are receivable
from or placed in banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations. The management
also monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

At 31 March 2022, the Group has available unutilised
bank loan facilities of HK$966,219,000 (2021:
HK$162,302,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

42. €RL T H )

il

b. BXREREEEERBEE)

Liquidity risk (Continued) TEELEEE)
Liquidity risk tables B E 2 E &
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Carrying
effective  orlessthan 3 months to 1to Over undiscounted  amounts at
interest rate 3 months 1 year 5years Syears  cashflows 31 March
mETE  RENAY ANBERE  RIBNAZ
ERAE  SR3ER  3MEAEIF 1255 BB5F REAH REE
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
% FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
2022 20225
Tradeandother ~ BZREMES NA
payables A TER 62,090 21077 - - 89,167 89,167
Amountduetoa  FE{T —fir 3E R
non-controling KRS NA
shareholder THER 159,114 - - - 159,114 159,114
Secured bank ERARIEE
horrowings 175 412,556 846,128 2,204,919 244,007 3,707,610 3,562,704
Lease liabiliies ~ HERE 2.45 105 315 735 - 1,155 118
633,865 873,520 2,205,654 244,007 3,957,046 3,812,103
2021 2021%
Tradeandother ~ ZHREAMER N/A
payables HB TER 14,330 7475 - - 21,805 21,805
Amountduetoa  JE{T—fiI 3R
non-conroling RS E N/A
shareholder TR 101,288 — — — 101,288 101,288
Secured bank EERRIEE
horrowings 143 124,987 295,509 911,522 217372 1,549,390 1472467
Lease liabiities ~ HEAE 432 158 368 = = 526 510
240,763 303,352 911,522 217372 1,673,009 1,596,070
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c. Fair value

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’'s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The Board has delegated the valuation
work to the management to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. The management reports the
findings to the directors of the Company regularly
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value.

The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and key inputs used).
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c. Fair value (Continued)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

42. €RL T H )

c. AFE®
(i) RELEZMEEEZLF

that are measured at fair value on a EFfEZXEFLHE
recurring basis (Continued) EZRFEE)
Fairvalue Valuation techniques and Significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy  key inputs inputs
LHEE AFER3A3MA NYESR HEFERIEBA EATTEERA
2022 2021
22F  2021F
HK$000  HK$000
FELT AT
Financial assets at FVTPL
RAVEGABGEZEMER
— Listed equity securities 287033 142,645  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
active market
— FRAES F1R RERTRMB2LE FEA
— Convertible notes - 199,944  Level3 Black-Scholes model with  Volatility: N/A (2021: 60.71%)
(note (8)) Trinomial Tree method
(note 18(b))
—AREE 23 TR —HBARRAR K& TERQNE:
(Wie) = XEEW#180) 60.71%)
— Principal protected deposits 2117 — Level3 Discounted cash flows Potential return rate of 1.00%
— future cash flows 10 3.00% (2021: N/A) per
are estimated based annum (note (c))
on exchange rate of
US$ against HK$ and
expected yields of the
instruments
—REEH £33 FRAGRE—AREE BERNBESF1.00%Z
MENREETEAT  3.00% (0215 FER)
MEXRBHERIE  (Witw)
et gt
— Investment funds 7339 — Level3 Discounted cash flows —  Weighted average cost of
future cash flows are capital at 53.61% (2021:
estimated N/A) (note (b))
—REEE £33 FHERERE — AR ERMETINA5361%
Rene 015 : MER)H 2 1)
— Equity-linked notes 21510 6,231 Level 2 Based on fair value of N/A
underlying assets which
are substantially derived
from Level 1 input
—BREHNZE F2R ERTEREFEERBAZ TER
HBEERTE
— Life insurance policy 13,718 11,602 Level2 Quoted asset value provided N/A
by a financial institution
fnote (b))
—A\BRE F2R CPRERRR MREE THA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair value (Continued)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £2022#3/31H 1 F &

c. AFE®
(i) RELEZMEEEZLF
EitBz2FrEELHE
EZRFEE

Fair value  Valuation techniques and  Significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy  key inputs inputs
tREE ATER3A3MA NLESE HEFERTERA EXTUBEERA
2022 2021
202F  2021%
HK$'000  HK$000
TET T
— Investment in Limited 27,087 N/A  Level3 Net asset value quoted from  Net asset value of the
Partnership fund manager underlying investments
—REEREY TER F34 EeUBMBCEERE HBERECEETE
— Film right investment 15,756 N/A Level3 Discounted cash flows —  Discount rate of 4.35%
future cash flows are (Note (c))
estimated

—EPMERE THER 23R

Debt instruments at FVTOCI 4,884 1,770 Level1

BRAVEFARGZERE F18
BHIA

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

A slight increase in the volatility used in isolation
would result in a slight increase in the fair value
measurement of the convertible notes, and vice
versa.

A slight increase in the weighted average cost of
capital used in isolation would result in a slight
decrease in the fair value measurement of the
investment funds, and vice versa.

A slight increase in the potential return rate used
in isolation would result in a slight increase in the
fair value measurement of the principal protected
deposits, and vice versa.

A slight increase in the discount rate used in
isolation would result in a slight decrease in
the fair value measurement of the film right
investment, and vice versa.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1 F &

c. Fair value (Continued) c. AVE®
(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i) ZFE3RA-FETELHEK
measurements
Principal Investment
protected Convertible Investment  inLimited  Filmright
deposits notes funds  Partnership  investment Total

RERR  E¥RE
RAEX TRERE REED 2% RE #it
HKS000  HKSODD  KKSUOD  HKSOOO  HKSUOD  HKSOOO
FET AT TET  TET FAT  TAT

At 1 April 2020 202044718 - 85914 - - - 85,914
Gain on changes in fair value upon  IMEB B 2 AT EE B

modification W - 73,520 - - — 73520
Interest received BHHE - (3,256) - - - (3,256)
Fair value gain recognised in profit  MERE AN A FE

or loss W = 43,766 = = = 43,766
At 31 March 2021 R0NE3A3A - 199,944 - - - 199,944
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-BHEBAR 1341 (199,944) 151 12,089 - (155,003
Additions NE - - - 6,145 15,511 21,656
Purchases #E 146,492 - - - - 146,492
Interest received BEHHE (1,067) - (919) - - (1,986)
Realised fair value gain recognised REZEAHDEHR

in profit or loss NEEYE 1,067 - - - - 1,067
Unrealised fair value loss RNEREANRER

recognised in profit or loss LTEE®R - - (2,680) 8,770 - 6,090
Settlements & (141514) - (967) - - (142481)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 852 - 394 83 245 1574
At 31 March 2022 7#2022F3A31H 21 - 1339 21,087 15,756 71353
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and RMEFEE - B84 - F24
3in both years. REIFR 2ELMER o

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and financial (iii) WEREBELEMEEERE

liabilities that are not measured at fair RFEFIEZEHEE
value on a recurring basis ReEMEEBZLFE
The fair values of other financial assets and EmemEERe/RAE
financial liabilities are determined in accordance REEEZREBEFNBFRESR
with generally accepted pricing models based STER—REANZEE
on discounted cash flow analysis. The directors BRET AAAEER
of the Company consider that the carrying BREFEUBEHmRERER
amounts of financial assets and financial TRMEERERABEERR
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial BEEHEAFEHRESE -

statements approximate to their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

43. TEHBARZFHE

20224 K2021E3A31H * KA "l *

March 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

EMBRBIZFHBAOT:

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ Nominal value of ~ capital/registered capital
establishment and issued share/ held directly/indirectly by
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
KAREE/
WAL/ BRf7/ MEBESRORE/
WEARER RIRSEHY ZRBRAEE dfRAEEL TEEHR
2022 2021
2022% 20215
Directly held:
EERE:
Ace Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
ERREBRAA Bk TBRIET BrRE
Amazing Universe Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
(“BVI")/Hong Kong
RERAER(XBR TERIET NERE
L#E])/EE
Arrowfield Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
ERRAHE /B TERIET BHRA
Charming Flash Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
EBRAME /B LTaRIET EFRE
Coconut King Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
EREAHE /BB EBERIET FARA
Flourishing Day Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
ERAERAA EBRUHB /B LTaRIET EXRE
Fortunate Master Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERAME/BR EERIET REER
Gold Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
FREEBRAA o ERRIET BHR
Great Sail Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
BRARKERRA ABRUHE /B LERIET EFRE
Quick Access Enterprise Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
EBRABE/EA LaRIET EXRE
Winsor Miles Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERIEE/BH EERIET REER
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

43. T EMBRATRIZFHE @)

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ Nominal value of capital/registered capital
establishment and issued share/ held directly/indirectly by
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
KAREE/
AREY/ R/ BEBEERORE/
WEARER RIREEHY ZMBAEE A MRAEELA TEEH
2022 2021
2022F 2021%
Indirectly held:
RERE:
Asia Million Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BEREFRAT 3 EBERIET NERE
Capital Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 74.76% N/A Property investment
ER(ER)ERAR N ERRIET TER NERE
Chancemore Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 74.76% N/A~ Property investment
ERRAHS /BB EBRIET THER NERE
City China International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 74.76% N/A Loan financing
AR ERAR £ ERERIET TER ERRE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 74.76% N/A~ Property investment
BRARERAR RBRUHE/EH EBRIET TER NERE
Constance Capital Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$46,000,000 100% 100%  Investment in securities
hEEABRAF B £ 8 746,000,000/ 1T BHRE
Daily Leader Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 74.76% N/A  Property development
RBRUHE/EH EBRIET TER NEER
Day Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
AEREERAT Bk ERRIET WERE
Easyknit Properties Management Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property management
KENEERERAT R L8 3%10,000% T WEER
Excellent East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 74.76% N/A~ Property investment
BEFRLA R ERRIET TER DERE
Everjet Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
KEREERAT ) EER10000% T NERE
Fanju Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 74.76% N/A~ Investment in securities
REREBRAT EBRAME/ER ERRIET TER #EHRE
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e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & £20224#3/31H 1t F &
43. T EMBARZFF W)

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ Nominal value of capital/registered capital
establishment and issued share/ held directly/indirectly by
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
KAREE/
HMAL/ 2R/ BEBECRORE/
WEARER RUREE Y ZMBRAEE A B A 1 B TEER
2022 2021
20226 2021%
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 74.76% N/A  Investment in securities
KEBERAT N EER2BT TER RBHRE
Giant East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 74.76% N/A~ Property investment
ERERAF 3G TARIET TER NERE
Global Chance Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
REERERERAA EBRABES /B EBRIET NEER
Glory Link Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 74.76% N/A" Investment in securities
HEKEBERAA 3G LRRIET TEA BHERE
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 74.76% N/A  Property investment
tEERERAR BA LiRAR10,000% T TER NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 74.76% N/A~ Property investment
REEXERAF 3G LRR2BT TER NERE
Golden Star Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
eHMEREFRAT Bk EERIET NEER
Good Merit Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERERAR B TERIBEL NERE
Goodco Development Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EXERERLA EBRANE/EA EERIET REHR
Grandcorp Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BRERARAT N LERIEL NERE
Great East Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
XERBERRAT 3 ERRIET NEER
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore Ordinary US$1 74.76% N/A" Property investment and
investment in securities
RBRIES/ MK EERIET TER NEREREFRE
Happy Light Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
HEREFRAT EBRABE/ER TERIET NEER
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EMBARIZFH 1B @)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ Nominal value of capital/registered capital
establishment and issued share/ held directly/indirectly by
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
KAREE/
HMAYL/ R/ MBEBECRORE/
WEARER RUIREE Y ZMBAEE AR A EE LS TEER
2022 2021
2022F 2021%
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 74.76% N/A  Property investment
EBEXERATA N ERR2ET TER NERZ
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 74.76% N/A" Property development
RatExERAR 3G LRRIET TER NEER
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment and
investment in securities
SRERARAT Bk LaRET NERERBFR
On Channel International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
ZERRERRA i EERIEL NERE
Ovation Motion Picture Enterprise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Entertainment and film
production
EEBYORERRA B3 TERIBT RERETHE
Pacific Land Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BZREABRAR N ERRIET NERE
Pacific Way Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BEREBRAA i LRRIAT WERE
Planetic International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Lpan financing
B ERR2AT EXRE
Real Supreme Limited Anguilla/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 74.76% N/A Property development
RER/BR EERIET TER NEER
Richstar Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
REZRERAA ) EERIET NERE
Success Active Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
EERAME/BA LaRIET NEER
Success Mark Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 74.76% N/A~ Property development
EmREERAT ) LTRERIEL TER NEEER
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 74.76% N/A Property investment
BERERRAA Bk LRRIET TER NERE
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EfBARIZFH 1B @)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ Nominal value of capital/registered capital
establishment and issued share/ held directly/indirectly by
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
KAREE/
SME YL/ BRF/ FBEBESROREK/
WEARER RIREEHY ZMBRAEE EMRAREE L TEER
2022 2021
20226 2021%
Top Lead Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 74.76% N/A  Property development
HAERAERAT N ERRIER TER MEER
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 74.76% 100%  Property development
ERRAHES /BB FRRIER NEERE
Treasure Arts International Group Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 74.76% N/A~ Property development
E2EREEERAT EBRABES /BB LTaR1ET TER MEER
Trump Elegant Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property development
IEREBRAA 3 E38%10,000% 7T NEERE
Wealth Plan Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 74.76% N/A Property development
FEERERAT N EERIET TER MEER
Well Honest Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
RBREARRAA B EERIET NERE
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 (Non- 74.76% N/A~ Property investment
voting deferred shares
HK$2*)
BEREBRAF 3G EAMR0,998% T (H & TER NER:
FRELER2ETY)
Well Smart Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 80% 80%  Property development
BRERERAR Bk LRERI00E T NEER
Widetop Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
RERERRRA B LTERIBEL NERE
KEEEZ(HNM) BB 2 Easyknit PRC Registered 74.76% N/A  Property investment
Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd.) US$25,544,206
("Enterprises Huzhou")**
XEEZUAM)BRAA e GRS TER DERS
(THAME D) * 25,544,206 7T
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43.

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

* The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments
Limited carry no rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at
any general meeting and have very limited rights to participate
in a distribution of profits and, on liquidation, to the repayment
of the amount paid up on the shares.

** Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14
December 2054.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

FERBARZFE W)

* REREBRARZEREREL
REERDEAMBERAGZEBE -
HEIARAGLERE BEAKEE
BRENESRENR - RBRE
EROEHRNZEE -

> HMINEEAE—BRPBPBEKIZZII
BRELE KEHAOF HB=E
2054F12 A14H -

A EFIRAFIRZARAMERF -
REARREZZER TBXEF
NZFELABRASEEEZ TR
DeMARAEFZERR R RH
HMHBE AR ZHIBEEEMNBRIT
£ o

RBEPRR AR HEEMEAE
BmETEEXRZHMBRAE - L FH
BRAIKEINBELELEE - HEME
NAIZCEBEBHENT :

Number of subsidiaries

MEAREHE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2022 2021
TEXER ETREXMBH 2022F 20214
Investment holding Hong Kong 47 20
REERK BB
Inactive Hong Kong 25 6
5 B B
Inactive PRC 2 —
I 5 BB &

74 26

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
31 March 2022 or 31 March 2021, except for the convertible
notes issued by Eminence to the Group.
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. TEMBE AT ZHFE @
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRIREBERNFEREZS Z2AR
subsidiary of the Company that has material non-controlling RIFE2EMB ARG -
interests:
Place of Proportion of
incorporation and ownership interest and
principal place voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
MBI BER  FERERFSEEEEER
WEARER TEEERY REELH FEREEAEEN Rt 2RES
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
20226 20214 2022 2021%F 20226 20215
HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS$000 HK$ 000
FAT FET T FET
Eminence Bermuda 25.24% N/A 30,457 N/A 761,033 N/A
=1 BRE TER TER TER
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's BEEARIERETZAEENBAR
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set AMBEMBMESRINNOT o« ATHB
out below. The summarised financial information below ERBMEDNSEBEANAGBMEKENZS
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. B o
Eminence and its subsidiaries =R HE B AT

From the date of
acquisition to
31 March 2022

HKWERRZE

2022%3H31H

HK$°000

FET

Income WA 247,091
Expenses 3 (126,420)
Profit for the period 7N HA e 120,671
Total comprehensive income for the period AEFEEHEY S BE 138,007
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EMBATZFHE @)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Eminence and its subsidiaries (Continued) SR HfBAR (48)
At 31 March 2022
R2022463H31H
HK$°000
F T
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,495,937
Current assets mBEE 3,383,871
Current liabilities mBAaE (901,866)
Non-current liabilities EmBAE (962,755)
Total equity AR 3,015,187

From the date of
acquisition to
31 March 2022

HKERHZE

20224 3H31H

HK$000

FET
Net cash outflow from operating activities RELEFH 2R M EFE (107,389)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REKREBEES RS ML FHE (26,875)
Net cash inflow from financing activities KEMEETH 2BHERAFE 117,361
Net cash outflow RemLFE (16,903)
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  44. KRR Z B IR RFT
OF THE COMPANY

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Non-current assets EmMBEE
Interests in subsidiaries S ENEIR 34,162 20,614
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEUR M B A B FIB 2,191,593 1,969,425
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEGFAERZZ
TRLEE — 11,502
Deposits Z& - 10,000
2,225,755 2,011,541
Current assets mBEE
Other receivables H {th /B I TR IB 174 161
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRR S 56,356 297738
56,530 297899
Current liabilities mEARE
Other payables H fth fE T3R8 1,397 1,646
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN EENGIE /@ 960,111 966,574
Secured bank borrowings BEMIBITEE 1,973 32,442
963,481 1,000,662
Net current liabilities REBaEFE (906,951) (702,763)
Total assets less current liabilities BEBBERLDEE 1,318,804 1,308,778
Non-current liability EmBAE
Secured bank borrowings BEMEBITEE 47,027 -
1,271,777 1,308,778
Capital and reserves BARN B
Share capital fi& 72 7,399 8,220
Reserves (note) K ) 1,264,378 1,300,558
1,271,777 1,308,778
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44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

Movements of the Company's reserves during the current and prior

44, QT2 B R R TR )

T

ARRAZEERAEARBEFEL S

years are as follows: PO
Share
Share Capital  Contributed option  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
BR4AEE BRAGE BARE BRERE RETER ok
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET FET FAET
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4A18 271,333 196,565 220,937 — 650,260 1,339,095
Loss and total comprehensive A% Z E51E K 2 5
expense for the year gk — — - - (1,867) (1,867)
Share repurchase and 17 B B8 R BUH
cancellation (36,670) — — - — (36,670)
(36,670) = = — (1,867) (38,537)
At 31 March 2021 7202137318 234,663 196,565 220,937 — 648,393 1,300,558
Loss and total comprehensive A FE EE & 2 H M
expense for the year TBH - - - - (4,370) (4,370)
Share repurchase and R0 E 8 R EUH
cancellation (32,391) - - - - (32,391)
Recognition of equity-settled % ¥ I 1 & B LA RR 7
share-based payment BERMR - - - 581 = 581
(32,391) - - 581 (4,370) (36,180)
At 31 March 2022 72022434318 202,272 196,565 220,937 581 644,023 1,264,378
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RESULTS EE
Year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MALEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194F 20204 20214 20224
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000
FEr FET FE L FET FHET
Revenue BER 331,521 830,347 63,633 323,382 350,784
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AR (B 18) 319,809 354,985 (298,936) 18,961 1,027,243
Taxation BB (22,646) (39,171) 877 2,968 (17,743)
Profit (loss) for the year AEEmH (EE) 297163 315,814 (298,059) 21,929 1,009,500
Profit (loss) for the year JE 16 2R F [ i F)
attributable to: (E18) -
— owners of the Company - YNGIL 297163 315,959 (297755) 22,308 979,437
— non-controlling interests —EERER — (145) (304) (379) 30,063
297163 315,814 (298,059) 21,929 1,009,500
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
M3A31H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20204 20214 20224
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEERE 4434511 5026789 4,858,129 4,903,606 8,919,158
Total liabilities aEBE (1,244,356) (1,479,439) (1,622,308) (1,673,161) (3,981,641)
Net assets EEFE 3,190,155 3,547350 3,235,821 3,230,445 4,937,517
Equity attributable to owners of Zx2 &) A% 3 & 15
the Company ¥ = 3,190,155 3,647495 3,236,270 3,231,273 4,177,706
Non-controlling interests FERER — (145) (449) (828) 759,811
Total equity R s 3,190,155 3,547350 3,235,821 3,230,445 4,937,517
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Notes:

(a)

On 1 April 2018, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. Accordingly, certain information for the year ended
31 March 2018 which was prepared under HKAS 39 and HKAS 18
“Revenue” may not be comparable to the years ended 31 March
2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022.

On 1 April 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 “Leases”.
Accordingly, certain information for the year ended 31 March 2018
and 2019 which was prepared under HKAS 17 “Leases” may not be
comparable to the years ended 31 March 2020, 2021 and 2022.
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B B8 A =20184F3A318 IF £ E
AT E R e &EE EE 220197
20204F ~ 20214 K2022%3A318 I+ £
BT -
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A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location Purpose

#th 1t R#g

KERBEEBR AR 2021/22F 3k

Summary of Properties

YE O

As at 31 March 2022 #2022 35315

A. BREWZE

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area Lease term
MOEE
ERAEE HAFH
(sq. ft.)
(FAR)

1. Block A on Seventh Floor and Industrial
Car Parking Space No. L11,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan,

Kowloon
NERDESILEABIR I
T ZAERLNSEEN
2. Block B1 and portion of Block B Industrial

on Seventh Floor,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

NERDEFILEAIBIN T
+tEBIERBEH D
3. Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground Floor Commercial

together with showcase on

Ground Floor, First Floor

and Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,

No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,

Mong Kok, Kowloon

NEH ATEE 1995 EE3
EBRES T

12 3MER

MTEE - — R

4. Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road, Commercial
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
&5 IR B FES0 T [EES

5 Shops A and B on Ground Floor Commercial

and Shop C on First Floor, One Victory,
Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
BE o] SCH fs A ZE 15 ~ 1ASR [EES
M3 TARBH R —1ECH
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11,874  Medium

& &

6,992 Medium

& &

13,544 Medium

A

1,200 Long

£ H]

3,953 Medium
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YE O

As at 31 March 2022 #2022 35315

A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Location

3 3k

Purpose

Rz

BEWME 5

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WAgmE
BEAER

(sq. ft.)
(FAR)

Lease term

HAOFH

10.

1.

Car Parking Space No. 407,
4/F, Capital Centre, No. 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai
B S T ITE1515%

B AR Y4075 BT

Ground Floor

No. 148 Johnston Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong
EEETHETRBI148% T

Ground Floor

No. 6 Cannon Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
BEEWBEESETHRMT

Sixth Floor

Nos. 650-652

Castle Peak Road, and

No. 18A Wing Hong Street
Kowloon

N5 F LE650E 65257
Kok E#18ASR61E

Second Floor

Nos. 790, 792 and 794
Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon
hERDEBE

790 - 792 k79457 21%

Roof
No. 20 Wing Hong Street
Kowloon

NEEXKEFH20HKXE

Commercial

EES

Commercial

EES

Commercial

EES

Industrial

I

Industrial

I%

Industrial

Ix
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N/A

-
(&t
3

578

472

8,608

2,981

2,910

Medium

&

Long

£ H

Long

£ H

Medium

5

Medium

]

Medium

&



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

KERBEEBR AR 2021/22F 3k

Summary of Properties

YE O

As at 31 March 2022 #2022 35315

A. BEYE @

Approximate
gross floor/

Location Purpose saleable area Lease term
MAEE
i 3k A ERAEE HAFH
(sqg. ft.)
(‘FAR)
12. Fifth Floor Industrial 3,402 Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street
Kowloon
JLBE K R 72057518 I% & 54
13. Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor Residential 2,086 Medium
Block D and Car Parking Space
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor
Shatin Heights
No. 8003 Tai Po Road
Shatin, N.T.
¥ K 880035k F=E # HA
DHEEDETEIR2E R
1K [ 3t T S5 465% B {7
14. Third Floor Residential 781  Medium
No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road
Hong Kong
EEERBBEIR =12 F= & HA
15. Easy Tower, No. 609 Industrial/ 74,458 Medium
Tai Nan West Street commercial
Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon
NEER D& KM AEH6095% I¥ /@ A
KEES
16. 15 Ardmore Park #04-03 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959
*= i
17. 15 Ardmore Park # 06-04 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959
=2 i
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A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) A BREWE =)
Approximate
gross floor/
Location Purpose saleable area Lease term
WMARE,
i it A BEAER HAOFH
(sq. ft.)
(FHR)
18. 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959
F = i
19. An industrial complex located at Industrial 1,805,634 Medium
No. 108 of Dongliang Road,
Zhili Town, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
of the People’s Republic of China
with a total of twenty building
blocks being built
iz A EE A R 2R AN BT T 48 8 N I & HA
R[5 B ERAR 10858
— & & 208K 2 HE M
BFHNIXERE
20. Lots Nos. 1278, 1279 and 1280 in D.D. Land with attached 27879 Medium
124 Yuen Long structure
New Territories
Hong Kong
B A ATTHAD.D.1245R B B8 32 5E £ b + 8

%1278 ~ 1279112805 i E%
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As at 31 March 2022 #2022 35315

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. FEHEXRERYE

FOR SALE
Approximate Stage of
Location Purpose gross site area  Lease term completion
i 4t R# BOREEE HAFH 7 B B B
(sq. ft)
(FrR)
1. Nos. 93, 93A, 95 & 95A Residential 9,800 Long Under development
Waterloo Road, Kowloon
NEBTZEI3H - = =3l RS
93A%E - 955 RIBAK
2. Nos. 470, 472, 474, 476, 478 Residential 4,685 Long Under development
Chatham Road North, Kowloon
NEER BB L4705 - 4725 - FE = BRED
474%; ~ 476%: - 4785
3. Nos. 646, 648, 648A Industrial 9,206 Medium Under development
Castle Peak Road
Kowloon
N2 E 1L E646 « 648K64BAT I% o 8 RS
4. No. 121 King Lam Street Industrial 5,483  Medium Under development
Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon
NERDEEHRE1215 T% F BEREP
B Nos. 11, 13 and 15 Commercial 2,857  Long Under development
Matheson Street
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
BEWEEMERGN  13K155% GRS =31 RS
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. HEHERRERYE »)

FOR SALE (Continued)

Approximate Stage of
Location Purpose gross site area  Lease term completion
i 3t fiifes BRHRERE BOFH 58 R B B
(sq. ft)
(FirR)
6. Nos. 1B-1E Residential 4940 Long Under development
Davis Street
Kennedy Town
Hong Kong
BEERRUMEZTHIBEIESR T =31 RSP
7 Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street Residential 2,182 Long Under development
Kennedy Town
Hong Kong
BEB A E 935 k5% Fx =31 FRS
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